
DuPage Water Commission
600 E. guttertielO Road, Elmhurst, lL 601264642

(630) 834-0100 Fax: (630) 834-0120

il1.

tv.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE AUGUST 2015 REGULAR MEETING OF

THE DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION WILL BE HELD AT 6:00 P'M' ON THURSDAY'

EUCUST 20, 2015, AT 600 EAST BUTTERFIELD ROAD, ELMHURST' ILLINOIS

60{26.

l. Call to Order and

ll. Roll Call

AGENDA

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

THURSDAY, AUGUST 20, 2015
6:00 P.M.

600 EAST BUTTERFIELD ROAD
ELMHURST, IL 60126

Pledge of Allegiance

(Majority of the Commissioners then in Office-minimum 7)

Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes per person)

Approval of Minutes
(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioner$ Present' provided there is a qUorum-minimum 4)

REGOMMENDED MOTTON; To approve the Minutes of the June 18, 2015 Regular

Meeting of the DuPage Water commission (Voice Vote).

V. Treasurer's Report - June and July 2015

(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there i$ a quorum-+ninimum 4)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To accept the June and July Treasurer's Reports

(Voice Vote).

Vl. Committee RePorts

A. Finance Committee

1. Report ol8l2Al15 Finance Committee

All visitors must present a valid driver's license or other government-issued photo identification, sign in at

the reception area and wear a visitor badge while at the DuPage Pumping Station'



Commission Agenda August20,2015

Z. 201S Annual Audit Report - To accept the draft audit report for the fiscal year

ending April 30,2015, to direct the auditors to print the final report, and to

direct staff to distribute the FY2015 audit report to the Commission's

customers and other interested parties

(Concurrence of a Majority of those Commis$ioners Present, provided there is a quorum- minimum 4)

g. Request For Board Action - Authorizing the Transfer of Funds from the

General Account to the Operating Reserve Account ($5 million)

(TO APPROVE: Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioners-7)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To adopt item numbers 2 and 3 under the Finance

Report section of the Agenda in a single group pursuant to the Omnibus Vote

Procedures (Roll Call).

4. Actions on Other ltems Listed on 8l2QI15 Finance Committee Agenda

B. Administration Committee

1. Report of 8120115 Administration Committee

2. Request For Board Action - Consulting Services - Rory Group, LLC'

Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioners-7)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To Authorize the Execution of a consulting Agreement
with Rory Group, LLC. for a one year period in an amount not to exceed

$18,000.00 (Roll Call).

g. Actions on Other ltems Listed on 8t20115 Administration Committee Agenda

C. Engineering & Construction Committee

1. Report of 8120115 Engineering & construction committee

Z. Resolution No. R-21-15: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Work
Authorization Orders Under Quick Response Electrical Contract QRE-6/12 at

the August 20, 2015, DuPage Water Commission Meeting (Divane Bros.
Electric Co. estimated cost of $16'500.00)
fiO APPROVE: Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioner$-7)

3. Resolution No. R-22-15: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain Work
Authorization Orders Under quick Response Contract QR-10/13 at the August

2e,2015, DuPage Water Commission Meeting (John Neri Gonstruction Co
Inc. estimated cost of $93,100.00)

(Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioners - 7)
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4. Resolution No. R-23-15: A Resolution Awarding a Contract to Furnish and

Deliver steel Pipe (Trinity steel and Pipe Inc. - $23'800'00)

(Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioners - 7)

S. Resolution No. R-24-15: A Resolution Awarding a Contract for Vacuum

Excavation Services (Airy's Inc. - $154'945.00)

(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed

bommissioner= and +Oy" of the Municipal Appointed Commissioners-3 County + 3 Muni+1=7)

6. Request For Board Action: ToAuthorize Purchase Requisition No.20219 in

the amount of $39,412.00 to LF George' Inc.

(Concurrence of a Majority of the Appointed Commissioners - 7)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To adopt item numbers 2 through 6 under the

Engineering & Construction Report section of the Agenda in a single group

puisuant to the Omnibus Vote Procedures (Roll Gall).

T. Actions on Other ltems Listed on 8120115 Engineering & Construction

Committee Agenda

Vll. Accounts PaYable

(Affirmative Majority of the Appointed Commissioners, containing the votes of at least 1/3 of the County Appointed

dommissioner*'"nd 40% of the'Municipal Appointed Commissioners-3 County + 3 Muni+1=7)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of

$8,733,726.1{, (June 2015, disbursements made with concurrGnce of
Commission's Girairman) and $9,991,583.21 (July 2015) subiect to submission of
all contractually required documentation, for invoices that have been received

(Roll Gall).

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Accounts Payable in the amount of

$1,223,090.00, (June 2015, disbursements made with concurrence of
Commission's Cirairman) and ${,563,075.00 (July 2015) subiect to submission of
all contractually required documentation, for invoices that have not yet been

received but have been estimated (Roll Gall)-

Vlll. Chairman's RePofi

lX. Omnibus Vote Requiring Majority Vote

X. Omnibus Vote Requiring Super-Majority or Special Majority Vote



Commission Agenda August 20, 2015

Xl. Old Business

XIl. New Business

Xlll. Executive Session
(Concurrence of a Majority of tho$e Commissioners Present, provided there i$ a quorum-minimum 4)

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To go into Executive Session to discuss security
procedures pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(cX8), to discuss matters related to
personnel pursuant to 5 ILC$ 120/2(c)({} and (2), to discuss acquisition of real
estate pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(cX5), to discuss pending, probable, or imminent
litigation pursuant to 5 ILC$ 120/2(cX11), and/or to discuss minutes of closed
meetings pursuant to 5 ILCS 12012(cl(2{) (Roll Call).

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To come out of Executive Session (Voice Vote).

XlV. Adjournment
(Concunence of a Majority of those Commissioners Present, provided there i$ a quorum*minimum 4)

Board/Agendas/Commission/201 S/Rcm 1 508.docx



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
DUPAGE WATER COMMI$SION

HELD ON THURSDAY, JUNE {8, 2015
600 E. BUTTERFIELD ROAD

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

The meeting was called to order by ChairmanZay at 7:00 P.M.

Commissioners in attendance: L. CraMord, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D.

Novotny, J. Pruyn, D. Russo (via telephone), F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J.

zaY

Commissioners Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Also in attendance: Treasurer D. Ellsworth, J. Spatz, C. Johnson, C. Peterson, J.

Rodriguez, R. C. Bostick, J. Schori, M. Weed E. Kazmierczak, and T. Good of Gorski &

Good

PRESENTATION OF PLAQUE

Chairman Zay presented Treasurer Ellsworth with a Plaque thanking him for his hard work
and dedication and wished him the best. Treasurer Ellsworth thanked Chairman Zay and

the Commissioners for the opportunity to serve as Treasurer and wished the
Commission continued success.

PUBLIC COMMENT

None

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Commissioner Furstenau moved to approve the Minutes of the Mav 21, 2015 Reqular
Meetinq. Seconded by Commissioner Crawford and unanimously approved by a Voice
Vote.

All voted aye. Motion carried.

TREASURER REPORT

Treasurer Hllsworth presented the May 2015 Treasurer's Report, consisting of twelve
pages, noting that pages 1, 2 and 3 contained a brief summary of the repoft.

Treasurer Hllsworth pointed out the $102.5 million of cash and investments on page 4,

which reflected an increase of about $2.9 million from the previous month. Treasurer
Ellsworth also pointed out the schedule of investments on pages 5 through 10 totaling

$97.7 million and the market yield on the total portfolio showed 81 basis points which
had remained the same from the prior month. On page 11, the statement of cash flows
showed an increase in cash and investments by about $2.9 million and operating
activities increased cash by approximately $1.6 million, roughly $2.5 million of sales tax
was received, and principal and interest debt payments on bonds totaled about $1.?
million. On page 12, the monthly cash/operating report showed that the Commission
had met or exceeded all of its reserve requirements and approximately $10.8 million of
outstanding debt in Table 3, Row J.

carolyn
Draft



Minutes of the 6118115 Commission Meeting

Commissioner Suess moved to accept the Mav 2015 Treasurer's Report. Seconded by

Commissioner Loftus and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote'

All voted aye. Motion carried.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Finance Committee - Reported by Commissioner Suess

Commissioner Suess reported that the Finance Committee had reviewed and

recommended for approval all action items listed on the Finance Agenda. After
providing a brief summary, Commissioner Suess moved to approve Resolution No. R-

16-15: A Resolution Amendinq and Restatinq the lnvestment Policv of the DuPaqe
Water Commission. Seconded Commissioner Russo and unanimously approved by a
Roll Call Vote.

Ayes: L. Crawford, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D'
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Commissioner Suess moved to approve Resolution No. R-20-15: A Resolution Approvinq,

Ratifuinq. and Acceptinq the Appointment of Commissioner Pruvn as Treasurer of the
Commission for No Additional Compensation. Seconded by Commissioner Furstenau and

unanimously approved by a Roll Call Vote.

Ayes: L. Crawford, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, D. Russo, F.

Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Abstain: J. Pruyn

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Commissioner Suess concluded his report by expressing his appreciation to
Commissioner Pruyn for temporarily filling the position of Treasurer and also thanked
Treasurer Ellsworth for his hard work on the Finance Committee.

Administration Committee - Reported by Commissioner Crawford

Commissioner CraMord reported that the Administration Committee had reviewed and

recommended for approval all action items listed on the Administration Agenda. After
providing a brief summary, Commissioner Crawford moved to adopt Resolution No. R-

1g-15: A Resolution Releasinq Ceftain Executive Session Meetinq Minutes at the June
18, 2015, DuPaqe Water Commission Meetinq. Seconded by Commissioner Russo.

-2-



Minutes of the 6118115 Commission Meeting

Commissioner Furstenau referred to Schedule A and Schedule B of Resolution No. R-
19-15 noting that he was in favor of Schedule A, but had questions regarding Schedule
B and requested that the Board go into Executive Session to discuss.

Attorney Tom Good suggested withdrawing the pending motion and start over. After
Commissioner Crawford as the movant and Commissioner Russo as the seconder,
agreed to withdraw the pending motion, Commissioner Crawford moved to adopt
Schedule A of Resolution No. R-19-15: A Resolution Releasinq Certain Executive
Session Meetins Minutes at the June 18. 2015, DuPaqe Water Commission Meetinq.
Seconded by Commissioner Furstenau and unanimously approved by a Roll CallVote.

Ayes: L. Crawford, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D.
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Engineering & Construction Committee - Reported by Gommissioner Loftus

Commissioner Loftus reported that the Engineering & Construction Committee had
reviewed and recommended for approval all action items listed on the Engineering &
Construction Agenda. After providing a brief summary of all items, Commissioner
Loftus moved to adopt item numbers 2 throuqh 5 under the Enqineering & Construction
Report section of the Aqenda in a sinqle qroup pursuant to the Omnibus Vote
Procedures. Seconded by Commissioner Furstenau and unanimously approved by a
Roll CallVote.

Ayes: L. CraMord, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D.
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Item 2: Ordinance No. O-5-15: An Ordinance Determining the Prevailing Rate of
Wages in DuPage County and Cook County (No Cost Component)

ltem 3: Resolution No. R-17-15: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Ceftain Work
Authorization Orders Under Quick Response Contract QR-10/13 at the June
18, 2015, DuPage Water Commission Meeting (John Neri Construction Co.,
Inc. at an estimated amount of $11,850.00)

Item 4: Resolution No. R-18-15: A Resolution Approving and Ratifying Certain
Contract 55-6/15 Change Orders at the June 18,2015, DuPage Water
Commission Meeting (Era-Valdivia Contractors, Inc" - Net Decrease of
$109,264.00).

-3-



Minutes of the 6118115 Commission Meeting

Item 5: Request For Board Action: To Approve Change Order No. 1 to Contract
QRE-6.019 at the June 18, 2015 DuPage Water Commission Meeting -
(Divane Bros. Electric Co. increase of estimated cost from $3,500.00 to a
not to exceed total cost of $9,500.00).

Commissioner Loftus concluded his repoft by thanking staff for providing a copy, at the
May meeting, of the AECOM Condition Assessment repofi noting how pleased he was
with the detail of the repoft.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Commissioner Suess moved to approve the Accounts Pavable in the amount of
$8.765.549.23 subiect to submission of all contractuallv required documentation. for
invoices that have been received and the Accounts Pavable in the amount of
$1,109,650.00 subiect to submission of all contractuallv required documentation. for
invoices that have not vet been received but have been estimated. Seconded by
Commissioner Crawford and unanimously approved by a Roll Call Vote.

Ayes: L. Crawford, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D.
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Chairman Zay informed the Commissioners of the possibility that the July Board may be
cancelled, noting that Board members would be notified.

OMNIBUS VOTE REQUIRING MAJORITY VOTE

None

OMNIBUS VOTE REQUIRING SUPER.MAJORITY OR SPECIAL MAJORITY VOTE

None

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

None

-4-



Minutes of the 6118115 Commission Meeting

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Commissioner Furstenau moved to qo into Executive Session to discuss matters related
to minutes of closed meetinqs pursuant to 5ILCS 120/2(cX21). Seconded by
Commissioner Gans and unanimously approved by a Roll CallVote:

Ayes: L. CraMord, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D, Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D,
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays. None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

The Board went into Executive $ession at7:17 P.M.

Commissioner Furstenau moved to come out of Executive Session at 7:25 P.M.
Seconded by Commissioner Pruyn and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote.

All voted aye. Motion carried.

Commissioner Furstenau moved to release certain minutes listed on Schedule B of
Resolution No. R-19-15: A Resolution Releasing Certain Executive $ession Meetino
Minutes in accordance with the discussion held in Executive Session. Seconded by
Commissioner Crawford and unanimously approved by a Roll CallVote.

Ayes: L. CraMord, R. Furstenau, R. Gans, D. Loftus, D. Novotny, J. Pruyn, D.
Russo, F. Saverino, M. Scheck, P. Suess and J. Zay

Nays: None

Absent: J. Broda and J. Fennell

Commissioner Furstenau moved to adiourn the meetinq at 7:26 P.M. Seconded by
Commissioner Crawford and unanimously approved by a Voice Vote.

All voted aye. Motion carried.

Board/Minutes/Commission/20 1 5/Rcm 1 5061 Sdocx
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DUPAGE WATER GOMMISSION
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJEGT:

Chairman and Commissioners

Jeff Pruyn, Treasurer

July 8, 2015

TREASURER'S REPORT - JUNE 30, 2015

I am pleased to report that I have reviewed and approved alljournal entries and bank reconciliations for

the month of June. I have also reviewed the monthly financial statements and budget status reports, and

found them to be in order.

Summarv of Gash & Investments (Paqe 4)
mi||ionatJune30th,anincreaseof$4.1mi||ionoverthe

2.

3.

4.

previous month.

The balance in the BMO Harris checking account was $3.8 million at June 30th, a decrease of

$1.0 million over the $4.8 million reported last month.

The BMO Harris money market accounts had $15.4 million at month-end, an increase of $2.0
million from the preceding month.

During the month of June, the lllT money market accounts increased by $3.1 million from the
prior month.

our holdings of asset backed securities increased by $goa,os8 in June'

The current holdings of cash and investments are in compliance with the approved investment
policy.

Over the past two months the Commission's cash and investments increased a total of $7.0
million.

r The Operating & Maintenance Account increased by $l 'l million, for an ending balance of

$18.3 million.

. The General Account increased by $6.0 million, for an ending balance of $2.0 million. There

was a $3 million transfer from the Operating & Maintenance account in June.

. The Sales Tax Account remained relatively unchanged at $2'1 million.

r The Long-Term Capital Reserve Account increased by $24,777 for a balance of $7.9 million.

r The Operating Reserve Account increased $61,595 for a balance of $41.0 million,

5.

6.

7.



. The Capital Reserve Fund increased $35,662 for a balance of $29.3 million.

The following table presents a summary of the changes in cash pobition by account.

Gash and Investments bY Account

Account
Balance

413012015
Balance

6/30/2015
lncrease

(Decrease)

Ooerations & Maintenance $17,071,214 $18,268,809 $1,197,595

Bond Interest 11,920 10,455 1,465)

Bond Principal 1,181,000 90s,250 (275,750)

GeneralAccount 1.040,019 7.040,739 6.000.720

Sales Tax 2.1 18.925 2.121.052 2,127

Operatinq Reserve 40,933.837 40.995.432 61.595

Capital Reserve 29,301,655 29.337.317 35,662

Lonq-Term Cap. Reserve 7.916.324 7,941,102 24,778

Total Gash & Investments $99,574,894 $106,620,156 $7,045,262

$chedule of Investments (Paqes 5-10)

-1'TheaverageyieldtomaturityontheCommission,sinvestment$Wa$Q.78o/o,adecrea$efromthe

previous month of 0.81% due to the increase in cash invested in money market accounts.

2. The weighted-average maturity of the Commission's investments was 701 days, or just under two

years.

3. The portfolio is showing unrealized gains of $1 15,645 at June 30, 2015, compared to $215,019 at
April30th,

4. The amortized cost of our investments was $102.8 million at June 30tn, an increase of $5.1 million
over the prior month.

Statement of Cash Flows (Paqe 11)

1. The statement of cash flows shows a breakdown of the $7"0 million increase in cash and
investments since the beginning of the fiscal year.

2. Operating activities increased cash by $4.0 million.

3. $S.S million of sales tax revenue was received.

4. Debt service payments totaled $2.'t million.

5. Cash flow from investment activity generated $139,003.

Reserve Analvsis (Paqe 12)
1. The reserve analysis report shows the commission has met or exceeded all reserve targets at

June 30th.

2. The Operating and Maintenance Account was $7.5 million over its target balance of $10.7 million.



The Operating Reserve account is $837,036 over its minimum target of $40.2 million.

There was $9.9 million of debt outstanding at June 30'n, a reduction of $0.9 million from last

month. For the year to date, $2.1 million of debt has been retired.

Respectfully submitted,

3.

4.

Treasurer



DU PAGE WATER COMMISSION
TREASURER'S REPORT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
June 30, 2015

FUNDS CONSIST OF: June 30, 2015 May 31, 2015

PETTY CASH
CASH AT HARRIS BANK

TOTAL CASH

IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS
BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS
U. S, TREASURY INVESTMENTS
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS
MUNICIPAL BONDS
COMMERCIAL PAPER
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGF OBLIG
SUPRANATIONAL BONDS

1,200.00
3,828,859.44

1,200.00
4,780,975,12

0.00
(e52,1 15 68)

3.830.059.44 4,782,175,12 (952,1 15"68)

4,260,401.39
1s,354,453.76
47,453,434.39
2s,030,382.10

6,163,649.61
3,398,693.44
1 ,1 29,081 .38

1,198,395.61
13,352,871,08
47,566,612.78
25,033,40s.06

6,335,310.44
3,397,97s.12

820,423.02

3,062,005.78
2,001,582.68
(113,178.39)

(3,022.96)
(171,660.83)

718.32
308,658.36

0.00

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 102.790.096.07

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 106,620,155.51

=======

June 30. ?015

97,704,993.11 5.085.102,96

102,487,168.23

May 31, 2015

4.132s87.28

% CHANGE

IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS
BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS
U. S. TREASURY INVESTMENTS
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS
MUNICIPAL BONDS
COMMERCIAL PAPER
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIG

SUPRANATIONAL BONDS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Not6 1 - Investments are carried at amortized cost.

100,0% 100.0%

4.1o/o

14.9%
46.2'/r
24.4%
6.0%
3.3%
1j%
0.0%

1.2%
13.7o/o

48.7%
25.60k
6.5%
3.5o/o

0.8%
0.0%

255.5%
15.0%
-0.2%
0.0%
-2.7o/o

0.0%
37.6%

N/A

5.2%
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DUPAGE WATER COM M ISSION

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

TREASURER'S REPORT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period from May 1, 2015 to June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIN6 ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers

Cash payments to suppliers

Cash payments to employees
Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales taxes

Cash Received from water quality loans

Net cash from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FI NANCI NG ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Principal Paid

Construction and purchase of capital assets

Net cash from capital and related financing activities

CASH FIOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

lnvestment income

Net cash from investing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and investments

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, MAY 1, 2015

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, JUNE 30, 2015

$ 21,139,320
(16,665,252)

(437,131)

4,036,937

5,533,336

0

5,533,335

(1"8,696)

(2,o75,262].

(570,056)

(2,664,014l.

139,003

139,003

7,045,262

99,574,894

s 105,520,156
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

a

a

t

Chairman and Commissioners

Jeff Pruyn, Treasurer

August 11,2015

TREASURER'S REPORT - JULY 31, 2015

I am pleased to report that I have reviewed and approved alljournal entries and bank reconciliations for

the month of July. I have also reviewed the monthly financial statements and budget status reports, and

found them to be in order.

$ummarv of Gash & lnvestments (Pase 4)
mi||ionatJu|y31"t,anincreaseof$1.6mi||ionoverthe

previous month.

The balance in the BMO Harris checking account was $3.3 million at July 31*t, a decrease of
slightly over $0.5 million compared to the $3.8 million reported last month.

The BMO Harris money market accounts had $15.5 million at month-end, an increase of $0.1

million from the preceding month.

DuringthemonthofJu|y,the|||Tmoneymarketaccount$increasedby$o.gmi||ionfromtheprior
month.

Our holdings of asset backed securities increased by $1.3 million in July.

The current holdings of cash and investments are in compliance with the approved investment
policy.

Over the past three months the Commission's cash and investments increased a total of $8.6
million.

r The Operating & Maintenance Account increased by $0.7 million, for an ending balance of
$17.8 million.

r The General Account increased by $g.O million, for an ending balance of $9.0 million. There

was a $2 million transfer from the Operating & Maintenance account in July.

The Sales Tax Account remained relatively unchanged at $2.1 million.

The Capital Reserve Fund increased $61,894 for a balance of $29.4 million.

The Operating Reserve Account increased $76,478 for a balance of $41.0 million.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.



r The Long-Term Capital Reserve Account increased by $24,527 for a balance of $7.9 million.

The following table presents a summary of the changes in cash position by account.

Cash and Investments by Account

Account
Balance

413012015
Balance

713112015
Increase

(Decrease)

Ooerations & Maintenance $17,071,214 $17,805.505 $ 734,2s1

Bond Interest 11,920 9,785 (2,135)

Bond Principal 1 ,181 ,000 906,000 (275,000)

GeneralAccount 1 ,040,019 9.041.335 8,001 .316

Sales Tax 2.1 18.925 2,123.233 4,308
Operatino Reserve 40.933,837 41,010,315 76,478
Caoital Reserve 29.301,655 29.363.549 61,894
Lonq-Term Cap. Reserve 7.916.324 7.940.851 24.527

Total Gash & Investments $99,574,894 $108,200,573 $8,625,679

$chedule of Investments (Pases 5-101
1 . The average yield to maturity on the Commission's investments was 0.79o/o, a slight increase

from the previous month of 0.78o/o as higher yields from increased investments in mortgage
backed securitie$ were offset by the increase in cash invested in money market account$.

2. The portfolio is showing unrealized gains of $183,215 at July 31 , 2015, compared to $215,019 at
April 301h.

3. The amortized cost of our investments was $104.9 million at July 31"', an increase of $?.1 million
over the prior month.

Statement of Cash Flows (Paqe 111

1. The statement of ca$h flows shows a breakdown of the $8.6 mittion increase in cash and
investments since the beginning of the fiscal year.

2. Operating activities increased cash by $4.9 million.

3. $8.5 million of sales tax revenue was received.

4. Debt service payments totaled $3.0 million.

5. CapitalAssets purchased totaled $2.0 million year-to-date.

6. Cash flow from investment activity generated $190,163.

Reserve Analvsis (Paoe 121

1. The reserve analysis report shows the commission has met or exceeded all reserve targets at
July 31".

2. The Operating and Maintenance Account was $6.2 million over its target balance of $11.6 million.



The Operating Reserve account is $851 ,919 over its minimum target of $40.2 million.

There was $9.0 million of debt outstanding at July 31"1, a reduction of $0,9 million from last
month. For the year to date, $3.0 million of debt has been retired.

Respectfully subm itted,

3.

4.

Treasurer



DU PAGE WATER COMMIS$ION
TREASURER'S REPORT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
July 31 , 2015

FUNDS CONSIST OF: July 31, 2015 June 30, 2015 rNcR. - (DECR.)

PETTY CASH
CASH AT HARRIS BANK

IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS
BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS
U. S. TREASURY INVFSTMENTS
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS
MUNICIPAL BONDS
COMMERCIAL PAPER
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED

TOTAL CASH

IIIT MONEY MARKET FUNDS
BMO HARRIS MONEY MARKET FUNDS
U. S. TREASURY INVESTMENTS
U. S. AGENCY INVESTMENTS
MUNICIPAL BONDS
COMMERCIAL PAPER
ASSET BACKED SEC/COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIG
SUPRANATIONAL BONDS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

Note 1 - Investments are carried at amortized cost.

1,200.00
3,?70,054.53

1,200.00
3,828,859.44

0.00
(558,804.91)

3,271,254.53 3,830,059.44 (558,804.91)

5,174,653.32
15,450,035.39
46,735,295.64
25,027,357.78
6,161,98s.s8
3,S99,315.56
?,380,675.60

4,260,401.39
15,354,453.76
47,453,434.39
25,030,382.10

6,163,649.61
3,398,693.44
1 ,1 29,081 .38

914,251 .93
95,581.63

(71 B,1 38.75)
(3,024.32)
(1,664.03)

600,622.12
1,251,594.22MORTGAGE OBLIG

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 104.929.318.87 102.790.096.07 2.13S.222.80

TOTAL CASH AND INVE$TMENTS 108.?00.573.40 106.620.155.51 1,580,417.89

July 31 , 2015 June 30,2015 % CHANGE

4.5%
14.7o/o

44.5%
23.9Yo
59%
3.8o/o

2.3%
0.0%

4.1%
14.5%
48.20h
24.4%
6.0%
3.3%
1.1o/o

0.0%

?1.5%
0.6%
-1 .5o/o

o.o%
0.0%
17.7n/o

11Q.9o/o

N/A

100.0% 100.0% 2.1%
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DUPAGE WATER COM MISSION

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

TREASURER'S REPORT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Period from May 1, 2015 to July 31, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers

Cash payments to employees
Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales taxes
Cash Received from water quality loans

Net cash from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

Interest paid

Principal Paid

Construction and purchase of capital assets
Net cash from capital and related financing activities

CASH FLO![/S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

lnvestment i

Net cash from investing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash and investments

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, MAY 1,2015

CASH AND INVESTMENTS, JULY 3]., 2015

$ 37,352,747
(25,698,533)

9,536,353

0

8,536,353

(25,823)

(2,974,274)
(1,995,075)

(4,996,L72)

190,153

190,163

9,625,679

99,574,994

$ to8,zoo,sz3

4,885,335
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Members of the Board of Commissioners 
DuPage Water Commission 
Elmhurst, Illinois 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the DuPage Water Commission (the 
Commission) as of and for the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Commission’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the Commission, as of April 30, 2015 and 2014, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 

Required Supplementary Information 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 

 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, 
supplemental data, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The supplemental data is the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental data is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
 
 
Naperville, Illinois 
June 5, 2015 
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DuPage Water Commission 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This section of the DuPage Water Commission’s annual financial report presents our discussion 
and analysis of the Commission’s financial performance during the fiscal years ending April 30, 
2015, 2014, and 2013. 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s basic 
financial statements. The Commission’s basic financial statements are comprised of the 
following components: Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Commission’s assets, deferred 
outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between the four reported as net 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the Commission is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the information necessary to show 
how the Commission’s net position changed during the fiscal years ending April 30, 2015 and 
2014.   
 
Both statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting method used by most private-sector companies. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows provides information on the Commission’s gross sources and uses 
of cash during the fiscal year. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements generally provide more detailed information about the 
Commission’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position and operations, 
as well as summarize the Commission’s significant accounting policies. 
 
FINANCIAL OPERATIONS SUMMARY 
 
The Commission’s net position rose by approximately $43.6 million in fiscal year 2015. 
Revenues and contributions were $154.8 million in fiscal 2015 compared to expenses totaling 
$111.2 million. The Commission’s revenues were higher than expected due to increased sales tax 
collections, greater than projected emergency water sales and higher than budgeted investment 
income. Expenditures were lower than budgeted primarily due to lower than expected water 
purchases, increased energy cost savings, and continued cost savings through improved 
efficiencies throughout the Commission.  
 
In fiscal year 2014, net position increased by $36.2 million to $405.7 million. Revenues of 
$141.2 million were approximately 11% higher in fiscal year 2014 compared to the prior year. 
Expenses increased by approximately 6% to $104.9 million compared to $99.1 million in fiscal 
2013. The Commission’s revenues were above budgeted expectations due to increased water 
sales and higher than anticipated sales tax collections. Higher costs related to increased water 
purchases were more than offset by continued reductions to interest costs due to accelerated debt 
repayment and refinancing activities, as well as other cost saving initiatives. As of April 30, 
2014, net investment in capital assets was $326.4 million. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Changes in Net Position. The table on page MD&A 3 presents information on the 
Commission’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows, with the difference 
between the four reported as net position at April 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013.  Net capital assets 
represent the total of assets capitalized less accumulated depreciation.  
 
Fiscal Year 2015 
Net capital assets decreased by $7.2 million in fiscal year 2015 due to depreciation expense of 
$8.0 million offset by investment in new construction and equipment of $0.8 million.     
 
Significant debt repayments, partially offset by a net decrease in capital assets, contributed to an 
increase of $13.4 million in net investment in capital assets from the prior year.  Debt used to 
finance capital assets decreased by $20.6 million, of which $21.1 million was from principal debt 
repayments related to capital assets, partially offset by net amortization of premium and loss on 
refunding costs of $0.5 million.  
 
Fiscal Year 2014 
Net capital assets decreased by $7.3 million in fiscal year 2014 due to depreciation expense of 
$7.9 million offset by investment in new construction, vehicles and equipment of $0.6 million.   
 
Net investment in capital assets increased $11.6 million from the prior year.  This is due to the 
$18.9 million decrease in debt used to finance capital assets offset by the $7.3 million decrease in 
capital assets mentioned above. In the fiscal year 2014, principal debt repayments related to 
capital assets of $19.4 million were partially offset by net amortization of premium and loss on 
refunding costs of $0.5 million.  
  

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 



MD&A 3 

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF NET POSITION 
April 30, 

     
2015 2014 2013 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
   Current: 

      
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 $   19,428,913  $   18,825,424  $   20,351,459 

 
Investments 

  
      80,361,000  51,074,297       44,817,141  

 
Receivables 

  
21,110,216  20,196,694 17,909,383 

 
Other assets 

  
545,631  514,364 474,028 

Non-current: 
      

 
Long term loan receivable 

 
490,437  539,481 588,526 

 
Land and construction in process 12,464,421 12,051,670 13,250,482 

 
Capital assets, net of depreciation 338,730,466  346,364,860   352,489,595 

Total assets 473,131,084  449,566,790 449,880,614 
Deferred outflows of resources: 

    
 

Unamortized loss on refunding 
 

529,908 1,019,055 1,508,201 

 
Total deferred outflows of resources 529,908  1,019,055 1,508,201 

Total assets and deferred outflow of resources 473,660,992 450,585,845 451,388,815 
        Liabilities 

      Current: 
      

 
Payables and accrued liabilities 

 
9,077,001  8,183,231 7,204,558 

 
Customer deposits 

  
64,191  65,091 219,589 

 
Bonds payable 

  
11,056,250  14,094,250 16,381,250 

 
Accrued interest 

  
9,763  21,273 136,357 

 
Capital lease payable 

 
9,318 8,746                8,208 

 
Unearned revenue 

  
350,507  350,507 350,507 

Non-current: 
      

 
Unearned revenue 

  
2,804,054  3,154,561 3,505,068 

 
Other liabilities 

  
54,264  52,362 50,639 

 
Notes payable 

  
-  7,000,000 28,000,000 

 
Capital lease payable 

 
3,240               12,559              21,305 

 
Bonds payable 

  
898,300 11,954,550 26,048,800 

Total liabilities 24,326,888 44,897,130 81,926,281 
        Net Position 

      
 

Net investment in capital assets 
 

339,757,687 326,365,480 314,760,847 

 
Unrestricted 

  
109,576,417  79,323,235 54,701,687 

NET POSITION  $ 449,334,104   $ 405,688,715  $ 369,462,534 
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Revenues and Expenses. The table which follows presents a comparative summary of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position for the years ended April 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013. The 
most significant source of revenues for the Commission continues to be from water sales.  
 
Fiscal Year 2015 
Water sales for fiscal year 2015 were 25.96 billion gallons versus 27.84 billion gallons last fiscal 
year. The charter customer operations and maintenance average water rate increased from an 
average of $3.52 per thousand gallons to an average of $4.19 per thousand gallons for fiscal year 
2015 due to a rate increase of 17% in January 2015. Water revenue increased in the current fiscal 
year by $10.8 million or 11.0% as a result of the higher rates, which were partially offset by a 
decline in water sales of 6.8%. There were no major new customers.   
 
The Commission’s sales tax revenues increased by $1.8 million or 5.3%, similar to the growth 
rate in fiscal 2014. Sales tax revenues continued to show stable growth. Sales tax funds of $7.1 
million were used to reduce the customers’ fixed cost payments for fiscal year 2015 by 50%. 
This practice started in fiscal year 1998 and has continued through fiscal year 2015. 
 
Investment income increased by nearly $0.7 million from the prior year due to improved 
investment yield rates, unrealized gains related to market values and higher investment balances. 
The Commission added and was able to fully fund a Capital Reserve fund in fiscal 2015. In 
addition to meeting the Capital Reserve target, the Commission met all the targeted balances for 
its other reserve funds as well. However, the growth rate on the yield on investments is still 
being restricted by the low interest rate environment.  
 
Water distribution costs remain the highest expense in the Commission’s operations. Water 
distribution costs increased $6.4 million mainly due to the City of Chicago increasing their water 
rate charged to their customers partially offset by a decline of approximately 6.5% in water 
purchases in fiscal 2015. 
 
Fiscal Year 2014 
In fiscal year 2014, water sales declined to 27.84 billion gallons compared to 29.23 billion 
gallons in the prior fiscal year. The charter customer operations and maintenance average water 
rate increased from $2.89 per thousand gallons to $3.52 per thousand gallons for fiscal year 
2014. Higher water rates were the reason the Commission’s water revenue increased by $13.4 
million or 14.5% compared to the prior year. An 18% rate increase was implemented on 
January 1st in the fiscal year.   
 
The Commission’s sales tax revenues increased by $1.8 million or 5.6% as the local economy 
continued to improve. Sales tax collections in the fiscal were similar to amounts received in 
fiscal year 2008. In addition, $7.1 million of sales tax funds were used to reduce the customers’ 
fixed cost payments for fiscal year 2014 by 50%. This practice started in fiscal year 1998 and has 
continued through fiscal year 2014. 
 
Investment income decreased $0.4 million in part from the prior year due to unrealized losses in 
market values in the fiscal year versus unrealized gains in the prior year. The Commission also 
did not receive additional funds from escrow activity related to debt refinancing as in the prior 
year.  In addition, the low interest rate environment continued to limit the growth rate on the 
yield on investments.  
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The highest expense in the Commission’s operations remains water distribution costs. The City 
of Chicago increasing their water rate charged to their customers was the main driver of water 
distribution costs increasing by $8.6 million (10.4%) in fiscal year 2014. 
 

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION 

For the Fiscal Years Ending April 30,  

  
2015 2014 2013 

REVENUES 
   Operating: 
   

 
Water sales - all categories  $  116,795,994    $  106,009,331  $   92,600,883  

 
Other 71,314 55,933 164,774  

Nonoperating: 
   

 
Sales tax 36,791,962  34,945,975  33,098,620  

 
Investment income 863,779  123,042  508,005  

     
 

Total Revenue 154,523,049  141,134,281 126,372,282 

     EXPENSES 
   Operating: 
   

 
Water supply costs 97,146,590 90,772,120  82,207,354  

 
Depreciation 8,009,501  7,952,088  7,889,770  

 
Personal services 3,832,775 3,721,139 3,682,195  

 
Other 1,530,383  1,497,303  1,726,419  

Nonoperating: 
   

 
Interest and other charges 697,636  997,221  3,563,014  

 
(Gain) Loss on disposal of capital assets  (5,475)   89   -  

     
 

Total Expense 111,211,410  104,939,960 99,068,752   

     Net income (loss) before contributions 43,311,639  36,194,321 27,303,530 

     Contributions 333,750  31,860 348,967 

     Change in net position       43,645,389        36,226,181       27,652,497 

     
Net position, May 1 405,688,715  

        
369,462,534     341,810,037 

     Net position, April 30  $ 449,334,104   $ 405,688,715    $ 369,462,534 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets.   The Commission’s capital assets before depreciation totaled $501.3 million in 
fiscal year 2015. 
 

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN NET CAPITAL ASSETS 
For Fiscal Years Ending April 30,  

 2015 2014 2013 
    

 Land and permanent easements $ 11,728,902 $ 11,728,902 $ 11,728,902 
 Construction in progress   735,519   322,768   1,521,580 
 Water mains   272,410,156  276,957,883  281,505,610 
 Buildings and other structures   55,439,851   57,650,587   60,215,251 
 Pumping equipment  10,509,775  11,258,702  10,532,375 
 Office furniture and equipment   276,920   352,406   93,147 
 Vehicles and other equipment   93,764   145,282   143,212 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $351,194,887 $358,416,530 $365,740,077 
 
Detailed information about the Commission’s capital assets is presented in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
 
Debt Administration.   The Commission completed repayment of the $40 million certificate of 
debt in October 2014. The Commission completed repayment of the $30 million certificate of 
debt in June 2013. For the remaining debt outstanding, the Commission made no material 
changes in structure or changed any ordinances in fiscal year 2015.  
 
In fiscal year 2013, the Commission implemented a new bond ordinance upon defeasance of the 
2003 Revenue Bonds and issuance of the 2013 Revenue Bonds. The current bond ordinance does 
not include requirements for certain balances to be maintained in specific accounts. Account 
requirements under the 1987 revenue bond ordinance in relation to the 2003 Revenue Bonds 
were met each month the debt was outstanding in fiscal year 2013. 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 
On April 30, 2015, the 2013 Revenue Bond principal outstanding was $12.0 million. All required 
revenue bond principal and interest payments were made monthly and on time during fiscal year 
2015.   
 
There were no Certificates of debt outstanding as of April 30, 2015, the remaining balance of 
$7.0 million was paid on October 1, 2014, The Commission issued a $30 million certificate of 
debt on December 2009, and a $40 million certificate of debt was issued in May, 2010. Both 
were used to fund ongoing construction projects and purchase water from the City of Chicago.   
 
No additional capital lease obligations were entered into in fiscal 2015. The principal value 
remaining on the capital lease set to expire in September 2016 was $12,558. 
 
Fiscal Year 2014 
The required revenue bond principal and interest payments were made monthly and on time 
during fiscal year 2014.  On April 30, 2014, remaining revenue bond principal outstanding was 
$26.0 million.  
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As of April 30, 2014, the Commission had $7.0 million in certificates of debt outstanding 
compared to $28.0 million in certificates of debt at the end of the prior fiscal year. The remaining 
balance outstanding is part of the $40 million certificate of debt issued in May, 2010. The 
remaining balance outstanding from April 30, 2013 on the $30 million certificate of debt issued 
to the Commission in December 2009 was paid in June 2013. Both were used to fund ongoing 
construction projects and purchase water from the City of Chicago.  No principal payments are 
required in fiscal 2015. 
 
The principal value remaining on the capital lease set to expire in September 2016 was 
approximately $21,300. In September 2011, the Commission entered into a capital lease 
obligation for office equipment which expires in five years. The value of the lease was 
approximately $42,100.  No additional capital lease obligations were entered into in fiscal 2014. 
  
 

COMPARATIVE SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN OUTSTANDING DEBT 
For Fiscal Years Ending April 30,  

 2015 2014 2013 
    

 Certificates of debt $                 - $7,000,000 $28,000,000 
Water revenue bonds   11,954,550   26,048,800   42,430,050 
 Capital lease   12,558  21,305  29,513 

TOTAL OUTSTANDING DEBT $11,967,108 $33,070,105 $70,459,563 
 
Detailed information about the Commission’s debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
 
Fiscal Year 2015 
The Commission’s investment portfolio totaled $94.9 million. At the end of the fiscal year, the 
portfolio was earning 0.81%. The benchmarks adopted by the Commission are based on the 
nature of the accounts and expected duration of the investments.  The indices range from the 3 
month U.S. Treasury Bill index to the 1-10 year U.S. Treasury Bill index. 
 
Commission funds were invested as follows at April 30, 2014: United States treasury obligations 
(50%), United States agency investments (26%), money market funds (15%), municipal bonds 
(7%), commercial paper (1%) and asset/mortgage backed securities (1%). 
 
Fiscal Year 2014 
The Commission’s investment portfolio totaled $66.5 million. At the end of the fiscal year, the 
overall portfolio was earning approximately 0.53%. The benchmarks adopted by the 
Commission are based on the nature of the accounts and expected duration of the investments.  
The indices range from the 3 month U.S. Treasury Bill index to the 1-5 year U.S. Treasury Bill 
index. 
 
Commission funds were invested as follows at April 30, 2014: United States treasury obligations 
(34%), United States agency investments (26%), money market funds (23%), commercial paper 
(10%), and municipal bonds (7%). 
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
The Commission joined with the County of DuPage and the municipalities within the county to 
solve a water quality issue involving unincorporated areas not presently receiving a Lake 
Michigan water supply. As a wholesale distributor of Lake Michigan water, the Commission is 
not able to directly address this issue. However, the Commission agreed to make long-term, low-
interest loans available to customer municipalities, retailers of Lake Michigan water, to extend 
their systems to serve county areas having water quality issues.  The full extent of this 
contamination is unknown at this time. However, the Commission has committed to provide 
loans totaling not more than $10 million toward mitigating the problem.  
 
In total the Commission issued three loans for approximately $5.6 million to charter customers 
during 2003-2007.  Two of the loans were to be repaid in 13 installments, commencing in 2011 
and continuing through 2023.  Both of these loans have been paid in full. The third loan is to be 
repaid in 13 installments, commencing in 2014 and continuing through 2026. As of April 30, 
2015 only $0.5 million remained outstanding from the customers.   
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the DuPage Water 
Commission’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Financial Administrator, 
DuPage Water Commission, 600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL 60126-4642, (630) 834-0100. 
E-mail requests should be sent to admin@dpwc.org. 
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2015 2014
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 19,428,913$    18,825,424$    
Investments 80,361,000      51,074,297      
Receivables

Water sales 12,627,354      12,120,990      
Accrued interest 187,862           126,660           
Sales tax 8,295,000        7,900,000        

Long-term loans receivable, current portion 49,044             49,044             
Inventory 158,129           167,080           
Prepaid expenses and deposits 338,458           347,284           

Total current assets 121,445,760    90,610,779      

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Long-term loans receivable 490,437           539,481           

Capital assets
Not being depreciated 12,464,421      12,051,670      
Being depreciated 488,855,835    488,518,909    
Less accumulated depreciation (150,125,369)  (142,154,049)  

Net capital assets 351,194,887    358,416,530    

Total noncurrent assets 351,685,324    358,956,011    

Total assets 473,131,084    449,566,790    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unamortized loss on refunding 529,908           1,019,055        

Total deferred outflows of resources 529,908           1,019,055        

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 473,660,992    450,585,845    

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2015 and 2014

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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2015 2014
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Unearned revenue 350,507$         350,507$         
Contract retentions 5,958               5,958               
Customer deposits 64,191             65,091             
Accounts payable 8,089,037        7,327,769        
Accrued liabilities 753,050           629,305           
Compensated absences 228,956           220,199           
Capital lease payable 9,318               8,746               
Revenue refunding bonds payable 11,056,250      14,094,250      
Accrued interest payable 9,763               21,273             

Total current liabilities 20,567,030      22,723,098      

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Other postemployment benefits obligation 54,264             52,362             
Unearned revenue 2,804,054        3,154,561        
Capital lease payable 3,240               12,559             
Revenue refunding bonds payable, net 898,300           11,954,550      
Notes payable -                  7,000,000        

Total long-term liabilities 3,759,858        22,174,032      

Total liabilities 24,326,888      44,897,130      

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 339,757,687    326,365,480    
Unrestricted 109,576,417    79,323,235      

TOTAL NET POSITION 449,334,104$  405,688,715$  

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)

April 30, 2015 and 2014

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 2014
OPERATING REVENUES

Water sales
Operations and maintenance costs 108,327,436$    97,794,815$      
Fixed costs 7,143,137          7,144,872          
Customer differential 1,325,421          1,069,644          

Other income 71,314               55,933               

Total operating revenues 116,867,308      106,065,264      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water supply costs 97,146,590        90,772,120        
Personal services 3,832,775          3,721,139          
Insurance 544,245             521,903             
Professional and contractual services 554,877             506,567             
Administrative costs 431,261             468,833             

Total operating expenses 102,509,748      95,990,562        

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 14,357,560        10,074,702        

DEPRECIATION 8,009,501          7,952,088          

OPERATING INCOME 6,348,059          2,122,614          

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Sales tax 36,791,962        34,945,975        
Investment income 863,779             123,042             
Interest and other charges (697,636)            (997,221)            
Gain (Loss) on disposal of capital assets 5,475                 (89)                     

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 36,963,580        34,071,707        

NET INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 43,311,639        36,194,321        

Contributions 333,750             31,860               

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 43,645,389        36,226,181        

NET POSITION, MAY 1 405,688,715      369,462,534      

NET POSITION, APRIL 30 449,334,104$    405,688,715$    

For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 115,938,223$     103,398,491$     
Cash payments to suppliers (98,851,798)       (92,203,195)       
Cash payments to employees (2,744,501)         (2,672,180)         
Other cash receipts 71,314               55,933               

Net cash from operating activities 14,413,238         8,579,049          

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales taxes 36,396,962         34,545,975         
Cash received from water quality loans 49,044               49,045               

Net cash from noncapital financing activities 36,446,006         34,595,020         

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid on revenue bonds (192,024)            (416,856)            
Interest paid on notes payable (26,860)              (204,651)            
Interest paid on capital lease payable (1,115)                (1,652)                
Principal paid on revenue refunding bonds (14,094,250)       (16,381,250)       
Principal paid on notes payable (7,000,000)         (21,000,000)       
Principal paid on capital lease payable (8,747)                (8,208)                
Construction and purchases of capital assets (448,633)            (707,217)            

Net cash from capital and related
  financing activities (21,771,629)       (38,719,834)       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on investments 587,558             324,614             
Proceeds from sale of investments 60,171,277         46,536,091         
Purchase of investments (89,242,961)       (52,840,975)       

Net cash from investing activities (28,484,126)       (5,980,270)         

NET INCREASE IN CASH
  AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 603,489             (1,526,035)         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, MAY 1 18,825,424         20,351,459         

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, APRIL 30 19,428,913$       18,825,424$       

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

(This statement is continued on the following page.)
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2015 2014

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME 
  TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income 6,348,059$         2,122,614$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
  net cash from operating activities

Depreciation 8,009,501          7,952,088          
Changes in assets and liabilities

Increase in water sales receivable (506,364)            (2,105,835)         
Decrease in inventory 8,951                 -                     
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid expenses and deposits 8,826                 (40,336)              
Decrease in due from other governments -                     64,680               
Decrease in unearned revenue (350,507)            (350,507)            
Increase in accounts payable 761,268             844,183             
Increase in accrued liabilities and compensated absences 132,502             244,937             
Increase in other postemployment benefits obligation 1,902                 1,723                 
Decrease in customer deposits (900)                   (154,498)            

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14,413,238$       8,579,049$         

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contributions 333,750$           31,860$             

NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments 215,019$           (47,728)$            

For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 

 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
April 30, 2015 and 2014 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The DuPage Water Commission (the Commission) is a county water commission, body 

politic and corporate, political subdivision and unit of local government, in 
DuPage County, Illinois, existing and operating under the Water Commission Act of 1985 
(70 ILCS 3720), effective July 30, 1985, as amended (the 1985 Commission Act). The 
Commission declared the official start of operations on May 1, 1992. 

 
 The Board of Commissioners consists of 13 members. Seven of the Board members are 

appointed by the DuPage County Board Chairman with the advice and consent of the 
County Board. One of these appointees is designated as Chairman of the Commission and 
must be approved by the Board of Commissioners. The other six Board members are 
appointed by vote of the mayors of municipalities within the DuPage County districts. 

 
 The purpose and objectives of the Commission are: 
 

a. To provide water to municipalities and other customers within DuPage County. 
 
b. To plan, construct, acquire, develop, operate, maintain, and/or contract for facilities 

for receiving, storing, and transmitting water from Lake Michigan for the principal 
use and mutual benefit of the municipalities and other customers. 

 
c. To provide adequate supplies of such water on an economical and efficient basis for 

the municipalities and other customers. 
 
d. To provide a forum for discussion, study development, and implementation of 

recommendations of mutual interest regarding water distribution and supply facilities 
within DuPage County. 

 
 The primary authority to designate management, influence operations, formulate budgets, 

and set water rates rests with the Board of Commissioners. Significant matters that require 
Board action include setting water rates, borrowing funds, amending the Chicago Water 
Supply Contract or Commission by-laws, and employing the general manager, treasurer, 
financial administrator, and professional contractors. These significant matters must carry a 
majority vote of all commissioners, which majority must contain at least one-third of the 
DuPage County appointed Board members and 40% of the municipality appointed Board 
members. 
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to 
government units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The more significant of the Commission’s accounting policies are described 
below. 

 
 a. Reporting Entity 
 
  The Commission is considered to be a primary government pursuant to GASB 

Statement No. 14 since it is legally separate and fiscally independent. These financial 
statements include all functions, programs, and activities under the control of the 
Board of Commissioners. 

 
 b. Basis of Accounting 
 
  The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by 

its measurement focus. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of 
economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and 
all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the 
statement of net position. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases 
(e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in total net position. 

 
  The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method, 

revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred. Operating revenues/expenses include all revenues/expenses directly 
related to providing enterprise fund services. Non-operating revenues/expenses are 
incidental to the operation of the fund. 

 
 c. Fund Accounting 
 
  Enterprise Funds 
 
  Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated 

in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 
Commission is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the Commission has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net income or loss 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes.  
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
  For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Commission’s proprietary funds 

consider all certificates of deposit and all highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

 
 e. Investments 
 
  Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at cost or 

amortized cost. Investments and negotiable certificates of deposits with a maturity 
date greater than one year from the date of purchase are recorded at fair value. 

 
 f. Accounts Receivable 
 
  Customer receivables are recorded as receivables and revenues at their original 

invoice amount. Management has determined no allowance for uncollectible 
accounts necessary as of April 30, 2015 and 2014. A receivable is considered to be 
past due if any portion of the receivable balance is outstanding for more than 40 days. 

 
 g. Prepaid Expenses 
 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of 
this report, if any, are recorded as prepaid expenses. 
 

 h. Inventory  
 
  Inventories are accounted for at cost, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. 
 
 i. Capital Assets - Property, Plant, and Equipment 
 
  Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost. If actual cost cannot be 

determined, estimated historical cost is used; donated capital assets are valued at 
their estimated fair market value on the date donated. Capital assets are defined by 
the Commission as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Depreciation of property, plant, and 
equipment has been provided for over the estimated useful lives using the 
straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

 
  Years 
   
Water mains  80 
Buildings and other structures  40 
Pumping equipment  30 
Office furniture and equipment  3-10 
Vehicles and other equipment  5-25 
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 i. Capital Assets - Property, Plant, and Equipment (Continued) 
 
  Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense in the year incurred. Expenses that 

extend the useful life or increase productivity of property, plant, and equipment are 
capitalized. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is 
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. 

 
 j. Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums, and Losses on Refundings 
 
  Bond discounts, bond premiums, and losses on refundings are deferred and 

amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds outstanding method, which 
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and losses on refundings 
are presented as a reduction of the face amount of bonds payable; bond premiums are 
presented as an addition to the face amount of bonds payable. Bond issuance costs 
are expensed in the period incurred.  

 
 k. Compensated Absences 
 
  Employees earn vacation based on their anniversary date with the Commission. 

Earned vacation may be accumulated and is payable to the employee upon 
termination of employment and, therefore, is accrued through April 30. Accumulated 
sick leave is not reimbursable upon termination of employment and, therefore, is not 
accrued. 

 
 l. Unearned Revenue 
 

Payments from member communities due in subsequent years and received in the 
current year are reported as unearned revenue. 
 

 m. Net Position 
 
  Restricted net position represent amounts required to be segregated by bond 

ordinance provisions. None of the net position is restricted as a result of enabling 
legislation adopted by the Commission. If restricted or unrestricted funds are 
available for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Net investment in capital 
assets represents the net book value of capital assets less long-term debt principal 
outstanding issued to construct or acquire capital assets. 
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
 n. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to 
a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) 
until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net 
assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission does not have any deferred 
inflows of resources that meet this criteria. 

 
o. Accounting Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

 
2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The Commission’s investment policy limits investments of the Commission’s funds to the 
following: (a) direct or fully guaranteed obligations of the U.S. Government; (b) fully 
guaranteed obligations of certain U.S. federally chartered agencies; (c) interest-bearing 
demand or time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations; (d) short-term 
obligations of U.S. corporations with assets exceeding $500,000,000 and with a rating of 
A1/P1; (e) money market mutual funds whose portfolio consists solely of U.S. Government 
obligations; (f) the Illinois Funds Investment Pool of the State of Illinois; (g) state and local 
obligations rated A- to A3 or better; and (h) repurchase agreements.  
 
It is the policy of the Commission to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the 
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow 
demands of the Commission and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the 
investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the overall 
portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, safety, liquidity, and 
rate of return. 
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
 a. Deposits with Financial Institutions 
 
  Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the 

event of bank failure, the Commission’s deposits may not be returned to it. The 
Commission’s investment policy allows for the pledging of collateral for all bank 
balances in excess of federal depository insurance, with collateral held by a third 
party under a trust agreement or safekeeping agreement. The bank balance of cash 
and certificates of deposit was fully insured or collateralized at April 30, 2015 and 
2014. 

 
 b. Investments 
 
  The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Commission’s 

debt securities as of April 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 

 2015 
  Investment Maturities (in Years) 
 

Investment Type 
Fair  

Value 
Less than 

1 
 

1-5 
 

6-10 
Greater than 

10 
      
U.S. Treasury notes $ 47,723,168 $ 207,738 $ 45,520,653 $ 1,994,777 $ - 
U.S. agency   24,328,605   615,643   23,712,962   -   - 
Municipal bond   6,349,125   1,182,457   5,116,005   50,663   - 
Commercial paper   1,199,581   1,199,581   -   -   - 
Asset backed/mortgage  
  backed securities 

 
  760,521 

 
  - 

 
  735,294 

 
  25,227 

 
  - 

      
TOTAL $ 80,361,000 $ 3,205,419 $ 75,084,914 $ 2,070,667 $ - 

 
 2014 
  Investment Maturities (in Years) 
 

Investment Type 
Fair  

Value 
Less than 

1 
 

1-5 
 

6-10 
Greater than 

10 
      
U.S. Treasury notes $ 22,893,238 $ 1,289,851 $ 21,603,387 $ - $ - 
U.S. agency   17,115,855   1,679,710   15,436,145   -   - 
Commercial paper   6,597,829   6,597,829   -   -   - 
Municipal bond   4,467,375   650,292   3,817,083   -   - 
      
TOTAL $ 51,074,297 $ 10,217,682 $ 40,856,615 $ - $ - 

 
 
  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Commission 
limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity  
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
 b. Investments (Continued) 
 
  for short and long-term cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of return 

based on the current market. Investments cannot have a maturity greater than five 
years except commercial paper which is limited to 210 days and investments within 
the Long-Term Water Capital Reserve, which may have a maximum maturity of 10 
years provided that such investments have a maximum five-year weighted average 
maturity. 

 
  Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon 

maturity. The Commission limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in 
U.S. Government obligations and external investment pools. The money market fund 
and Illinois Funds are AAA rated. The commercial paper is rated A1 and the 
municipal bonds are rated A to AAA or are not rated. 

 
  Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 

counterparty to the investment, the Commission will not be able to recover the value 
of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the 
Commission’s investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to 
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with 
the underlying investments held by an independent third-party custodian in the 
Commission’s name and evidenced by safekeeping receipts. Money market funds are 
not subject to custodial credit risk.  

 
  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss due to a high percentage of the 

Commission’s investments being invested with any one issuer. The Commission’s 
investment policy places no limit on the amount the Commission may invest in any 
one issuer, except for commercial paper which is limited to 5% of the total portfolio. 

 
3. LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
 On April 25, 2002, the Commission approved a motion for a proposed agreement to make 

long-term, low-interest loans available to Charter Customer municipalities for the purpose 
of providing financing under certain circumstances to future customers who presently live 
in areas of DuPage County not presently served by the Commission. Three 
intergovernmental agreements with Charter Customers were made during 2003-2007. Two 
of the loans were to be repaid in 13 installments, commencing in 2011 and continuing 
through 2023. Both of these loans have been paid in full. The third loan is to be repaid in 
13 installments, commencing in 2014 and continuing through 2026. Interest at a rate of 2% 
per annum shall be paid annually until the principal balance of the loan has been paid in 
full. As of April 30, 2015 and 2014, loans totaling $539,481 and $588,525 were due from 
the customers, respectively.  
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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3. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)  
 
 Payments due from Charter Customers are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year  2015 
Ending April 30  Principal Interest 

    
2016  $ 49,044 $ 10,790 
2017    49,044   9,809 
2018    49,044   8,828 
2019    49,044   7,847 
2020    49,044   6,866 
2021-2025    245,217   19,617 
2026    49,044   981 
    
TOTAL  $ 539,481 $ 64,738 

 
 

Fiscal Year  2014 
Ending April 30  Principal Interest 

    
2015  $ 49,044 $ 11,771 
2016    49,044   10,790 
2017    49,044   9,809 
2018    49,044   8,828 
2019    49,044   7,847 
2020-2024    245,218   24,521 
2025-2026    98,087   2,942 
    
TOTAL  $ 588,525 $ 76,508 

 
4. CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Capital asset activity for years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:  
 

 2015 
 Balances 

May 1 
 

Additions 
 

Retirements 
Balances 
April 30  

     
Capital assets not being depreciated     
 Land and permanent easements $ 11,728,902 $ - $ - $ 11,728,902 
 Construction in progress   322,768   455,008   42,257   735,519 
  Total capital assets not being 
    depreciated 

 
  12,051,670 

 
  455,008 

 
  42,257 

 
  12,464,421 
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)  
 

 2015 
 Balances 

May 1 
 

Additions 
 

Retirements 
Balances 
April 30  

     
Capital assets being depreciated     
 Water mains  $ 364,135,069 $ - $ - $ 364,135,069 
 Buildings and other structures   102,504,660   365,610   -   102,870,270 
 Pumping equipment   16,614,240   -   -   16,614,240 
 Office furniture and equipment   4,596,723   9,497   -   4,606,220 
 Vehicles and other equipment   668,217   -   38,181   630,036 
  Total capital assets being 
    depreciated 

 
  488,518,909 

 
  375,107 

 
  38,181 

 
  488,855,835 

     
Less accumulated depreciation     
 Water mains    87,177,186   4,547,727   -   91,724,913 
 Buildings and other structures   44,854,073   2,576,346   -   47,430,419 
 Pumping equipment   5,355,538   748,927   -   6,104,465 
 Office furniture and equipment   4,244,317   84,983   -   4,329,300 
 Vehicles and other equipment   522,935   51,518   38,181   536,272 
  Total accumulated depreciation   142,154,049   8,009,501   38,181   150,125,369 
     
  Total capital assets being 
    depreciated, net 

 
  346,364,860 

 
  (7,634,394) 

 
  - 

 
  338,730,466 

     
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 358,416,530 $ (7,179,386) $ 42,257 $ 351,194,887 

 
 2014 
 Balances 

May 1 
 

Additions 
 

Retirements 
Balances 
April 30  

     
Capital assets not being depreciated     
 Land and permanent easements $ 11,728,902 $ - $ - $ 11,728,902 
 Construction in progress   1,521,580   595,982   1,794,794   322,768 
  Total capital assets not being 
    depreciated 

 
  13,250,482 

 
  595,982 

 
  1,794,794 

 
  12,051,670 

     
Capital assets being depreciated     
 Water mains    364,135,069   -   -   364,135,069 
 Buildings and other structures   102,495,971   8,689   -   102,504,660 
 Pumping equipment   15,177,305   1,436,935   -   16,614,240 
 Office furniture and equipment   4,665,865   329,687   398,829   4,596,723 
 Vehicles and other equipment   616,086   52,131   -   668,217 
  Total capital assets being 
    depreciated 

 
  487,090,296 

 
  1,827,442 

 
  398,829 

 
  488,518,909 
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)  
 

 2014 
 Balances 

May 1 
 

Additions 
 

Retirements 
Balances 
April 30  

     
Capital assets being depreciated      
 Water mains $ 82,629,459 $ 4,547,727 $ - $ 87,177,186 
 Buildings and other structures   42,280,720   2,573,353   -   44,854,073 
 Pumping equipment   4,644,930   710,608   -   5,355,538 
 Office furniture and equipment   4,572,718   70,339   398,740   4,244,317 
 Vehicles and other equipment   472,874   50,061   -   522,935 
  Total accumulated depreciation   134,600,701   7,952,088   398,740   142,154,049 
     
  Total capital assets being 
    depreciated, net 

 
  352,489,595 

 
  (6,124,646) 

 
  89 

 
  346,364,860 

     
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 365,740,077 $ (5,528,664) $ 1,794,883 $ 358,416,530 

 
5. WATER CONTRACT WITH THE CITY OF CHICAGO 
 
 The Commission has entered into a 40-year contract (from March 19, 1984) with the City 

of Chicago, Illinois (the Chicago Contract), under which the City of Chicago (the City) has 
agreed to supply all of the Commission’s water requirements, up to 1.7 times the year’s 
annual average day amount, with water of such quality as will meet or exceed applicable 
standards of the state and federal governments. The Chicago Contract provides that the cost 
of water to the Commission is furnished by the City through meters.  

 
 The Commission is obligated to purchase a minimum amount of water; such minimum is 

50% of the aggregate Illinois Department of Natural Resources allocations. In fiscal 2015 
and 2014, the Commission purchased 26.7 and 28.6 billion gallons of water, respectively 
from the City, which equaled 80.0% and 84.3%, respectively of the aggregate Illinois 
Department of Natural Resources allocations. 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
 The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; injuries to and illnesses of the 
Commission’s employees. These risks, along with medical claims for employees and 
retirees, are provided for through insurance purchased from private insurance companies. 

 
 There have been no reductions in the Commission’s insurance coverage for any of its 

programs since the prior fiscal year. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage 
during the current year or prior three fiscal years. 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 a. A schedule of changes in long-term obligations payable is as follows: 
 

 2015 
     Due 
 Balances   Balances Within 
 May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 One Year 
Other postemployment   
  benefits obligation 

 
$ 52,362 

 
$ 1,902 

 
$ - 

 
$ 54,264 

 
$ - 

      
Notes payable   7,000,000   -   7,000,000   -   - 
      
Capital Lease   21,305    -   8,747   12,558   9,318 
      
Revenue refunding bonds   26,048,800   -   14,094,250   11,954,550   11,056,250 
      
TOTAL $ 33,122,467 $ 1,902 $ 21,102,997 $ 12,021,372 $ 11,065,568 

 
 2014 
     Due 
 Balances   Balances Within 
 May 1 Issuances Retirements April 30 One Year 
Other postemployment  
  benefits obligation 

 
$ 50,639 

 
$ 1,723 

 
$ - 

 
$ 52,362 

 
$ - 

      
Notes payable   28,000,000   -   21,000,000   7,000,000   - 
      
Capital Lease   29,513    -   8,208   21,305   8,746 
      
Revenue refunding bonds   42,430,050   -   16,381,250   26,048,800   14,094,250 
      
TOTAL $ 70,510,202 $ 1,723 $ 37,389,458 $ 33,122,467 $ 14,102,996 

 
 b. Notes Payable 
 
  On December 21, 2009, the Commission issued $30,000,000 Debt Certificates, 

Series 2009 to provide for the acquisition of water and for improvements and 
extensions to the existing facilities of the Commission. On June 21, 2013 the 2009 
Debt Certificates were redeemed and prepaid in full. Principal was due in one 
installment on December 21, 2015; with a variable rate of interest that is determined 
and reset annually (1.5% as of April 30, 2013). The 2009 Debt Certificates also 
allowed optional redemption and prepayments, in whole and in part, on any 
semiannual interest payment date.  
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 b. Notes Payable (Continued) 
 
  On May 17, 2010, the Commission issued $40,000,000 Debt Certificates, Series 

2010 to provide for the acquisition of water and for improvements and extensions to 
the existing facilities of the Commission. On October 1, 2014 the 2010 Debt 
Certificates were redeemed and prepaid in full. The remaining principal was due in 
one installment on May 1, 2016. Interest was due on May 1 and November 1, 2014 
with a variable rate of interest that is determined periodically (0.9% as of April 30, 
2014). As of April 30, 2014, $7,000,000 of principal was outstanding. 

 
 c. Revenue Bonds 
 

In February 2013, the Commission issued $42,430,050 Revenue Refunding Bonds 
Series 2013. Principal is due in monthly installments of $898,250 to $3,580,000, 
interest at 0.98% through maturity at May 15, 2016. The Series 2013 revenue bonds 
were issued to refund $50,375,000 of outstanding Revenue Bond, Series 2003 (call 
date May 1, 2013) with an average interest rate of 3.98%. As such, the Series 2003 
were retired and the liability for the debt has been removed from the Commission’s 
books. As a result of the refunding, the Commission achieved cash flow savings of 
$3,181,221 and an economic gain of $3,181,241. 

 
  As of April 30, 2015 and 2014, $11,954,550 and $26,048,800, respectively, of 

principal remained outstanding on the Series 2013 bonds. In addition, the bonds are 
subject to certain terms and conditions contained in the Master Revenue Bond 
Ordinance (the Ordinance), which was approved in December 2012 by the Board and 
adopted when the Commission refinanced the Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, and 
issued the Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, in February 2013. Substantially all revenue 
generated from the Commission’s operations are pledged to retire these bonds. 

 
  Payments due on the revenue bonds through maturity are as follows: 
 

   SERIES 2013 BONDS  
Fiscal Year  2015 

Ending April 30,  Principal Interest 
    
2016  $ 11,056,250 $ 66,248 
2017    898,300   734 
    
TOTAL  $ 11,954,550 $ 66,982 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
 c. Revenue Bonds (Continued) 
   

 SERIES 2013 BONDS  
Fiscal Year  2014 

Ending April 30,  Principal Interest 
    
2015  $ 14,094,250 $ 192,025 
2016    11,056,250   66,248 
2017    898,300   734 
    
TOTAL  $ 26,048,800 $ 259,007 

 
 d. Revenue Bond Ordinance 
 
  On December 18, 2012, the Commission adopted the Ordinance authorizing the 

issuance of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, for the purpose of replacing the 1987 
Ordinance and refunding the Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2003.   

 
  The Ordinance required the establishment various accounts within the Water Fund 

designated as Operation and Maintenance Account, Interest Account, Principal 
Account, Bank Obligation Account, and General Account. 

 
  Revenues held or collected from owners and operation of the system are deposited in 

the Water Fund. Monies deposited in the Water Fund are required to be transferred to 
the extent available within the following accounts of the Water Fund in the indicated 
order:  

 
Operation and Maintenance Account - There shall be credited to the Operation 
and Maintenance Account an amount sufficient to pay operation and 
maintenance costs which shall not cause the balance in such account at any 
time to be greater than the operation and maintenance maximum amount. 
 
Interest Account - There shall next be credited to the Interest Account and paid 
immediately to the Purchaser the then current interest due on the Bonds plus, at 
the Commission's option, the interest due for the next following month. All 
moneys to the credit of said Account shall be used solely to pay interest on 
Outstanding Bonds. 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 

 d.  Revenue Bond Ordinance (Continued)  
 

Principal Account - There shall next be credited to the Principal Account at the 
Commission's option, all or a portion of the principal due for the next 
following Fiscal Year. All moneys to the credit of the Principal Account shall 
be used solely to pay principal on Outstanding Bonds. 
 
Bank Obligations Account - There shall next be credited to the Bank 
Obligations Account and paid immediately to the Purchaser any amounts due 
on Bank Obligations. All moneys to the credit of said Account shall be used 
solely to pay amounts due on Bank Obligations. 
 
General Account - All moneys remaining in the Water Fund after crediting the 
required amounts to the respective Accounts hereinabove provided for and after 
making up any deficiency in any of said Accounts, including for past due 
amounts that remain unpaid, shall be credited to the General Account. 

 
  All the accounts are held by the Commission.  
 
 e. Capital Lease 
 
  In September 2011, the Commission entered into a capital lease obligation for office 

equipment which expires in five years. Future minimum lease payments under capital 
leases for the next five years in total are as follows:  

 
   Fiscal Year   
Ending April 30  Principal 
   
2016  $ 9,849 
2017    3,283 
Total Minimum Future Lease Payments    13,132 
Less Interest    574 
Present Value of Minimum Future 
   Lease Payments 

  
$ 12,558 
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8. CONTINGENCIES 
 
 Contingent Liabilities 
 
 The Commission has certain other contingent liabilities resulting from litigation, claims, 

and commitments incident to the ordinary course of business. It is expected that final 
resolution of such contingencies will not materially affect the financial position or changes 
in financial position of the Commission. 

 
9. MAJOR CUSTOMER 
 
 During fiscal year 2015 and 2014, approximately 5.1 and 5.6 billion gallons, or 19.68% 

and 20.05%, respectively of water sales revenue in the Water Fund were realized from the 
City of Naperville, the Commission’s largest customer. 

 
10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
 
 Plan Description. The Commission’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees 

provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries. The Commission’s plan is affiliated with the Illinois 
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions 
are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of 
Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained online at 
www.imrf.org. 

 
 IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are 

eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of 
service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full 
benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for 
each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 

 
 Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 

employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members who 
retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of credited 
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount 
equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 
years, and 2% for each year thereafter. 
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10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)  
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)  
 
 Funding Policy. As set by statute, the Commission’s regular plan members are required to 

contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary. The statute requires the Commission to 
contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance the 
retirement coverage of its own employees. The Commission’s annual required contribution 
rate for calendar year 2014 was 11.52%. The Commission also contributes for disability 
benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the 
IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board 
of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.   

 
Annual Pension Cost. For April 30, 2015 and 2014, the Commission’s annual pension cost 
of $306,020 and $311,561, respectively was equal to the Commission’s required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the 
December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. 
The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012 included (a) 7.5% investment rate of 
return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases 
of 4% a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 
0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and 
(d) postretirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the 
Commission’s plan assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-
term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% 
corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The Commission regular plan’s 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2012 is being amortized as a level of 
percentage of projected payroll on an open 29 year basis. 

 
 Employer annual pension costs (APC), actual contributions, and the net pension obligation 

(NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the APC and the 
contributions actually made. 

 
  

Fiscal 
Year 

Illinois 
Municipal 
Retirement 

   
Annual pension cost (APC) 2013 $ 304,608 
 2014   311,561 
 2015   306,020 
   
Actual contributions 2013 $ 304,608 
 2014   311,561 
 2015   306,020 
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10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)  
 
 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)  
 

  
Fiscal 
Year 

Illinois 
Municipal 
Retirement 

   
Percentage of APC contributed 2013 100.00% 
 2014 100.00% 
 2015 100.00% 
   
NPO 2013 $ - 
 2014   - 
 2015   - 

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status and funding progress of the plan 
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows: 

 
 2014 2013 
   
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 7,987,331 $ 7,684,981 
Actuarial value of plan assets   6,684,330   6,582,996 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)   1,303,001   1,101,985 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)   83.69%   85.66% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 2,696,649 $ 2,563,971 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll   48.32%   42.98% 

 
 The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 

following the notes to financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the AAL for benefits. 

 
11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 
 a. Plan Description 
 
  In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Commission provides 

postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single-
employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels, employee 
contributions, and employer contributions are governed by the Commission and can 
be amended by the Commission. Certain benefits are controlled by state laws and can 
only be changed by the Illinois Legislature. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust 
fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the Plan. The 
Plan does not issue a separate report.  
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)  
 
 b. Benefits Provided 
 
  The Commission provides pre and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to 

retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee’s retirement). To 
be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the 
Commission’s retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a 
retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Commission’s 
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those 
expenses that are covered under both. 

 
 c. Membership 
 
  At April 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation, membership consisted of: 
 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving  
  benefits    2 
Terminated employees entitled  
  to benefits but not yet receiving them   - 
Active vested plan members   23 
Active nonvested plan members   11 
  
TOTAL   36 
  
Participating employers   1 

 
 d. Funding Policy 
 
  The Commission is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of 

benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not 
contribute to the Plan until retirement. 

 
 e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation 
 
  The Commission’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 

contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2015, 2014 and 2013 was as 
follows: 

 
Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

 Annual 
OPEB 
Cost 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB 

Cost Contributed 

 
Net OPEB 
Obligation 

     
April 30, 2013  $ 8,133   78.30% $ 50,639 
April 30, 2014    8,093   78.71%   52,362 
April 30, 2015    8,272   77.00%   54,264 
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
 e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued) 
 
  The net OPEB obligation as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 was calculated as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
   
Annual required contribution $ 7,755 $ 7,755 
Interest on net OPEB obligation   2,094   2,026 
Adjustment to annual required contribution   (1,577)   (1,688) 
   
Annual OPEB cost   8,272   8,093 
Contributions made   6,370   6,370 
   
Increase in net OPEB obligation   1,902   1,723 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year   52,362   50,639 
   
NET OPEB OBLIGATION, END OF YEAR $ 54,264 $ 52,362 

 
  Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30, 

2013, the most recent actuarial valuation, was as follows: 
 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 86,237 
Actuarial value of plan assets   - 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)   86,237 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)   0.00% 
Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 2,643,508 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll   3.26% 

 
  Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 

amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan 
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 
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11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued) 
 
 e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued) 
 
  Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting 

purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer 
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer 
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective 
of the calculations. 

 
  In the April 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal actuarial cost method 

was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 4% and 
an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8% with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 
6%. Both rates include a 3% inflation assumption and 4% wage inflation assumption. 
The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Commission has not advance 
funded its obligation. The Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period at April 30, 2013 was 30 years. 

 
12. CUSTOMER PREPAYMENTS 
 
 Payments from non-Charter Customers for customer differential revenues are reported as 

unearned revenues. These unearned revenues will be amortized on a straight-line basis 
through April 30, 2024. Customer differentials represent payments for connecting to the 
Commission’s system as well as fixed costs charged to subsequent customers to cover 
costs which would have been paid by subsequent customers if they had been Charter 
Customers. 

 
13. SALES TAX 
 
 Beginning June 1, 2016, the sales tax imposed may no longer be imposed or collected, 

unless a continuation of the tax is approved by the voters at a referendum. 
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(2) UAAL 
Actuarial (4) as a

(1) Accrued (3) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered
Valuation Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll

December 31 Assets Entry-Age (1) / (2) (2) - (1) Payroll (4) / (5)

2009 5,026,706$       6,359,912$        79.04% 1,333,206$       2,760,942$       48.29%

2010 4,142,473         5,795,662          71.48% 1,653,189         2,537,383         65.15%

2011 4,783,201         6,361,630          75.19% 1,578,429         2,484,345         63.54%

2012 5,501,960         6,949,144          79.17% 1,447,184         2,514,715         57.55%

2013 6,582,996         7,684,981          85.66% 1,101,985         2,563,971         42.98%

2014 6,684,330         7,987,331          83.69% 1,303,001         2,696,649         48.32%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2014 is $7,798,666.  On a market
basis, the funded ratio would be 97.64%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service 
credit with the DuPage Water Commission. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial accrued 
liability for retirees is 100% funded.

April 30, 2015

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 28 -

Preliminary and Tentative 
For Discussion Purposes Only 



Annual
Required

Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

2010 265,581$            265,581$         100.00%

2011 271,059              271,059           100.00%

2012 282,693              282,693           100.00%

2013 304,608              304,608           100.00%

2014 311,561              311,561           100.00%

2015 306,020              306,020           100.00%

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

April 30, 2015

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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(2) UAAL
Actuarial (4) as a

Actuarial (1) Accrued (3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (5) of Covered

Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets Entry-Age (1) / (2) (2) - (1) Payroll (4) / (5)

2010 -$            78,076$       0.00% 78,076$      2,820,206$     2.77%

2011 * * * * * *

2012 * * * * * *

2013 -              86,237         0.00% 86,237        2,643,508       3.26%

2014 * * * * * *

2015 * * * * * *

*The requirements under GASB Statement No. 45 require an actuarial valuation every three years. 
Therefore, no actuarial valuation was done as of April 30, 2011, 2012, 2014 and 2015.

April 30, 2015

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Annual
Required

Fiscal Employer Contribution Percentage
Year Contributions (ARC) Contributed

 
2010 6,370$             8,760$          72.72%

2011 6,370               7,755            82.14%

2012 6,370               7,755            82.14%

2013 6,370               7,755            82.14%

2014 6,370               7,755            82.14%

2015 6,370               7,755            82.14%

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

April 30, 2015

ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

(See independent auditor's report.)
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2014
Budget Actual Variance Actual

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales

Operations and maintenance costs 109,793,259$    108,327,436$    (1,465,823)$       97,794,815$      
Fixed costs 7,143,137          7,143,137          -                     7,144,872          
Customer differential 921,086             1,325,421          404,335             1,069,644          

Other income -                     71,314               71,314               55,933               

Total operating revenues 117,857,482      116,867,308      (990,174)            106,065,264      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water supply costs 100,961,724      97,146,590        (3,815,134)         90,772,120        
Personal services 4,096,998          3,832,775          (264,223)            3,721,139          
Insurance 633,200             544,245             (88,955)              521,903             
Professional and contractual services 879,760             554,877             (324,883)            506,567             
Administrative costs 653,465             431,261             (222,204)            468,833             

Total operating expenses 107,225,147      102,509,748      (4,715,399)         95,990,562        

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION 10,632,335        14,357,560        3,725,225          10,074,702        

DEPRECIATION 8,236,000          8,009,501          (226,499)            7,952,088          

OPERATING INCOME 2,396,335          6,348,059          3,951,724          2,122,614          

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Sales tax 33,000,000        36,791,962        3,791,962          34,945,975        
Investment income 336,000             863,779             527,779             123,042             
Interest and other charges (901,500)            (697,636)            203,864             (997,221)            
Loss on disposal of capital assets -                     5,475                 5,475                 (89)                     

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 32,434,500        36,963,580        4,529,080          34,071,707        

NET INCOME  BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 34,830,835        43,311,639        8,480,804          36,194,321        

Contributions 298,391             333,750             35,359               31,860               

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 35,129,226$      43,645,389        8,516,163$        36,226,181        

NET POSITION, MAY 1 405,688,715      369,462,534      

NET POSITION, APRIL 30 449,334,104$    405,688,715$    

For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

2015

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Year Sales Tax 
Ended Revenues

2015 36,791,962$      
2014 34,945,975        
2013 33,098,620        
2012 31,878,312
2011 30,780,825        

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

SALES TAX REVENUES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30
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2010 2020 2030

Addison 4.230 4.457 4.682
Argonne National Laboratory (2) 0.758 0.758 0.758
Bensenville 2.571 2.616 2.660
Bloomingdale 2.767 3.048 3.327
Carol Stream 4.213 4.600 4.926
Clarendon Hills 0.832 0.888 0.942
Darien 2.934 3.254 3.293
Downers Grove 6.589 7.265 7.937
DuPage County

Glen Ellyn Heights 0.210 0.283 0.395
Steeple Run 0.183 0.189 0.195
S.E.R.W.F. 0.643 0.708 0.782
Hobson Valley 0.051 0.126 0.195
York Township 0.172 0.172 0.172

Elmhurst 4.699 4.749 4.797
Glenn Ellyn 2.985 3.164 3.349
Glendale Heights 2.869 2.977 3.086
Hinsdale 2.762 2.923 3.081
Illinois American

Arrowhead 0.190 0.190 0.190
Country Club Estates 0.105 0.105 0.105
Dupage/Lisle 0.555 0.585 0.615
Liberty Ridge East 0.042 0.048 0.054
Liberty Ridge West 0.305 0.349 0.400
Lombard Heights 0.065 0.065 0.065
Valley View 0.700 0.700 0.700

Itasca 1.666 1.951 2.143
Lisle 3.024 3.261 3.497
Lombard 4.777 5.177 5.572
Naperville 18.803 21.683 24.560
Oak Brook 4.205 4.508 4.675
Oak Brook Terrace 0.281 0.293 0.293
Roselle 2.206 2.357 2.508
Villa Park 2.146 2.206 2.284
Westmont 2.945 3.069 3.173
Wheaton 5.821 6.008 6.191
Willowbrook 1.267 1.452 1.636
Winfield 1.011 1.188 1.366
Wood Dale 1.613 1.680 1.747
Woodridge 3.876 4.479 4.479

Total average mgd 95.071 103.531 110.830

(1)  State Water allocations are expressed in terms of average quantity per day.  Actual use in a day may exceed 
       average daily use.
(2) The state has determined that no water allocation permit is required for Argonne National Laboratory to draw 
      water from Lake Michigan.  The figures set forth in this table represent the maximum amount of water the 
      Commission is obligated to sell to Argonne National Laboratory.

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

STATE WATER ALLOCATIONS

(Millions Gallons Per Day) (1)
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Gallons
Year Water Sold

Ended Sales (1) (in 000's)

2015 115,470,573$     25,959,645         
2014 104,939,687       27,841,047         
2013 91,680,699         29,228,914         
2012 68,784,739         27,508,123         
2011 58,863,923         28,110,957         

      excludes customer differential
(1)  Amounts include water sales from operation and maintenance costs and fixed costs,

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ELMHURST, ILLINOIS

WATER REVENUES AND USAGE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED APRIL 30
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DATE: August .|1,2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA FinanceCommittee
SECTION

ORIGINATING Finance
DEPARTMENT

ITEM Authorizing the Transfer of Funds
from the GeneralAccount to the
Operating Reserve Account

APPROVAL

VYN
Account Numbers: 01-121700 and 01-121800

The request is to transfer $5 million in funds into the Operating Reserve Account from the
General Account. The current target being met in the Operating Reserve is the minimum
target balance of 120 days of the current fiscal year management budget expense total less
depreciation. The transfer would allow the Commission to increase the number of day's
coverage to approximately 135 days of operations.

The transfer would also allow the Commission to improve the rate of return on the $5 million
because the funds could be invested in longer term maturities, which usually have higher
yields, in the Operating Reserve account as compared to the GeneralAccount.

The Commission is positioning this reserue to be greater than the minimum prior to the end
of the collection of sales tax revenues in June 2016. The purpose of the designated
Operating Reserve Fund is to cover rate stabilization, emergencies and unscheduled costs
relating to the operation of the Commission's water system.

MOTION: Authorizing the Transfer of Funds from the General Account to the Operating
Reserve Account



DATE: August {3, 2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA Administration Committee
SECTION

ORIGINATING General Manager's
DEPARTMENT Office

ITEM Contract Agreement APPROVAL .

qv

Account Number: 01 -60-628000

To extend the Agreement between DuPage Water Commission and Rory Group, LLC., for

consulting servicLs in an amount notto exceed $18,000.00 for one additional year (see

attached agreement)

Mgrchf. To Authorize the Execution of a Consulting Agreement with Rory Group, LLC.,

for a one year period, in an amount not to exceed 18.000.00.



CONSULTING AGREEMENT

THIS CONSULTING AGRBEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and

between Rory Group, LLC. an Illinois limited liability company (the'Con_sultant") and the Du

page water commiision (the "company") as of the 

- 
day of 

-, 

2015.

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to obtain the benefits of Consultant's experience and

know-how in corurection with the operation of Company's development business; and

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to engage Consultant to render consulting and

advisory services as well as introductions and referrals of new sources of business to the

company on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Consultant wishes to accept such engagement upon the terms and

conditions set forth in this Agreement'

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made, by each party il
this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which

is hereby acknowledged, the Company and Consultant agree as follows:

l. Consultine Services.

a. The Company hereby engages Consultant as a consultant to the CompanY, and

Consultant hereby agrees to accept such engagement, upon the terms and conditions set

forth in this Agreement. During the Term (as hereinafter defined) of this Agreement,

Consultant shall: (1) provide support for sales and marketing; (2) troubleshoot on

existing projects; and (11 provide compliance support (4) perform such other additional

services as may t* u**igtr*d to Consultant from time to time by the Company including,

but not limited to, lobbying activities and market place expansion'

b. In performance of its duties under this Agreement, Consultant shall report and be

responsibll only to the President of the Company and/or the Company's CEO or other

designated repiesentative, who shall be responsible for monitoring Consultant's work

under this Agreement.

c. In the performance of its duties under this Agreement, Consultant agrees that it

will not:

(l) negotiate or enter into any oral or written contract, agreement, or

arrangement on Lehalf of, or in the narne of, the Company, or otherwise bind the

CompanY, in anY manner whatsoever;

(2) engage in any conduct, or cause the Company to engage in any conduct,

which would resuli in the Company's breach or violation of any agreement, law,

ordinance, or regulation;

(3) sign any checks on behalf of or authorize any payments by the Company

in anv manner whatsoever.

rodriguez
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2.

3.

d. The Company acknowledges and agrees that so long as such work does not

conflict with this Agreement, Consultant is free to perform work on behalf of entities

other than the Company (provided such work does not directly or indirectly compete with

the project Company is engaged in) but shall devote sufficient time to performance of its

dutiis under thiJAgreement ur shall be reasonably necessary for it to effectively perform

those duties and protect the interests of the Company.

Term. The term of Consultant's retention and engagement under this Agreement shall

begin on 

- 

,2015 and shall end on , 2016'

Compensation. In consideration of all services to be performed by Consultant under

this Agr""*ent, the Company agrees to pay Consultant a total fee ("Fee") of Eighteen

Thousand Dollars ($18,000) over a period of one year. The Fee shall be paid on a

monthly basis as follows: One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500) by the 5'n day of
each month. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time during the Term of this

Agreement, Company, at its sole discretion and without prior notice to Consultant, may

elect to pay the Fee in full with one (1) payment.

Pavment of Taxes. Consultant shall be responsible for payment of all taxes arising from

Corrs.rttant's engagement under this Agreement, including federal and state income taxes

and any applicable Social Security (FICA) and/or self-employment taxes. The Company

will not pay any unemployment compensation or workerso compensation taxes or

premiums on behalf of Consultant, or any other taxes of any nature whatsoever.

Expenses. Without the prior written content of the Company, Consultant shall be

t*rponsi6i* for all out-of-pocket expenses that the Consultant incurs in performance of its

duties urder this Agreement. The Company reserves the right to review all expenses

incurred by the Consultant on the Company's behalf. If the Company elects to review the

expenses incurred by Consultant, Consultant shall provide the Company with a detailed

expense report within ten (10) days after request by the Company for the same'

Termination of Aqreement. Either Party may elect to terminate this Agreement upon

the occurrence of any of the following:

(l) A written notice, signed by Consultant and the President and/or the CEO or other

designated representative of the Company, electing to terminate this Agreement;

(2) If Consultant; (A) is unwilling to perform its duties or obligations pursuant to this

Agreement or otherwise violates this Agreement, (B) commits any dishonest, fraudulent

oigrossly negligent act in its capacity as a sonsultant to the Company, (C) in bad faith

acts in a manner materially inconsistent with the best interests of the Company; or (D)

otherwise breaches this Agreement;

(3) If Consultant faits to perform as mutually agreed herein and Company outlines, in
*titten notice, consultant's nonperformance as being a specific cause for termination of
the Agreement and Consultant does not cure such failure or nonperfoffnance within ten

(10) days of receipt of such written notice'

4.

5.

6.



Incanacitv, If Consultant is unable to perform its duties and responsibilities hereunder

.r - fulttit"e basis for more than thirty (30) days during the period of the Consulting

Agreement, the Company shall have the right to terminate this Agreement'

Independent Contractor. It is understood that while this Agreement is in effect,

ffintcontractorandnotanemployeeoftheCompany,andthat
this Agreement is noi un employment agreement. Consultant shall not be deemed an

employee, agent, partner or joint venture of'the Company, and the Company shall not

exeicise any control or supervision with respect to Consultant's services, except to the

extent that the Company may provide specifications, descriptions, time schedules and

goals for projects ani exercise the right to evaluate Consultant's work product provided

under this Agreement.

9. Non-Disclosure. Consultant acknowledges that in the course of
Ag*-**"t, bonsultant will have access to confidential information

Accordingly, consultant agrees that it will not at any time, without

the Term of this
of the Company.
the express prior

10.

written consent of the President of the Company:

(t) disclose, directty or indirectly, any confidential information to anyone outside the

e*ptoy of the Company, except as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate in

connection with the performance of its duties under this Agreement; or

(Z) use, directly or indirectly, any confidential information for the benefit of anyone

other than the ComPanY.

Indemnification. The Company shall indemnify Consultant from any and all liability,

".p-rr-r/-rd "*ts 
(includinfi reasonable attorney's fees) resulting, directly or indirectly,

from any non-compliance or breach of the terms of this Agreement by the Company.

Additionally, Consultant shall indemnify the Company from any and all liability,

expenses, and costs (including reasonable attorney's fees) resulting, directly or indirectly,

from any non-compliance or breach of the terms of this Agreement by Consultant.

NOTICES

All Notices shall be given to the parties at the addresses set forth below, unless otherwise

directed in writing. All payments by Client shall be made to Consultant at Consultant's

address set forth below unless otherwise directed in writing.

ll.



Company to:

To Consultant:

And to:

DuPage Water Commission
600 East Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, Illinois 601 26

DuPage Water Commtsston
600 East Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, Illinois 601 26

Attn: General Counsel

Rory Group, LLC.
212 W. Washington St. Suite 1904

Chicago, IL 60606
Facsimile : (3 LZ)7 26-1 40 5

Thomas R. Raines
Attorney at Law, LLC
20 N. Wacker Drive
Suite 550
Chicago, IL 60606
Fax : 312-226-1164

12.

All noticeso requests, consents and other communications under this Agreement shall be

in writing and shall be deemed to have been delivered on the date personally delivered or

on the dite deposited in the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, by certified

mail, return receipt requested'

Assienabilitv.

Neither party shall assign any of its rights or obligations under this Agreement to any

other peison or entity without the prior written consent of the non-assigning party .This

Agreernent shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their successors

and assigns.



13. Miscellaneous.

a. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of Consultant and the Company
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or
written agreements between the parties in their entirety, and may not be modified or
amended in any way except in writing by both parties to this Agreement. All covenants,

promises and agreements set forth in the Agreement shall be binding, and apply to
and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and assigns.

b. The terms of this Agreement shall be govemed and construed according to the
laws of the State of Illinois without regard to that state's principles regarding choice of
law.

c. If any part or parts of this Agreement are invalid or unenfbrceable for any reason,
the remaining parts shall nevertheless be valid and enforceable.

d. Any party's failure to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not be

construed to be a waiver of such provision or of the right of that party to enforce that
provision at any time thereafter. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall be
efTective unless it is in writins.

(Signature page follows)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, execute this

Consulting Agreement as of the date set forth herein'

CONSULTANT: COMPANYT

Rory Group, LLC. DuPase Water Commtsston

Byr By:

Name: Thomas A. Manion

Title: President



August 13,20{5

REQUEST FOR BOARD AGTION

AGENDA Engineering & Construction
SECTION Committee

ORIGINATING Instrumentation/
DEPARTMENT Remote Facilities

ITEM A Resolution APProving and
Ratifying Certain Work
Authorization Orders Under Quick
Response Electrical Contract
QRE-6/12 at the August 20, 2015,
DuPage Water Commission
Meeting

Resolution No. R-21-15

APPROVAL

.^#

,}^-/'[*

Account Numbers: 01-60-663300

The Commission entered into certain agreements dated December 10, 2012, with Divane

Bros. Electric Co. and with McWilliams Electric Co. lnc. for quick response electricalwork as

needed through the issuance of Work Authorization Orders. Resolution No. R-21-15

would approve the following Work Authorization Order under the Quick Response

Electrical Contracts:

Work Authorization Order No. 020: This Work Authorization was issued to Divane Bros'

Electric Co., and the work began prior to Board approval to repair/replace the Cathodic

Protection (CP) Rectifier Site TS8-2 in Downers Grove. The control boxes were knocked

down and badly damaged in a vehicle accident on Saturday, June 13, 2015. Cathodic
Protection Management (CPM) is the firm that originally was involved in the installation,

tested, and commissioned the CP Rectifier Sites. CPM will be working with Divane as a sub-

contractor. Staff is working to contact the insurance company of the person driving the car

that had the accident to recoup the total costs.

The total cost for this work is estimated at $16,500.00.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. R-21-15.



DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO, R-21-15

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING
CERTAIN WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDERS

UNDER QUICK RESPONSE ELECTRICAL CONTRACT QRE-6/1?
AT THF AUGUST 20. 2015, DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION MEETING

WHERHA$, the DuPage Water Commission (the "Commission") entered into

certain agreements dated December 10,2012, with Divane Bros. Electric Co. and with

McWilliams Electric Co. Inc, for quick response electrical work related to the

Commission's Waterworks System (said agreements being hereinafter collectively

referred to as "Contract QRE-6/12"); and

WHERHAS, Contract QRE-6/12 is designed to allow the Commission to direct one

or more or all of the quick response electrical contractors to perform emergency electrical

work, including without limitation electrical work that the Commission is unable to

perform through its own personnel and with its own equipment, as needed through the

issuance of Work Authorization Orders: and

WHEREAS, the need for such emergency electrical work could not have been

reasonably foreseen at the time the contracts were signed;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission as follows:

SECTION ONE; The foregoing recitals are by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof as findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water

Commission.

carolyn
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SECTION TWO: The Work Authorization Orders attached hereto and by this

reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1 shall be and hereby

are approved and, if already issued, ratified because the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission has determined, based upon the representations of staff,

that the circumstances said to necessitate the Work Authorization Orders were not

reasonably foreseeable at the time the contracts were signed, the Work Authorization

Orders are germane to the original contracts as signed, and/or the Work Authorization

Orders are in the best interest of the DuPage Water Commission and authorized by law.

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall constitute the written determination

required by Section 338-9 of the Criminal Code of 1961 and shall be in full force and

effect from and after its adoption,

AYHS:

NAYS:

ABSENT.

ADOPTED this day of 201 5

Chairman
ATTEST:

Clerk

Board/Resolutions/?0'l 5/R-21 -'l 5.docx
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WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDER

SHEET 1 OF ?

CONTRACT QRE-6/12: QUICK RESPONSE ELECTRICAL CONTRACT

PROJECTT QRE-6.020

LOCATION:

TSB-2, 75tn Street and Lyman Ave, Downers Grove

CONTRACTOR:

Divane Bros. Electrical Company

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

Purchase all necessary parls and materials to rebuild and replace the CP Rectifier Site
per the TS-8/12 contract specifications and drawing, Have the rectifier and remote
monitoring unit sent to respective manufacturers for inspection and repair as necessary.
lnstall, test, and commission the equipment in accordance with the original operation
and provide a report summarizing the results including all data obtained, evaluation of
data, and operating recommendations.

REASON FOR WORK:

The Rectifier Site was hit and destroyed during a vehicle accident.

MINIMUM RESPONSE TIME:

None

COMMISSION.SUPPLIED MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT
AND SUPPLIES TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE WORK:

Reuse any of the parts and materials from the original Rectifier Site that are reusable.

THE VI/ORK ORDERED PURSUANT TO THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDER

| 'l rs [-x_-] rs ruor pRroRtry EMERGENcv woRK

v-1



$HEET 2 OF 2

SUBMITTALS REQUESTHD:

None

SUPPLEIVIENTARY NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS GONDITIONS:

None

SUPPLEMENTARY GONTRAGT SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS:

' Contract TS-8/12 Sections 2.1 through 2.4

2.1 Rectifiers

2.2 Remote Monitoring Units

2.3 Door Switch

2.4 Rectifier Junction Box

r Contract Drawing TS-8/12 sheet 19, Rectifier Details

By:

CONTR

By:

Robert J. Schaeffer

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

Representative

DATE: 6 Z

OWLEDGED:

DATE: June 26. zot5

- VP Operatlons
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DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
CORROSION PROTECTION AND CONTROL

FOR THE SOUTH TRANSMISSION MAIN
coNTFACT TS€/12

contained in a gafuanized steel housing. A secondary
connection cable (loop) will be attached to the anode
assembly and pulled back into the dhectional drill hole
simultaneously with the anode assembly, anode junction box,
and a 50Vi40A air+ooled rectifier. (SEE 1.2b REGARDING
ORT'ERING OF RECTIFIER).

The Project shall include the installation of three (3) impressed cu.rent
rectifiers as indicated on the Contract Drawings. The rec'tifier size
provided is an estimate only. The rectifier will be sized by the Engineer
upon installation of the groundbed. The redifier will not be installed unlil
the groundbed installation and testing is complete.

The Project may include installing ten (10) Insulating Flange Test
Stations as indicated on the Contract Drawings.

The Projec{ may include the installation of ten (10) foreign line bond
boxes as indicated on the Contract Drawings.

e) No work shall be performed without the presence of the Owner or lb
representative. At the discretion of the Owner, specific aspects of the
project may not be performed without the presence of the Engineer.

1.3 Key Dateg

a) The Contractor shall commence work on the Project Commencement
Date.

b) Final Completion shall be as required by Section 5 of Attachment A.

PROJECT SPECIFICS

2.1 Rectifiete

a) Equipment

Rectifiers shall be air-cooled rectifies as manufactured by
Universal Rectifiers.

The three (3) rectifiers shall have the following features:

. Air-cooled

. Standard rectifier (manual tape)

r Rectifier Output shall be the following for each rectifier:

o 50 DC volts / 30 DC amps at stationing 119+25
(Location #1 - Site #2)

b)

d)

1)

2')

Page? ol 37



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
CORROSION PROTECTION AND CONTROL

FOR THE SOUTH TRANSMISSION MAIN
CONTRACT TS€/,I2

o 50 DC volts / 35 DC amps at stationing 365+00
(Location #2 - Site #8)

o 42 DQ volts / 30 DC amp$ at stationing 554+00
(Location #3 - Siie #14)

Stack type Selenium

Voltage control

. AC input 1151230 1 Phase

. Dual input wired for high voltage

. AG and DC arrestors

. I 15 VAC convenience outlet

. 50mV=50Amp SW Holloway Shunt

. Secondary A,/C breaker

. NMEA standard cabinet (3R)

. Hot dipped galvanized cabinet with no manufacturer's
elilernal labels on the external surfaces of the cabinet

. Cabinetshall have access to internal components by
means of side opening doors or panels

. Cabinet shall be lockable

Manufacturer other than Universal Rectifiers requires the
written approval of the Owner and the Engineer.

b) lnstallation

1) Rectifiers shall be installed at locations as indicated on
Contract Drawings and in the manner indicated; however,
rectifier locations should be installed within I feet from the
dghfof-way, if feasible.

The Contractor shall contact electric utility prior to rectifier
installation.

The rectifier units shall be provided with AC power.

All fleld wiring is the responsibility of the Contractor.

All wiring and installation shall meet all applicable codes.

Rectifiers shall be tested for proper operation in the field by

3)

2l

e\

4'!

5)

6)

Page 3 of 37



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SPECIFICANONS FOR CONTMCT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
CORROSION PROTECTION AND CONTROL

FOR THE SOUTH TRANSMISSION MAIN
CONTMCT TS-8/I2

the Conosion Control Representative.

7\ Rectifier posl must be a breakaway design.

8) Rectifier shall be inslalled in the presence of the Owner
Representative.

2.2 Remole Monltoring UnitE

a) Equipment

1) Rectifrers shall be equipped with remote monitors as
manufactured by Elecsys Corporation. Manufacturer other
than Elecsys Corporation requires the written approval of ihe
Owner and he Engineer.

2) The remote monitors shall have the following features:

o Watchdog Mesh Reclifier Monitor with GPS sync
intenuption capability

r GSM cellular monitor unit with a smart mesh node capable
of reading volts and amps

r lnterrupter with 100 amp mercury switch

. Four digital inputs for dry contacb

. Battery back-up

. Loss power alarm/notification

. Enclosure shall be lockable

b) Installation

1) Remote Monitors shall be installed as shown on the contracl
drawings and in the manner indicated.

Remote monitors will have three door switch alarms: one for
the rectifrer, the rectmer junction box, and the remote
monitoring unit.

All field wiring and mounting is the responsibility of the
Contractor.

Remote monitors shall be tested for proper operation in the
field by the Conosion Control Represenlative.

2)

2\

4)

2.3 Door Swlteh

a) Equipment

Pqe4d37



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
CORROSION PROTECTION AND CONTROL

FOR THE SOUTH TRANSMISSION MAIN
CONTRACT TS.8/I2

The rectifier, rectifier junction box, and remote monitoring unit
will have door switch alarms.

Door switches shall be Industrial Wide Gap Surfuce Mount
Model Number2507AH as manufactured by GE.
Manufacturer other than GE requhes lhe wriften approval of
the Owner and the Engineer.

The door switches shall have the following features:

. 3'L x 1'H x 0.5"D

r Form C (SPDT) hermetically sealed reed contact biased
wiih an Alnico Vll magnet

. 3' stainless steel armored cable

. 3/i to 2'gap distance

lnstallalion

1) Door switches shall be installed per the Engineer and the
Contract Drawings.

2) The rectifier, rectifier junction box, and remote monitoring unit
doors will each have a door switch installed which wi be
connected to the remote monitoring unit.

3) All field wiring and mounting is the responsibility of the
Contractor.

2.4 Rectifter Junction Box

a) Equipment

1) Each recft'fier shall have one (1) associated junction box that
shall meet the following specifications.

. 8" x 10" fiberglass enclosure; NEMA 4X

. Copper buss bar for negative connections:

o One (1) Holloway gpe SW shunt (50mV = 50A)

o Three (3) lugs for #4 AWG, seven stranded
copper cable

. Copper buss bar for positive lead connections:

o Two (2) Holloway type SW shunt (50mV = 50A)

o Three (3) lugs for#4 AWG cable, seven stranded

1)

zt

?\

b)

Page 5 of 37



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
CORROSION PROTECTION AND CONTROL

FOR THE SOUTH TFANSMISSION MAIN
CONTRACT TS.8/12

copper cable

Enclosure shall be lockable

The Junction Box shall be manufactured by Mesa
Products. Manufacturer other than Mesa Products
requires wriften approval of the Owner and Engineer.

lnstallation

1) Rectifier Junction Box shall be installed as shown on the
contracl drawings and in the manner indicated.

2\ Restore site as appropriate and with appropriate, approved
materials.

3) All wiring and mounting is the responsibility of the Contracior.

Foreign Line Bond Box

a) Equipment

1) Each bond location shall have one (1) associated foreign line
bond box ihat shall meet the following specifications:

. 8" x 10" fiberglass enclosure; NEMA4X (depending on
location)

. Copper buss ba r for negative connections:

o Three (3) to five (5) lugs for #4 AWG, seven
stranded copper cable

. Three (3) to five (5) lugs for #10 AWG for test
connections.

. Enclosure shall be lockable

r Labels for each test lead shall indicate the pipeline
company, material, and diameter of pipeline

o Example Label:

DuPage Water Commission

30' Steel Pipeline

. The Bond Box shall be manufactured by Mesa Products.
Manufacturer other than Mesa Products requires written
approval of the Owner and Engineer.

b)

b)

2.5

lnstallation

Page 6 of 37
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August 13, 2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA Engineering & Construction
SECTION Committee

ORIGINATING Pipeline
DEPARTMENT

ITEM A Resolution Approving and
Ratifying Certain Work
Authorization Orders Under Quick
Response Contract QR-10/13 at
the August 20, 2015, DuPage
Water Commission Meeting

Resolution No. R-22-15

APPROVAL

a#
Account Number: 01 -60-6631 00

The Commission entered into certain agreements dated July 1, 2013 with John Neri
Construction Co., Inc- and Rossi Contractors, Inc. for quick response construction work,
as needed, through the issuance of Work Authorization Orders. Resolution No. R-22-15
would approve the following Work Authorization Orders under the Quick Response
Contracts.

Work Authorization Order No. 10 to John Neri Gonstruction Co., Inc. Staff has
identified 19 separate and discreet locations where the pavement surrounding certain
valve vaults and other at grade structures has failed. As a result, pavement removal and
replacement, re-setting, and/or replacement of the structures frames and lids are
necessary. Staff solicited cost estimates for this work from both of its QR-10 contractors
and the results are listed in the table below:

John Neri Construction Co Inc. $93,100.00

Rossi Contractors Inc. $110,000.00

This work has been included in the FY 2015/16 management budget.

Approval of Resolution R-22-15 would authorize John Neri Construction Co Inc. to adjust
the frames and lids of 19 Commission structures at the locations listed on this Work
Authorization. The work will include, among other things: traffic control and protection set
up, monitoring, and removal, and the removal and replacement of the existing pavement
base and surface course(s). The cost for this work is not known but is estimated to be
$93,100.00.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. R-22-15.



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. R.22-15

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND RATIFYING
CERTAIN WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDERS

UNDER QUICK RESPONSE CONTRACT QR-10/13 AT THE
AUGUST 20. 2015. DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION MEETING

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the "Commission") entered into

certain agreements dated July 1 , 2013, with John Neri Construction Co. and Rossi

Contractors, Inc. for quick response construction work related to the Commission's

Waterworks System (said agreements being hereinafter collectively referred to as

"Contract QR-1 0/1 3"); and

WHEREAS, Contract QR-10/13 is designed to allow the Commission to direct

one or more or all of the quick response contractors to perform quick response

construction work, including without limitation construction, alteration, and repair related

to the Commission's Watennrorks System, as needed through the issuance of Work

Authorization Orders; and

WHEREAS, the need for quick response construction work could not have been

reasonably foreseen at the time the contracts were signed;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission as follows:

SECTION ONE: The foregoing recitals are by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof as findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage

Water Commission.

SECTION TWO: The Work Authorization Orders attached hereto and by this

reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as Exhibit 1 shall be and hereby

carolyn
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Resolution No. R-22-15

are approved and, if already issued, ratified because the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission has determined, based upon the representations of staff,

that the circumstances said to necessitate the Work Authorization Orders were not

reasonably foreseeable at the time the contracts were signed, the Work Authorization

Orders are germane to the original contracts as signed, and/or the Work Authorization

Orders are in the best interest of the DuPage Water Commission and authorized by law.

SECTION THREE: This Resolution shall constitute the written determination

required by Section 33E-9 of the Criminal Code of 1961 and shall be in full force and

effect from and after its adoption.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED this day of 201 5.

Chairman
ATTEST:

Clerk

Board/Resolutions/R-22- 1 5.docx
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Exhibit 1

Number Contract Pase Station Location Gitv/Town Size

1 TE-1/88 4 44+53 On Jackson Blvd. 75' West of Austin Blvd Oak Park ?9"

2 TE-1/88 On Jackson Blvd. 150 East of Ridoeland Oak Park 29"

3 TE-1/88 7 93+10
SE Corner of Jackson Blvd. and Euclid
Ave. Oak Park 39"

4 TE-03/94 28 323+48 EB Roosevelt Rd 100'West of Lathrop Forest Park 32',

5
TOB E-

87 29 366+12 SB President 500'South of Casa Solana Wheaton 29"

6
TOB E.

87 29 37t +50 SB Blanchard St 100' N of Casa Solana Dr Wheaton 25"

7
TOB E-

87 39 500+83 NB President St 300' N Forest Ave Wheaton 2g',

I
TOB E-

87 41 531 +1 1 NB President St 100' North of Birdle Ln Wheaton 25"

I
FOB
2t89 46 53+40

WB Warrenville Rd. 1000' East of
Washington St Naperville 29"

10
FOB
2t89 46 53+10

WB Warrenville Rd. 1000' East of
Washington St Naperville 29"

11 TN 1/88 48 625+57 S-B West Ave 100'S of Uiley Elmhurst 29"

12 NW-1 16 144+37 SW Corner of Ardmore and Kenilworth Ave Villa Park 25"

13 TS-5 2 21+33 NE Corner of 71st St and Fairview Ave Darien 32"

14 TS-5 5 47+94
East Fairview Rd Parkway 200'South of
-67th Sweetbriar Ln. (ln sidewalk) Darien 32"

15
FSW
1/89 7 79+16 EB Hobson Rd. 900' East of Woodridoe Dr Woodridge 25.5"

16
FNW
2t89 14 52+gg Interstate Rd. 500' W of Addison Rd Addison 29*

17 TN 1/88 33 432+03 Church Rd. 100 $ of Red Oak St Bensenville 25"

18 TN 1/88 29 376+65 Church Rd 25' South of Green St Bensenville 25"

19
FOB
2t89 25 0+35

NW Corner of President and Crescent St
lil Wheaton 29"



WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDER

SHEET 1 OF 2

WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDER NO.: eR-l0.010

LOGATION:

Various locations as described on Exhibit 1 to this work authorization.

CONTRACTOR:

John Neri Construction Co., Inc.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

All work shall be performed in accordance with the permitting highway authority's
standards and specifications. This work will include furnishing an6 maintlining traffic
controls; saw cutting and removing the existing pavement to the lines and depths
required for frame and lid adjustment and pavement replacement; removing the
structures frames and lids for reuse, or for delivery to the Commission; furnishinfi and
installing new pre-cast concrete manhole adjusting rings; setting the frames and lids to
match existing pavement elevations; replacing pavembnt baselnd wearing course(s);
replacing pavement striping, completing final restoration and clean up; 

"nd 
any ottrei

incidental work as required or as directed by the commission.

REASON FOR WORK:

To replace failed pavement and adjust, and/or replace with Commission supplied
materials, the frame and lids of various structures so they match existing pavement
elevations.

MINIII,IUM RESPONSE TIME:

N/A

COMMISSION-SUPPLIED MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT
AND SUPPLIES TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE WORK:

The Commission will supply replacement cast iron frames and lids of the type and size
required if, in the opinion of the Commission, the existing frame and lid is damaged
beyond use. Damaged frames and lids shall be returned to ihe Commission.

GONTRACT QR.10/13: QUICK RESpONSE CONTRACT



THE WORK ORDERED PURSUANT TO THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION ORDER

[--l ls I x I rs ruor pRtoRtry woRK

SUPPLEMENTARY NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS:
N/A

SUBMITTALS REQUESTED: N/A

SUPPLEIVIENTARY coNTRAcr spEctFtcATtoNS AND DRAwtNcs: N/A

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

By:
Signature of Authorized
Representative

DATE:

CONTRACTOR RECEIPT ACKNOWLEDGED AND DESIGNATION OF SAFETY
REPRESENTATIVE:

By: Safety Rep:
Signature of Authorized
Representative

Name and 24-Hr Phone No.

DATE:



DATE: August 13,2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA Engineering & Construction
SECTION Committee

ORIGINATING Pipeline
DEPARTMENT

ITEM A Resolution Awarding a Contract
to Furnish and Deliver Steel Pipe

Resolution No. R-23-15

APPROVAL

w,p
AccountNo: 01-60-663100

The Commission maintains an inventory of spare steel pressure pipe intended for use a$
replacements in the event a pipe section has failed beyond repair. This inventory contains two
sections of pipe for each pipe diameter maintained within the Commission's distribution system,
for a total of 22 individual sections of pipe that range in size from 20" to 90" in diameter.

Two separate QR-10/13 repairs earlier this year resulted in the Commission removing from its
inventory, and incorporating into the work, one section of 60" diameter pipe, and two sections of
24" diameter pipe. Staff wishes to replenish its spare pipe inventory and is requesting to
purchase steel pressure pipes to replace the pipes used in previous repairs"

The Commission solicited proposals for steel replacement pipe by direct invitation, posting on its
website, and by advertising on two separate occasions in the Chicago Tribune and The Daily
Herald. $ealed bids were received until 10:00 a.m., local time, July 27,2015, at which time all
bids were publicly opened and read aloud.

Out of ten proposals requested two were received and the results of those proposals are listed in
the table below.

Trinity Steel and Pipe lnc. $23,800.00

Jifco lnc. $53,039.00

The unit prices of Trinity Steel and Pipe Inc.'s. proposal are consistent (after calculating inflation
based on Consumer Price Index data provided by the U.S. Department of Labor/ Bureau of
Labor Statistic) with those of the original pipe purchased in February of 1992.

Staff is requesting approval of Resolution No. R-23-15 awarding a Contract to Furnish and Deliver
Steel Pipe to Trinity Steel and Pipe Inc. for the unit prices set forth in its ContracUProposal
initialing totaling $23,800.00.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. R-23-15.



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. R-23.15

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO FURNISH AND DELIVER STEEL PIPE

WHEREAS, as provided for under Section 4 of the Commission's By-Laws, end as

required by State statute, the Commission solicited sealed proposals to Furnish and Deliver

Steel Pipe; and

WHEREAS, sealed proposals to Furnish and Deliver Steel Pipe were received on July 27,

2015; and

WHEREAS, based upon staff's review of the proposals received, the Board of

Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission has determined that the proposal of Trinity

$teel and Pipe lnc. was the most favorable to the interests of the Commission;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage

Water Commission as follows:

SECTION ONE: The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the DuPage

Water Commission.

SECTION TWO: The DuPage Water Commission hereby awards the Contract to Furnish

and Deliver Steel Pipe to Trinity Steel and Pipe lnc. in accordance with its ContracUproposal

dated July 27, 2014 , a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A"

conditioned upon the receipt of all contractually required documentation and such other

additional information that may be requested by the General Manager of the Commission in

accordance with the Commission's Request for Proposals dated June 2g 2010, a copy of which

is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "8", The compensation to be paid

pursuant to the ContracUProposal incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" shell be limited to the unit

prices quoted therein.

-1-

carolyn
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Resolution No. R-23-15

SECTION THREE: The General Manager of the Commission is hereby authorized to

execute the Contract/Proposal incorporated herein as Exhibit "A", together with all other relevant

contractually required documentation, on behalf of the Commission.

SECTION FOUR: This Resolution shall be in fullforce and effect from and after its adoption.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED THIS DAY OF 201 5

Chairman

ATTEST:

Clerk

Board/Resolutions/?0 1 5/R-23-1 5. docx

-2-



EXHIBITA

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

CONTRACT/PROPOSAI

F URN ISH AND DELIVEB$TEELEIPE

Local Office Addrese

Contacit PerBon

FuuNameof Bidder JF,^,1* tftt- | ',* D,,* , /nJC ('Bidder)

principalofficeAddreea 2r:.4 %,urefu*tlrtl*t4.,,e , M ih* ?;s*, Nen, k< h&Z*t
Srr+tF 

=

I-v o StctcKr-rr.r Tebphone Number 67n -3fl6-97F
ErFf,ct B(e6- 202 -oz{Er

TO: DuPageWaterGommission('Owne/)
600 Esst Butterfield Road
Elmhursl, lllinois 60 1 ?6-4642
Attention: John F. Spatz, Jr"

General Manager

Bldder wenants and reprcsents lhal Bklder hes carcfully
revrbwed and understood all documents included, rcfened to,
or mention# in this bound set of dxuments, including
Addenda Nos. AEHIL fif none, wrfte WOA/E"], which arc
sacurely sfapled to the EN of this Ccintracffiroposst.

Terms defined in the Reguesf for Prcposals efta// fiave lfie
same meaningl ln all Gontract Documents, lncludlng thii.
Contnc:tlProposa/, as ascribdd to lfiose terms ln fha Reguesl
for Prcposals.

1. llvorlr Prcpoaal

A. Gontqd €nd ldaft. Upon the transmiesion of trte
Orner's written noiification of Acoeptance in lhe form included
herein as Attachment C, Bidder proposes, and agrees, that
Bidder shatl, at ite eole cost and expenae, provlde, perform,

and complete, in the manner specified and described, and
upon the teirns End conditione set forth, in thie
GontracUProposal and the remaining Conlract Documente, all
of the following, all of whicfi ie herein refened to as the "Work':

1. Labor. , Equioment. Mataria l poli ,

Provlde, perfoffn, tnd complete, in the manner
specified and describdd in thi$ ContracUProposal,
end the remaining Contracil Documeflts, all
nece$$gry work, labor, Services, transportation,
equipment, materials, supplles, informatlon, data,
and other means and items neceseary to Fumish
and Deliver Steel Pipe.

2. gs[Ei$. Prrcurc and fumieh ellpermits,licenms,
and other governmental epprovals and
authorizations nscs$$f,ry in connection therewith;

3. Ineurarffi. Procure all insuranco specified in this
Contrac{/PropogEl;

4. Taxes. Pay all applicable federal, $tate, and loc€l
taxes;

5. M!S#lla@. Do all other things required of
Bidder by this ContracUProposal; and

6. Qualitv. Provide, perform, and complete allof the
foregoing in a prcper and workmanlike manner,
consistent with hlghest standards of professional
and construc-tion prac'tices, in full compliance
with, and as required by or pursuant, to this
Contracuproposel, and with th6 greetest
economy, efficiency, and expedition consistent
therewilh, vMth only new, undamaged, and first
quality equipment, materiale, and supplies.

B. Performance Stendards. lf lhis Contrecil/Froposal is
a6cept6d, Bidder proposee, and agrEe8, that ellwork ehall b6
fully provided, perfOrmed, and completed in Bcoordance with
the Spccification$ attached hereto and by this rcferance made
a part of this SontracUPropoeal as Aftadrment A. No provision
of any refurenced etEndard, rpecification, manual, or code
shall change the dutle$ End responsibilities of Orner or Bidder
from those set forth in the3e Gontract Documents.

C. Responeibilitv for Damaoe or Lote. lf this
ContrecuPropoml is eccdpt€d, Bidder proposes, and ggrees,
that Bidder shall be reeponsible and liable for, end shall
promptly and withoul charye to Olvner repalr or replace,
damage done to, and any loee or injury euffered by, Owner, the
Work, or other property or persons as a result of tha Work,

D. Insoection/Testina/Reiection. Owner ehall heve the
right to in$pect all or any part of th6 Work end t0 reject all or
any part of the Work that ls, ln 0trnefs judgmant, defucrtive or
dameged or that in any way fails to conform Btrictly to the
requlrements of theee Contract DocumenB and Omer, without
limiting ib other rightrs or remedies, may require corrcction or
replacement at Bidde/s cost, perfom or have performed all
Work necessary to complele or contct all or any parl of the
Work that is defuctive, damaged, or nonconforming and dlarge
Bidder with any excoss cost incurred themby, or cencel all or
any parl of any order or these Contract Document$ . Work so
rejected may be returned or held at Bidde/s expense and risk.

2 Contract Prlce Proposrl

lf this ContracUProposal is accepled, Bidder pruposes,
and agr,ees, that 8idd6r shall take in full payment for all Work



and other matter$ set fofth under Sedion 1 abov6, including
overhead and profit; taxee, confibutions, and premiurns; and
compensailon to all eubcontractols and suppliers, the

compensation set forth below;

A. SCHEDULESEfEICES

For providing, performing, and completing all Work,
the sum of the produc{s resulting from multiplying the
actual number of Eccspteble units of Unit Price ltems
tisted in the $chedule of Prlces atteched hereto as
Aftashment B by the Unit Price set fotth the $chedule
of Prices attaclred hereto as Attachment B for $uch
Unit Price ltem.

B. BA$I$Fffi
It is expressly unddrstood and agroed that:

1. All prices stated in tho Schedule of Prices are firm
and shall not be subiect to escalation or change;

2. Orner is not subiect to state or local sales, use,

and excise texes, that no such tax6$ are included
in th6 Schedule of Prices, and that all claim or
right to claim any additional compensation by
reason of the payment of eny $uch tax is hereby
wsived and releesed;

3. All other epplicable federal, state, and local taxes
of every klnd and nature applicable to the Woft
are inoluded in the Schedule of Pricesi

4. The approximale quantities set forth in the
Schedule of Prices for each Unit Price ltem are
Owne/s estlmate only, that olrvner reterveg the
right to increase or decrease such quantities and
thal all claim or right to dispute or complain of any
such eslimated quantity, or to a$$ert that there
yvf,s f,ny misunderstanding in legard to the nature
or amounl of any Unit Price ltem to be provided
or pefformed, is hereby waived and released; and

5, Any items of Work not $pecificelly lieted or
refaned to in lhe Schedule of Pricee. or nol
epecifically Induded for payment under eny Unit
Price ltem, ehatl be deemed incidentsl to the
Contr€ct Price, shall not be meesursd for
payment, and shall not be paid for eeparalely,
including, without limitation, the ooet of
transportation, FOB Point of Deetination
Elmhurst, lllinois, packing, c€rteg6, and
containers.

C. VATUEQEIA/QBE

It is etpressly understood and agreed that the value
of the Work shall be determined as followg:

1. The value of Work shell be deterrflined by Owner
on the basis of the aciual number of Unit Price
Items acceptable to the Owner multiplied by the
applicable Unit Price set forth in the $chedule of
Prices attached hereto as Attachmeni B.

2. The Contrac't Prie shall be adjusted lo reflect the
actual number Unit Price ltems acceptable to

Owner upon final eccsptenoe of the Work by
Owner.

D. TIME OF PAYfiHNT

Owner shall pay to Bidder the value of Wo*,
determined in the manner eet forlh above. Payment
shall be in an amount equal to the sum of the number
of acceptable units delivered multiplied by the per unit
price and shall be mads within Eixty (60) days of the
acceptance of the units,

3, Contracl jimcfrctogsl

lf this ContracUProposal is accepted, Bidder proposes,
and agrees, thal Bidder shall commanco the Work within 10
deys following Owner's acceptance of thie ContracUProposel
(the *Commenffiment Date"). lf this ContracUPrcposal is
aocepted, Bidder proposes, and 6grees, lhat Bidder shall
perform the Work diligently and shall omplete the Work not
later than 60 calendar days following th€ Commencement
Date.

4. FlnanelalAsslrranea

A. Insurance. lf this ContracUFroposal is accepted,
Bidder proposee, and agrees, that Bidder will proorre and
maintain such insurance as Wll cover and include the entire
obligation assumed by Bidder under the Contract Documente ,

as well as public liability ineurance, including contractual
liabillty, conlractort liability and proteotive liability, automobile
liability insurance, including non+wned aulomobile liability,
and Workmen's Gompensation and employe/s liability
ineurance as will adequately protect Owner, the Work, and
other property and persons againel all damages, liability
claims, losses and expens6$ (including altomey's ftes) whictl
may arise, or be alleged to have srisen, out of or in csnnection
with Biddels performance of, or failure to p6rform, thd Wo* or
any part thereof.

B. lndemnificetion. lf this ContrecuProposal is accepted,
Bidder proposee, and egrees, thet Bidder shall indemnify, save
harmliss, and defend Owner against all dsmagee, liability,
claims, loeses, and erpensas (including attomey$' fees) that
may arise, or be alleged lo have f ri$sn, out of or in connection
with Bidde/s performance of, or failure to perform, the Wodt or
any part thereof, or any failure to mB6t the representations and
warranties set forth In $ection 6 of this GontracUProposal.

C. Penalties. lf thi$ ContracUProposal is accepted,
Bidder proposes, and agrees, that Bidder ehall be solely liable
for any fines or civil penalties that are imposed by any
govornmental or quasigovernmentel agoncy or body thet mey
arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with
Biddefs performance of, or failure to perfotm, the Wo* or any
part thereof.

5. Firm Prooosal

All pfices and other terms ststed in this Contrac't/Proposal
are firm and shall not be subject to rlithdrawal, escalatrsn, or
change provided Orner accepts this Contrac{/Proposel within
60 days after the dete thl$ sealed ContracUProposal is opened"

6. FidderiE Ref resenialironsrnfllttffrantlgs



In order to induce Omer to accept lhis ContracUProposal,
Bidder hereby repr€$enb and v'rarrants e$ follotiltr:

commenee and complete the Work within the Contract Price
and Contrec{ Time Proposls Eet fotth above.

A. The Work. The Wodr, and all of its component$. sh6ll
be of mBrdlantoble quelity; shall be free from eny latent or
patent defegte snd flaws in workmanship, maleriale, and
deeigni shall etrictly conform to the rcquirements of this
ContracUProposal and these Contrsct Documents, including,
withoul limibtion, the performanoe standards set forth in

Section 1B of this Contract/Ptopoeal; and shall be fit, sufficient,
and suitable for the putposes expressed in, or rcasonably
infened from, this ContracUProposal and these Contract
Documente and tho wenantiee expressad horein shall be in

additlon to any other warranties expressed or implied by lEw'

which ere hereby rssorved unto Owner, Bidder shall, promptly
snd without charge, conect any failure to fulfill the above
warranty at any time within lwo years after final payment or
sucfr longer period as may be prescribed in the performenct
standards eet forth in Sec{ion 1B of this Contract/Proposal, the
Contract Doqrmentg or by law. The ebove warranty shall be
extended automatically to cover all repaired and replecement
parte and labor pmvided or performed under such warranty
and Bidder's obllgation to correct Work shall be extended for e
period of tvo yeara frorn the daE of such repair or
replacement. The tirne period established in thie Seclion 64
relates only to the specific obligation of Biddor to conect Work
and shell not be constru€d to establieh a period of limitation
with respecl to other obligations that Bidder has under thls
ContracUProposal and the Contract Documents,

B. Comnlianee wilh taus. The Work, and all of its
components, shall be provided, performed, and completed in

compliance with, and Bidder agreee to be bound by, all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, oders, rules, and
reguletione, as they may be modified or amended from time to
time; any statutes requiring prefurence to laborers of specified
claesesl lh€ lllinois Steel Froducts Procurement Act, 30 ILC$
565/1 el eES,; sny statules prohibiting discrimination brcause
of, or requlrlng affirmntive action based on, race, creed, color,
national origin, age, $ex, or other prohibiled classification; End
any statutes regarding seftty or the performance of the Work.

C. NLEgned. Bidder is not baned by law frum
contrac'ting with oruner or with any other unit of etate or local
govsrnrnent for any reason, including without limitation as I
result of (i) a violation of either $ection 338-3 or Section 33E-4
of Article 33 of the Griminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-i El
SSg,; or (ii) a violatlon of the USA Patriot Act of ?001, 107

Public Law 56 (October 26, 2001) Che 
.Patriot Ac{') or other

statutes, ordem, ruleg, and regulations of the United Stet6$
government and ib various executive departments, agencies
and officee r€letBd to the subJec't matter of the Patriot Act,
including, but not limited to, Executive Order 13224 etfective
$eptember 24,2001. Bidder is not acling, directly or indirectly,
for or on behalf of any per$on, group, entity or nation named by
the United Slates Trcesury Department as a Specially
D6$ignat6d National and Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of
any person, group, entity or nation designated in Presldentlal
Execulive Order 13224 as fl pelson who eommib, threalens to
commit, or oupportg iermrism: and Bidder is not engaged in
this transaction direc{ly or indirec{ly on behalf of, or facilitating
this transaction directly or indirectly on behalf of, eny such
person, group, entity or nation.

D. AuafifiEd. Bidder has the requisite experience, ability,
capital, facilities, plant, organization, and $tatf to enable Bidder
to perform the Work successfully and promptly end to

In eubmitting this Contrect/Proposal, Bidder acknowledges and
egree$ thet:

7.@lsCsmerib
A. Relianee. Orrrner is relying on all wananties,

representations, and staternente made by Bidder in this
Contrac{/Proposal a nd related Gontracl Doctlmsnts.

B. Reservation of Eiqhlg, Owner reservee the right to
reject any and all proposals, reserves th€ rlght lo reject the low
price proposal, and reservet such other righta as are set fotth
in the Inetructions to Biddere.

c. Accentance. lf this Contrac't/Proposal is accspted,
Bidder shall be bound by each and every tetm, condition, or
provision containetl in this Contract/Proposal and the
remaining Contract Documenb including those terms
contained in Oryne/s written notification of Acceplance
atteched herEto as Attachment G.

D, Remedies. In the event of a breach or violation of any
term or condition of this ContracUProposal or any of the other
Contract Documents, Orner shall heve re@ur$g through any
remedy available at law or in equity and all suolt remedies shall
be cumulative,

E. No examination, inspection, investigation,
t6st, measuremsnt, review, determinalion, decision, certifi cate,
or epproval by Owner, whether before or after Ownefs
acceptance of this ContracUProposal; nor eny information or
deia supplied by Owner, whether before or ater Ownefs
ecceptf,nce of this ContracUFroposal; nor sny order by Owner
for the payment of money: nor any paymonl for, or use,
possession, or acceptance of, the whole or Hny part of the
Work by Owner; nor any extension gf tlme granted by Owner;
nor any delay by otmer in Exercising any dght under this
Contrac,t/Fmposal or other Gontract Documont nor any other
f,ct or omission of Owner shall conetitute or be deemed to be
an acceptance of any deftdive, demaged, or nonconforming
Wort, nor operatE to wsive or othelwisB dimlnish thc eff6d of
any representation or wananty made by Bidder; or of any
requirement or provision of this Contrac{/Proposal or other
Gontraci Document; or of any remedy, power, or right of
Owner;

F. $eversbilitv. The provisions of this ContracU
Proposal together with the other Contract Docurnente rhall be
interpreted when poseible to sustalfl their legality and
onforceability as a wlrole. ln the event any provision of thie
ContracUProposal together with the oth€r Contract Documents
shall be held invalid, illegf,l, or unenforceable by a court of
comp€tent jurisdidion, in wfiole or in pdrl, nelther the validig of
the remaining part of Buch provision, nor the validity of eny
other provisions of this ContracUProposal or other Contrad
Documents shall be in any way affected thereby.

G. Amendments. No modificstion, Eddition, deletion,
revision, alteration, or other change to thl$ Conlrac't/Proposal
or other Contracl Documents ehall be effective unlesg and until
suclr change is reduced to writing and executed and delivered
by Owner and Bidder.

H. A$$isrment. Neither lhie ConlracVProposal or other
Contrac{ Documents, nor any interest herein, shall be assigned



or subcontracted, in wfiole 0r in part, by Bidder excopt upon
the prior written consent of Owner.

t. Goremios lEw. This ContracUPropo$al and olher
Contrad Documents and the rights of the parties under this
Contrdct/Propoeel and other Contrac't Dofl.tments shall be
interpreted accoding to the intemal laws, but not the conflict of
law rules, of the State of lllinois. Every provition of law
required by law to be inseded into this ContracUProposal or
other Contrac{ Documents shell be deemed to be ineerled
her6in.

DArED thie ElTrl day or &LY. aors



Bldder's Statue:( ) Corporation
(State)

(if corporation)
Title/Position;

Biclder's Business Addrees: ?utt 3a.rrr* lhrrortorl lr,a- H hr Zgf

Bldder's Buslness Telephone: fo2rl -146 - 84OO Facsimile:

lf a Corporation or Partnership, list all Officers or Partners:

Partnership ( )lndividual Proprietor

Bidder's Name: -l ctprw Slw- ,r. Apa , t,rd.
Doing Business As (if difierent):

Signature of Bicfder orAuthorized Agent ,
(corporate seal) Printed Name: blu,o Stt,cr.cr^

6b * 5{6 -g{ol

NAME TITLE ADDRH$$

bru,oS,o.r.--., A*,ro,- /h-o*nr, bl$ rF.F{*r.l {1; WRrt I(!,llo76t

&A, Erua.t o,t V,.s fl"-, D*.n /a-dr*rruuh IE S.rlkt",rdl' hl$ f(A67Ft



Attachment A

Speclfications

All pipe shall be plain end steel pipe, manufactured to the dimensions shown, and in accordance with the latest
AVWA Standard for SteelWater Pipe, 6 inches and larger.

Desiqn Pressure

All steel pipes shall be menufactured to meet the followlng conditions:

1. lnternal Pressure: Design internal pre$$ure of 150 psi for pipe diameter larger than 24" and 250 psi for pipe
diameter 24" and smaller plus a design water hemmer of 100 psi, a total design pressuro of 250 psi and
350 psl, respectively.

2. Vacuum: Collapse vacuum pressure ot -14.7 psiwith ASTM D698 soil density 907o and a minimum factor
of safety 2.5 based on Zalo ring deflection.

3. External Loads: Ten (10) foot depth of cover at 120 pounds per cubic foot soil weight with E' of 1000 lb. per
square inch and trench width of outside diameter of the pipe plus three (3) feet and one A$SHTO H-20
truck.

4. Deflection: Design maximum deflection ol 1.4o/a of the pipe diameter. Installed maximum deflection Z%of
the pipe diemeter.

Fipe Diameter

For the purpose of this proposal, the term Pipe Diameter is being used for bidding purpo$e$ only and standard
industry dimensions shall not be considered in its manufacture. The pipe furnished under this proposal shall be
manufadured to the dimensions shown in the table below;

Manufacture

The steelpipe shall be manufactured in accordence with the specified design pressure, materials and stresses.

A) Steel Plate

All steel plates for the fabricated pipe shall conform to the latest edition of ASTM 4139 Grade G. Maximum
tensile stress for pipe diameter 24" and larger under combined design intemal pressure of 1b0 psi plus water
hammer of 100 psi (a total design pressure of 250 psi) shall not exceed 60% (25,200 psi) of the minimum
specified yield strength of the meterial for all buried pipe. Maximum tensile stress for pipe diameter 24" end
smaller under combined design internal pressure of 250 psi plus water hammer of 100 psi (a total design
pressure of 350 psi) shall not exceed 60% (25,200 psi) of the minimum specified yield strength of the material
for all buried pipe.

B) Cement Mortar Linino and Protective Coatino

Pioe Diameter Outside Diameter Length Mortar Linino $teelThickness
60" 63 %" 1g'-8' Yl' Yz"

24" 27 Y1" 1g',-8" Yzn 3/8',



All pipes shall be cement moftar lined in the shop with centrifugally spun lining in accordance with AVWA
C205 or cement morter lined in place mechanically in accordance with A\ AA/A C602. Use ASTM C1S0, Type
ll, cement for lining.

Protective Coating shall be Tnemec FC?2 Epoxoline or approved equal. The protective coating shallterminate
3 inches from the pipe ends.

Pipe Manufacturer's Submittals

The manufacture shall provide documentation stating that the pipe has been manufactured to conform in all

re$pects with these contract specifications and with the applicable portions of the following A\ A/VA $tandards:

Pipe (A\AMA C200)

Cement-mortar protective lining (A\ AIVA C205 and A\ AIVA C60Z)

Protective Goating (A\MruA C210)

Deliverv

The manufacturer shall contact Mr. Ed Kazmierczak of the DuPage Water Commission at (630) 8&4-0100 at
least 48 hours in advance to schedule delivery of the pipes. Deliveries will only be accepted between the hours
of 7:00am and 3:30 prn Monday through Friday.



Attachment B

SCHEDULE OF PRICES

lf the ConlracuProposal is ecc6pted, Bidder proposes, and agr6es, that Bidder $hatl take in fult payment for ell Work and oth6r mefter8
set fsrth under Section 1 of the ContracVProposal, including overhead and profit; tsxes, contributions, and premiumsi and
compensalion to all subcontractors and suppliers, the compensation set forth below.

For providlng, performing, and completing all Work, the sum of the produc{s resulting from multiplying the actual number of acceptable
unitc of Unit Price ltems listed below delivercd to Owner by the Unit Price set forth below for euch Unil Pricr lhm:

A F,

$em,r
Nol

r,liii,',,

iill

!,nit
,G6s1,,,

Fer [pit,
I ,'.ffiu

1 Furnish and Deliver $teel Fipe---60" Pipe
Diameter

Each lA;atffi 1 t?,affi.oo
2 Furnish and Deliver Steel Pipe-*-24" Pipe

Diameter
Each

Eq oo 2 ll, tod, oo

-r wGa||t h+Rft 7rr+{*truo
TOTAL OF COLUMNS C ITEMS 1-2 c*rclrF Hu^t5r46r6 Dollars and NO Cents

(in writing) (in writing)

Dollars and , Olc Csnls
(in figures)

2e *cr O
(in figures)

BASI$ EOi DFTERMIHING PR ICES

It is expressly undorstood and agreed that:

1. All prices stated in lhie $chedule of Pricns are firm and ehall not be Bubject to escaletion or change;

2. Ovrner is not subjeot lo state or local sales, use, end excise taxes, that no sudt t6xes sre included in this Sfiedule of prices,
and that all claim or right to claim any additional compen$ation by reason of the payment of any Euch tax is hereby waived and
released;

3. All other appliceble federal, $tate, f,nd local tax€s of every kind and nature applicable t0 the Work are induded in thie $fiedule
of Prioee:

4. The approximate quantities set forth in this Schedule of Prices for Each Unit Price ltem src Owner's Bstimat€ onty, that Owner
resarves the righl to increaee or decrease suctr quantities, that payment for each Unit Price ltem ehall be madi only on the
ectual number of acceptable units of such Unit Prica ltem delivered to Owner in full cornpliance with the Contrac{/piopoeal,
and that all daim or right lo diepute or complain of any such estimated quanUty, or to a$ert that thsrg lvas any
mlsunderstanding in regard to lh6 nature or amount of any Unit Price ltem to be provided or performed, is hereby wairred and
r8l6e8ed: and

5. Any items of Work not specifically lieted or refened to in this Schedule of Prices, or not epecifically included for payment under
8ny Unil Price ltem, shall be deemed incidental to the Contract Pric6, shall nol be measured for piyment, and siruli not be paid
for separately, including, without limitalion, the co_st of trf,n$porlation, FOB Point of Destination Elmtrurst, lllinois, packing,
cartage,andcontainers. A t I t d

Printed Name:

$ignature of Bidder or Authorized Agent:

t\
Tifle/Position: ffi,Fst bEu r



AttachmeltG

AGCEPTANCE

The ContracUProposal attached hereto and by this reference Incorporated herein and made a part hereof ls hereby
acceptedbytheorderoftheDuPageWaterCommission(.'owner")this-dayof-,2015

This Acceptanoe, together with the ContracVProposal attached herEto, constitutos the entire and only agraement between
the parties relating to the accomplishtnent of the Wofl< and ths compensaUon therefor and supersedes and mergee any
other prior or contemporaneous discussions, agreements, or understandings, whether written or oral, and shalf prevail
over any contradictory or inconEistent terms or conditions contained in any purchase order, acceptance,
acknowledgement, invoice, or other standard form used by the parties in the performance of the ContracUproposal. Any
such contradictory or incon$igtent term$ or conditions shall be deemed objected to by Owner without further notice of
objection and shall be of no effect nor in any circumstances binding upon Owner unless accepted by Owner in a written
document plainly labeled "Amendment to ContracUProposal." Acceptance or rejection by Owner of any such contradictory
or inconsistent terms or conditions shall not constitute acceptance of any other contradictory or inconsistent terms or
conditions.

DUFAGE WATER COIVIMISSION

John F. Spatz, Jr.
GeneralManager

By:



DUPAGE WATER GOiJ|iIISSION

REOUEST FOR PROPOSAL8

OW}IER;

DuPego Water Commiseion
600 Eaet Butterfisld Road
Elmhurst, lllinois 601264642

owner will receive sealed proposale for the work generally described as followe:

FURNISH AND DELIVER STEEL PIPE

TO BE SUBMITTED TO Du|gqu Water Commission, 600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, ltinoie 601t6-4642, Attention John F. Spatz,
Jr., General Managdi, BEFORE 10;00 A.M., Juty 27, 201S.

I NSTRUCTIO}L$ TO BI DDERS

Prcparation of Prooosals

The 'Contract Documenls" shEll be deemed io include lhis
Request for Proposals and the 'ContracVprsposal' athched
hereto and Incorporated herein as bftibit 'A' together wilh
Attachmenb A through C atlached th6r6to and incorporated
therein. The avork' shall be to "Fumish and Deliver $teel
Pipe" described in Attachment A.

All propoealr for the Work shall be made only on tho blank
ContracVProposal form Bttached to this Request for Proposals,
and shall be complete with a prica for eaci and every item
named in the Schedule of Prices attached to the
ContracUPropoeal form as ,qfiachment B, All proposals shall
be dated on pag6 4 ofthe ContracVProposal form and shall be
slgned by en authorized official, including page 5 of tho
ContracUProposel form and the Schedule of Prices attached to
the Contrac.t/Proposal form as Attechment B_ proposale that
contain omieeione, etrasurc$, alterations, or additions not called
for, conditional or altemate bids unless called for, or thal
contaln irregulafities of any kind rnay be rejected.

Glarifications

Owner res€rves the right to make clarilicaiions, conectione, or
cheng€$ in thie Request br Proposal$ at any time prior to the
tirne proposals are opened. All bidders or pr,oepective bidderr
will be inlormrd of naid clariflcationr, conection$, or changes.
lf any prospective bidder has questions about this Raquesi for
Proposele, contf,ct Hd Kazmierctak, Pipeline Supervisor, at
630-834-0100 botween the hours of 7;00 AM and 3;30 PM,

Delivery of Proposals

Each proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly
marked with the title of the cofltract end bidde/s full legal name
and Ehall be addr€ssod end delivered to the place end before
th6 time eet forih above, Proposals may be delivered by mail
or in pereon. Froposals rcceived after the lime specified above
will be returned unopened"

Ooenino of Eronosals

Proposals will be publicly opened and read at the time and
place specified above, BirJders, their auftorized agents, and
interested parties f,re invited to be pre$ent,

Withdrawal of Propossle

No proposal shall be withdrawn for a period of 60 days after
the opening of any proposat.

Reieclion of Propbsalt

Propoeals thet are nol submitted on the Contract/proposal
form or thet are not prepared in accordance with these
lnstruc{ions 1o Bidders may be rejected. lf not rejectod, Owner
may demand correction of any deficiency end acoepl the
deficiently prepared proposal upon compliance with these
Instructions to EiddelE.

Acoeptance af ProDosEls

Proposals are being solicited purBuent to, and will be actEd
upon, in accordance with Article Vlll of the Offie/e By*Lavw.
Proposals submitted are offers only and the deu'slon to accept
or reJect is a func{ion of quatity, reliabiliU, cdpability, repubtion,
and expe(ise of the bidders.

Owrrer reserves the righi to accept th6 proposal thdt I$, in its
judgment, the beet and moel favorable tb the interests of
Owner and to the public; to r{ed the tow price propoeal; to
accept any item of any pmposal; tS reiect eny and sll
proposale; and to waive irregularitiee and informaHfiee in any
proposel subrnitted or in th6 request for prcposal pr.ocesE;
provided, however, the waiver of any prior defect or iniormetity
shall not be considered a weiver of eny future or similar defuct
or informality, Bidderc should not rely upon, or anticlpate, such
waivers in submilting their propoeal.

Owner shall notifo th6 succes$ful Bidde/e of the acceptance of
Its proposal by the transmiesion of the Acceptance in-the form
attached to the Contrac{/Proposal as Attachment C. Upon the
transmission of the Acceptance by the Oryrrer, the iontrac{
Documents shall become the contrdct for the Work.

DATED this 29h day ol June, 201b.

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

By; /s/John F. SpaE, Jr.
General Manager



August 13, 2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA Engineering & Construction
SECTION Committee

ORIGINATING Pipeline
DEPARTMENT

ITEM A Resolution Awarding a Contract
for Vacuum Excavation Services

Resolution No. R-24-15

APPROVAL

qv
AccountNo: 01-60-629000

Ordinance O-2-15, adopted by the Board at the April 16, 2015 Commission meeting, approved a

Management Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 which included Vacuum Excavation Services in
the budgeted amount of $125,000.00.

The purpose of this work is to visually confirm the location of Commission pipelines in certain
arees where traditional methods, and conventional R/F type locating equipment, are inadequate
to accurately determine the location of buried facilities. This occurs primarily in areas where
pipelines were installed at depths greater than 15 feet and in congested utility corridors where
electronic interference created from other utilities makes it problematic to accurately locate
pipelines.

Once the location of the pipe has been visually confirmed by vacuum excavation, staff will place
a 4" diameter electronic marker within the backfilled excavation. The electronic marker emits a
specific signal capable of being detected by staff using a pipe locator tuned to that particular
signal thus allowing an eccurate visual marking of the pipeline to be placed on the sudace.

In accordance with Article Vlll Section 5 of the Commission's By-Laws, and as required by state
statute, the Commission advertised for bids on two separate occasions in the Chicago Tribune
and Ihe Daily Herald. In addition, the Commission posted the adveftisement on its website and
solicitedbidsbydirectinvitation. Sealedbidswerereceiveduntil 1:00p.m., local time, July27,
2015, at which time all bids were publicly opened and read aloud.

Of the ten proposals requested, the proposal of Airy's lnc. was the sole proposal received.

Airy's lnc. past performance on prior Commission QR contracts has earned the company good
standing, and they have the requisite experience and capability to satisfactory perform the work
required under this contract, and their unit prices are consistent with previous work performed by
others under a similar method of measurement. Therefore purcuant to Section 11 (Award of
Contract) and Section 12 (Single Bids) of Article Vlll of the Commission's By-Laws, Staff is
recommending approval of Resolution No. R-2+15 awarding a Contract for Vacuum Excavation
Services to Airy's Inc. for the unit prices set forth in its ContracVProposal.

MOTION: To adopt Resolution No. R-24-15.



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

RESOLUTION NO. R-24-15

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR VACUUM EXCAVATION SERVICES

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article Vlll, Section 5 of the Commission's By-Laws, and as

required by State statute, the Commission solicited sealed proposals for Vacuum Excavation

Services; and

WHEREAS, sealed proposals for Vacuum Excavation Services were received on July 27,

2015; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Airy's Inc. was the sole proposal received; and

WHEREAS, the peformence and quality of work by Airy's Inc. on prior Commission

contracts has been completed to the satisfaction of the Commission; and

WHEREAS, based upon staff's review of the proposal, the Board of Commissioners of the

DuPage Water Commission has determined that he proposal of Airy's Inc. was the most

favorable to the interests of the Commission:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage

Water Commission as follows:

SECTION ONE: The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein as findings of the DuPage

Water Commission.

SECTION TWO: The DuPage Water Commission hereby awards the Contract for Vacuum

Excavation Services to Airy's lnc. in accordance with its ContracUProposal dated (July 27,2015,

e copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" conditioned upon the

receipt of all contractually required documentation and such other additional information that

may be requested by the General Manager of the Commission in accordance with the

Commission's Request for Proposals dated June 29, 2015, a copy of which is attached hereto

and incorporated herein as Exhibit "8". The compensation to be paid pursuant to the

-1-
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Resolution No. R-24-15

ContracUProposal incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" shall be limited to the unit prices quoted

therein.

SECTION THREE: The General Manager of the Commission is hereby authorized to

execute the Contract/Proposal incorporated herein as Exhibit "A", together with all other relevant

contractually required documentation, on behalf of the Commission.

SECTION FOUR: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption.

AYES:

NAY$:

ABSENT:

ADOPTED TH|S _ DAY OF 201 5

Chairman

ATTEST:

Clerk

Board/Resolutions/20 1 5/R-24- 1 5.docx

-2-



Full Name of Bidder

Principalffice Addrcss

Local ffice Address

Contact Person

EXHIBITA

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSIOH

COIiITRACT/PROPOSAL

vffi

4r4f i / tt, - tru Tetephone Number 7oF'qeq - At,6o

TO; DuPage Water Commission ("Owne/)
600 East Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, lllinois 601 26*4M2
Attention: John F. SPatz, Jr.

General Manager

Bidder warants and represenls thaf Bidder has caretully
revievmd and undarctood all documents included, refened to,
or mentionad in, this bound sat ol documents' including

Addenda Uos. Alt41, fif none, mile WONEJ, v,thich are

securaly stapled to the end of this ContractlProposal.

Terms defrned in the Reguest for Proposals shall have the

same maanings in all Contract Documents, including this
Contnd/Proposa/, 8s asaibad lo those terms in lDe Reguasf
for Propasals,

1. WortfrEnssal

A. Contract €od lflArk, Upon the transmission of the
Owne/s writtsn notification of Acceptance in the form included

herein Es Attachment E, Bidder proposes, and agrees' that
Bidder shatl, at its sola cost and €xpense, provide' perform'

and cornplete, in the manner specified and described, and
upon the terms and conditions set forth' in this

ContractfPropossl and the remaining Contract Documents, ell

of the following, all of which is herein refened to es the Work':

1. Labor. Equiffiient. Materials and $uoolies'
Provide, perform, and complete, in the mannor
specified and described in this ContracUProposal,
and the remaining Contraci Documents, all
neoEssary work, labor, services, transportation,
aquipment, materials. supplies, information, data'
and other means and items necessary for
Vacuum Excavation which shall be defined to be
a meens of soil extraction where water or an air
jet is used to break up soilfollowed by extrection
of these mat€rials through e vecuum device.

2. Permits. Procure and furnish all permits, licenses,
and other govemmental approvals and
authorization$ nece$sary in connection lherewith ;

3. Insuran@. Prootre all insurance specified in this
Contracf/Proposal:

4. Taxes, Pay altapplicable federal, state, and locel
taxes;

5. Miscellanequg. Do all other things required of
Bidder by this Contrac{/Ptoposal; and

6. Qualitv. Provide, perform, and complete all of the
foregoing in a proper and workmanlike manner,
consistent with highest stenderds of professional
and construction practices, in full compllanca
with, and as required by or pursuant, to this
Contracil/Proposal, and with the greatest
economy, effciency, and expsdition consistenl
therewith, with only new, undamaged, and fitst
quality Equlpment, materials, and supplies.

B. Performance Standaldt. lf this Contrac{/Prcpmal b
accepted, Birlder propos€$, and agrees, that allWork shall be
tully provided, performed, and completed in accordano€ with
the Specificatiofls attached hereto and by this refergnce mede
a part of this ContracUProposal as Attachment A. No provision
of any referencad standad, specificatftrn, manual. or code
shall change the duties and responsibilitiee of Orvner or Bidder
from those s6t forth in these Contrac't Documenb.

C. Resoonsibilitv for Damaoe or loss. ]f this
Contracil/Proposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and agrees,
thet Bidder shall b6 reeponsible and lisble for, and shall
promptly and without cheqe to Owner repair or replace,
damage done to, and any loss or injury srrfiered by, Owner, the
Work, or other property or p€rsons as a result of the Work.

D, InspectiorVTestinqlReiectiotr. Owner shall have the
right to inspect all or any part of the Work and to repct all or
any part uf the Work that b, in Oilne/s judgnent, defectivE or
demaged or that in any way fails b conform strialy m the
requirements of th6s6 Contract Documents and Chrrner, without
limiting ib other rights or remedies, may require conestion or
replacement at Bidd€/s cost, perform or have performed all
Work necessary to mmplete or conBct all or any pan of the
Work thet is defective, damaged, or nonconforming and charge
Bidder with any excass cost incuned thereby, or cancel all or
any part of any order or thesg Contract Documents . Work so
r6j6cted may be r€tumed or held at Biclde/s exp€nse end risk.

("Bidde/)



2. Contract Price ProPoeal

lf this ContracVProposal is accepted, Bidder proposes'

and agrees, thai Bidder shall take in full payment for all Work

end olher matters s6t forth under Sestion 1 above, including

overhead and prsfit; taxes, contributions, and premiums; and

compensation to all subcontraclors and suppliers, the

compensation set forth below'

A. SCHEDULE OF PRICHS

For provlding, performing, and completing all Work,

the sum of lhe products resulting from multiplying the

actual number of acceptable units of Unit Price lterns

tisted in the Schedule of Prices attached herelo as

Attachment D by the Unit Price set forth lhe Schedule

ol Prices attached herefur as Attachrnent D for such

Unit Price ltem.

B, BA$IS FOR DETERMINING PRICES

It is expressly understood and agreed that:

1, All prices stated in the Schedule of Prices are firm
and shall not be subject to escslation or chenge;

2. Owner is not subject to state or local sales, use,
end excise taxes, that no such taxes are included

in the Sch€dule of Prices, and that all claim or
right to claim any additional compensation by

reason of the payment of any such lax is hereby

waived and released:

3. All other Epplicable federal, state, and local taxes

of every kind and nature appliceble to the Work
are incjuded in lhe Schedule of Prices;

4. The approximate quantities set forth in the

Schedule of Prices for gach Unil Price ltem are

Owner's estimate only, that Owner reserves the

right to increase or decreese such quantities and

tnlt att claim or right to dispute or complain of any
such estimated quanti$, or to assert thal there
was any misunderstanding in regard to the neture

or amount of any Unii Frice ltom to be provided

or performed, is hereby weived and releasedi and

5. Any items of Work not sp€cificelly listed or
referred to in the Schedule of Prices' or not

specifically included for payment under any Unit
Price ltem, shall be deemed incidental to the

Contract Price, shall not be measured for
payment, and shall not be paid for separately.

C. VALU€QEIilQBK

It is expressly understood and agreed that the value

of the Work shall be determined as folloun:

1. The velue of Work shell be determined by Orner
on the basis of the as'tual number of Unil Price

Items acceptable to the Owner multiplied by the

applicable Unit Price set fofth in the Schedule of
PricEs attrached hereto as Attachment D'

2. The Contract Price shall be adiusted to reflect the

actual number Unit Price ltems acceptsble to

Owner upon final ecceptance of the Work by

0wner.

TIME IEfAYMENT

Owner shall pay to Bidder the value of Work,
determined in the manner set fotth above. Payment
shall be in an amount equal to the sum of the number
of acceptable units delivered mulliplied by the per unit
price and shall be made within sixly (60) days of the
acceptdnce of the units.

3. ContraelllmefrapaEal

lf this Contrac{/Proposal i$ accepted, Bidder propo$es'

and agrees, that Bidder shall commence the Work within 10

days fotlowing Owner's acceptance of this ConiracVProposal
(the 'Commencement Date"). lf this Contract/Proposal is

accepted, Bidder proposes, and agr@es, that Bidder shall
perform the Work diligently and continuously and shall
bomplete the Work not lat6r than 30 calendar days following
the Commencement Date.

4. Flnanclal Aegurgncc

A. Insurance. lf this ContracUProposal is accepted,
Bidder proposss, and agrees, that Bidder will procure and
maintain such insurance as will sover and include the entire
obligation assumed by Bidder under the Contrac't Documents ,

as well as public liability insurance, including oontraclual
liability, contrac{ors liability and protective liahtility, automobile
liability insurance, including non+wned automobile liability,
and Workmen's Compensetion and employer's liability
insurance ee will edequately protect Owner, the Work, and
other property and persons against all damages' liability
claims, losses and expen$es (including attomey's fees) wttich
may arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connec'tion
with Bidder's performance of, or failure to perfonn, the Work or
any part theroof.

The Owner, its officials, agents, employees and volunteers
are to be covered as additionsl insured as respects: liability
arising out of the Bidrler's Work, including activities performed
by or on behelf of the Bidder; products and completed
operations of the Bidder; premises offid, leased or used by
the Bidder: or automobiles owned, leased, hired or bonowed
by the Bidder. The Bidder's insurance coverags shall b€
primary and non-contributory as respects the Orner, its
officials, agents, employees and volunteers. Prior to
commencing the Work, Bidder shall fumish lhe Owner with
certificates of insurance naming the Owner, its ofiicials,
employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds, and
with original endorsements affecting coverags requirod by this
$ectisn.

B. Indemnification. lf this ContracuProposal is accepted,
Bidder proposes, and agrees, that Bidder shall indemniff, save
harmless, and defend Owner againsl all damages, liability,
claims, losses, and elpenses (including attomeys'fees) that
may arise, or be alleged to hevt arisen, out of or in connection
with Bidde/s performance of, or failure to perform, the Work or
any part thereof, or any failure to meet the representations and
warrantiss set forih in Section 6 of this ContracUProposal.

C, Pertormance and Payment Bond. lf this
ContracUProposal is accepted, Bidder shall with 10 days' but



prior to the commencernent of the Work, post with and for the
benefii of the Owner a performance and payment bond on

forms reesonably acceptable to the Owner in the penal gum of
$100,000,

D. Penalties. lf this ContracuProposal is accepted,
Bidder propose$, and agrees, that Bidder shall be solely liable
for any fines or civil penalties that are imposed by any
govemmental or quasigovernmental agency or body thet rney
arise, or be alleged to have arisen, out of or in connection with
Bidde/s performance of, or failure to perform, the Work or any
part thereof.

5. Firm Proooml

All pricss and other terms stated in this ContracVFroposal
are firm- and shall not be subject to withdrawal, escalation, or
change provided Owner accepts this Contract/Proposal within
60 days after the date this ssaled ContracUProposal is opened.

6. Bldds/s Reoresentations and Warrantles

In order to induce Owrcr lo accept this ContracUProposal,
Bidder hereby represents and wanants as follows:

A. The Wolk, The Work, and all of its components, shall
be of merchantable quality; shall be free from any latent or
patent defects and flaws in wurkmanship, matenals, and
design; shall strictly conform to the requirements of this
ContrecuProposal and these Contract Documents, including,
without limitation, the performance standards set forth in

Section 1B of this Contract/Fnoposal; snd shall be ftt, sufficienl,
and suitable for the purpose$ expressed in, or reasonably
infened from, this Contrac,t/Proposal and the,se Contract
Document$ and the vuananlia$ expressed herein shall be in
addition to any other wananties eryressed or implied by law,
wl'rich are hereby reserved unto OrvnEr. Bidder shall, promptly
and withoui charge, coneci any failure to fulfill the above
warranty al eny time within tum years after linal payment or
suctr longer period as may be prescribed in the performance

standards set forth in $ec{ion 1B of this Contrac-t/Proposel, the
Contract Documents or by law. The above wanenty shall be
extended automatically to cover all repaired and replacement
perts and labor provided or performed under such wananty
and Bidder's obtigation to conect Work shall be edended for e
perioct of two years from the date of Euch repair or
replacement. Th6 time period established in this Sestion 64
rglates only to the specific obligation of Bidder to conect Work
and shall nol be construed to establish a period of limitation
with respect to other obligatlons that Bidder has under lhis
Contract/Proposal and the Contrect Documents.

B. Complianee wi!h-!aun. The Work, and all of il,s

components, shall be pmvided, performed, and completed in
compliance with, and Bidder agrees to be bound by, all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, orders, rulet, and
regulations, as they may be modified or amended from lime to
time; any statutss requiring preference to laborers of specified
classes: the lllinois Steel Products Procurement Act, 30 ILCS
565/1 et seq.; any statutes prohibiting discrimination because
of, or requiring affirmative action based on, race, creed, color,
national origin, age, sex, or other prohibltsd classification; and
any statutos regarding safety or the performance of the Work.

This Contract calls for th€ construction of a 'public work,"
within the meaning of tho lllinoi$ Prevailing Wage Act, 8?0
ILCS 130/,01 ef seg. ("the Act"). The Act requires contractors
and subcontractors to pay laborers, worker$ and mechanics
performing seryices on public works projects no less than the
cunent 'prevailing rate of wages" (hourly cash wages plus

amount for fringe benefits) in the county where the work is
pedormed. The Depanment publishes the prevailing wage
rates on its website at hfto://labor.illinois.qov/, The Department
revises the prevailing r,rrage rates and the Bidder hes an
obligation to check the Department's website for revisions to
prevailing wage rates. For more information regarding cilrrent
prevailing wage rates, please refer to the lllinois Department of
Labor's website. All contractors and subcontractors rendering
services under this Contract must oomply with all requirements
of the AGt, includtng but not limited fo, all wage requiremenls
and notice and record keeping duties.

C. Not Banpd. Bidder is not baned by law from
contreoting wilh Owner or wilh any other unit of state or local
government for any reeson, including without limilation as a
result of (i) a violatlon of either Section 338-3 or $ection 33E4
of Article 33 of ihe Criminal Code of 1961, 720 ILCS 5/33E-1 c!
$Hg.; or (ii) a violation of the USA Patriot Act of 2001, 107
Fublic Law 56 (October 26, 2001) (the "Patriot Act") or olher
statutes, orders, rules, and regulations of the United States
governrnent end lts various executive departments, agencies
and offices related to the subject matter of the Patriot Act,
including, but not limited to, Executive Order 13224 efiective
September 24,2001, Bidder is not ac'ting, directly or indirectly,
for or on behalf of any per$on, group, entity or natjon named by
the United $lates Treasury Dspartment as a Specially
Designated Nationel end Blocked Person, or for or on behaff of
eny person, group, entity or nation designated in Presidential
Executive Order 13224 as e person who commiE, threalem to
commit, or supports terrorism; and Bidder is not engaged in
this transaction direc{ly or indirectly on behalf of, or facilitating
thi$ transaction directly or indirectly on behalf of, eny such
person, group, entity or nation.

D. Qualified. Bidder has the requisite experience, ability,
capital. facilities, plant, organization, and staff to enable Bidder
to per{orm the Wo* successfully and promptly and to
commenoe and cornplete the Work within the Contract Frice
and Contracl Time Proposals set forlh ebove.

In submitting this Contract/Proposal, Bidder acknowledges and
agrees that:

7, Acknowladqmonts

A, Reliance. Owner is relying on all wenenties,
representations, and $tetements made by Bkjder in this
Contrect/Proposal and related Contract Documents,

B. Reservalioa of Rlqhts. Owner ressrves the right to
reject any and all propo$als, reseryes the right to reject the low
price proposal, and reserves such other rights as are $et forth
in the Instructions to Bidders.

C. Acceolance. lf this Contract/Froposal is accepted,
Bidder shall be bound by each and every term, condition, or
provision contained in this ContracVProposal and the
remaining Contrac{ Docr:ments including those terms
contained in Owne/s written notitication of Acceptance
atteched h6r6to as Attachment H.

D. RemedieE. In the event of a breach or violation of any
term or condition of lhis Contract/Proposal or any of the other
Contract Documents, Otrner shall have recours€ thrwgh any
remedy available at law or in equity and ell such remedies shall
be rumulative.



E. No Waiver. No examination, inspection, invgstigelion,
test, measurement, review, determination, decision, certifi cate,
or approval by Owner, whether before or after Owner's
acceptanc€ of this ContracUProposal; nor any information or
data supplied by Owner, wtrether befors or after Owne/s
acceptance of this ContracUProposal; nor any order by Orner
for the payment of money; nor any paym€nt for, or use,
possession, or acceptance of, the whole or any pan of the
Work by Owner; nor any extonsion of time granted by Owner;
nor eny delay by Owner in exercising eny right under this
ContracUProposal or other Contract Document; nor any other
act or omission of Owner shall constitute or be deemed lo be
en acceptance of any defective, damag€d, or nonconforming
Work, nor operate to waive or otherwise diminish the effect of
any repre$entation or warranty made by Bidder; or of any
requirement or provision of this Contrac't/Proposel or other
Contract Document; or of any remedy, power. or right of
Owner.

F. SeveLabili&, The provisions of this Contracl/
Proposal together with the other Contraet Documents shell be
interpreted when possible to sustain their legality and
enforceatflity as a whole, In lhe event any provision of this
Contraci/Proposal together with the other Contracl Documents
shall b6 held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable by a courl of
comp€tent jurisdiction, in whole or in pad, neithEr lhe velidity of
the rerneining pan of such provision, nor the validity of any
other provisions of this Contracf/Proposal or oth€r Contrect
Documents shall be in any way affected thereby

G. Arnendmcnts. No modification, addition, deletion,
revision, aliEration, or other change to this ContracUProposal
or other Contract Documents shall be effectivE unlgss end until
such change is reducsd to writing and executed and delivered
by Owner and BiddEr.

H. As$ignntEnt. Neither this Contrac{/Proposal or other
Csntrad Doolmenls, nor eny interest herein, shall bs assigned
or subcontracted, in whole or in part, by Bidder except upon
th6 prior written consent of Orner.

l. Sf,y@Dg__UAW. This ContrecuProposal and other
Contract Documonts and the rights of the padies under this
Contracl/Froposal and other Contract Documsnts shall be
interpretod according to the internal larte, bul ftot the conflict of
law rules, of fre State of lllinois. Every pruvision of law
required by law to be inserted into this Contracil/Proposal or
other Contract Documents shall be deemed to be inserted
herein.

-n-f,| r
DATED this tl day of 4dtd zOts

T



Bidder's Status:fi 'filt-t4., q Corporation
(State)

o Partnership ( )lndividual Proprietor
(State)

Bidder's Name: A tL! 'S / il e
Doing Bueiness As (ff different):

Signature of Bidder or Authorized Agent:

(corporate seal)
(if corporation)

Bidder's Bu$iness Address:

Bidder'$ BusinessTelephone: F'd - 1&9* o.fuGo

lf a Corporation or Partnership, list all Officers or Partner$:

NAIJ|E TITLE ADDRESS

,t

t{f*+*A =4ro1. {rZ.lsittrrntf
Ifd,s L/,.Arfo'+r1fg H
,{t+,argf,,.t^) , Hv */t4a?

Rv+J ^Htt- (* t),-r\4*t i{Jz-tT
flot EYF*tt LLl {4,,
Joit+f lL /-ad?t

dl*t*s hlt ttn^tP *ssI SdtEtnu+r 45H"f k. 16,4ffitbL
fr.ilzu fr*E I,/ ft97P



Attachment A

SPECIFIGATIONS

lf the ContracflProposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and agrees, that all Work shall be fully provided, perforrned, and
completed in accordance with the following specifications:

1. Scone of Work

A. The DuPage Water Commission (the Commission) maintains approximately 200 miles of water distribution
mains located within DuPage and Cook Counties lllinois. The distribution mains are constructed of Steel
Cylinder Pipe, Pre-Cest Concrete Pressure Pipe, and Ductile lron Pipe and vary in size from 16 to g0

inches in diameter. The Commission wishes to utilize Vacuum Excavating to verify the horizontal and
vertical alignment of its water distribution mains at certain locations within its distribution system generally
deplcted on Attachment B, and as further described in Attachment C, The excavation$ shall be a minimum
of I inches in diameter, will range from approximately 5 to 20 ft in depth, and through various types of soils

2. Performance of The Work

A. No excavation work shall be per-formed without the presence of a Commission representative,

B. The Contractor will be responsible for determining the locations of all underground utilities and shall comply
with the lllinois Underground Utility Facilities Damage Prevention Act. Tho Contractor shallcontact the $tate-
Of lllinois One-Call Notice System, commonly refened to as J.U.L.l.E. by telophoning 811 or 1-800-892-0123
al least 48 hours prior to excavation. This work shall not be paid for separately but shall be considered as
incidental to the contract.

C, The Contractor shall not perform, nor be compensated for, overtime work unless such overtime work has
been previously authorized by the Commission in writing. For the purpose of this proposal, overtimo work
shall be defined as time worked in excess of a normal eight (8) hour day Monday through Friday, $aturdays
and Sundays.

3. $afetv

A, Bidder is required to independently assess the potentially hazardous conditions at the Work $ite and take
the necessary precautions to en$ure a safe workplace pursuant to the ContracUFroposal and Bidder's legal
obligations. Bidder must ensure that all personnel observe all appropriate safety precautions when working
at the Work Site.

B. Neither the Owner, nor any official or employee of the Ownerr nor any authorized assistant or agent of any of
them, shall be responsib'le for the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures in, on, or near the Work site
or sites" The Owner shall not provide design or construction review relating to the Contractor's safety
precautions requlred for the Contractor to perform the Work.

C, Neither the Owner, nor any official or employee of the Owner, nor any authorized assistant or agent of any of
them, shall be responsible for conditions at the Work site or sites, nor for the safety of persons or property,
during the Pedormance of the Work.

4. Method of Measurement

I A. The number of units paid for under Pay ltem Number 1. Vaouum Excavatlon-*.$traight Time, and Pay ltem
Number 2. Vacuum Excavation----Overtime, when previously authorized in writing by the Commission, shall
be for the time engaged in on-site mobilization and demobilization and in the direct performance of vacuum
excavation work. Portal to portal travel to and from the Contractor's base of operation, travel between work
sites, travel to and from offsite disposal sites, travel to and from offsite water sources, providlng traffic control
and protection, if required at the work site by the permitting authority, shall be deemed incidental to the
Contraet Price, shall not be measured for payment, snd shall not be paid for separately.



B, ln a1 caees, backfilling of the excavations shall be made by using course aggregate CA-6. The material shall

be clean, dry and ptaced to within 6 inches of the existing surface grade immediately after excavation has

been completed. Final backfill and surface restoration shall be the responsibility of the Commission. This
work shalt be paid for by the ton for Fay ltem Number 3*-CAS Backfill which unit price shall include

fumishing, delivering, and placement of CA$ Backfill in the excavation to within 6 inches of existing surface
grade.

PubliciW

Owner's name or insignia, photographs of the Work, or any other publicity pertaining to the Work shall not be

used in any magazine, trade paper, newspaper, or other medium without the express written consent of
Owner.

5.

A.



Attachment B
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A$acnltnsrt! t

Number Locatlon CityMllage $urface Tlpe

1 Com Ed ROW from Lake St to RT53 Village of Addison Grass Surface

2 Naper Blvd .from RR tracks to Plank Rc. City of NapervilleA/illage of Lisle Grass Surface

3 Roselle Rd. North of Park St Village of Roselle Asphalt Roadway

4 CentralAve. to Foster Ave City of Wood Dale Asphalt Roadway

5 35th St. Feeder Village of Oekbrook Grass Surface

6 NE corner of Naper Blvd. and Chicago Ave. City of NapervilleA/illage of Lisle Grass Surface

7 Lake St from JFK Dr. to Creek Village of Addison Grass and Sidewalk

I Naperyille Rd from 75th to Hobson City of Naperville Grass Surface

I Rt83 from 22nd to Hodges Rd. Village of Oakbrook Grass Surface

10 Naper Blvd. at l-88 City of Naperville Grass $urface

11 SE corner Naper Blvd. and l-88 City of Naperville Grass Surface

12 Rt 83 from 22nd Street south to 188 Village of Oakbrook Grass $urface

13 Rt 83 from 188 south to 31d Street Village of Oakbrook Grass $urface

14 $ummit Ave from Butterfield Rd to 14h $treet Oakbrook Terrace Gr.ass $urface

15 Ardmore Ave from Highridge to Madison Village of Villa Park Grass Surface



SCHEDULE OF PRICES

lf the ContfacyProposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and agree$, that Bidder shall take in full payment for ell Work and other mattem

set frcrth under Section 1 of the ContracUProposal, including overhead and profit; taxes, contributions, end premiums; and

compensation to all subcontractors and suppliers, the comp€nsation set forth below.

For providing. performing, and completing all Work, the sum of the products resulting from multiplying the actual number of acceptable

units of Unit Price ltem$ listed below delivered to Owner by the Unit Pri6s set forth below for suctt Unit Price ltem:

TOTAL OF GOLUMNS C ITEMS {.3
O*4e rlutie*l flfry fou

fr,
b fio-t;r+*4

Dollars and ZdE O Cents
(in writing) (in writing)

/{4 X f{, Dollars and-LGents
(n figures)

B. BASIS FOB DETERMINING PHEES

It is expre$sly understood and agreed that;

1. All prices stated in this Schedule of Prices are firm and shall not be subiect to escalation or change;

2. Owner iE not Bubject to $taE or local sales, use, and excise taxes, that no such taxes are included in this Schedule of Prices,
and that all claim or right to claim any additional compensation by reason of the payment of any euch tgx is hereby waiwd and
relaased:

3, All other applicable federal, stete, and local taxes of every kind arrd nature applicable to the Work are included in this Schedule
of Prices;

4, The approximate quantities $6t forth in this Schedula of Prices for each Unit Price ltem are Orvner'E eetimate only, that Owner
res6rves the right to increase or decrease such quantitie$, that payment fur each Unit Price ltem ehall be made only on the
actuel number of acceptabls units of such Unit Pric6 ltem delivered to Owner in full compliance with the GontracUProposal,
and that all claim or right to di$pute or complain of any such estimetsd quantity, or to assert that th6r6 was eny
misunderstanding in regard to the nature or amount of any Unit Price ltem to be provided or performed, is hercby wai\red and
releasBdi end

5. Any items of Work not specifically listed or refurred to in this $chedule of Prices, or not specifically included br payment under
any Unit Prica lbm, shgll be deemed inci to the Contrecl Prica, shall not b6 measured for payment, and shall not be paid

for separaEly.

Signature of Bidder or Authorized
**\*-

Name: ^fr,"teS €-, a,lt*O,rol fy

A B c

Item
No.

Description Unit Cost
Per Unit

Estimated
Number of

Units

(Fo€)
Extension

1 Vacuum Excavation--*$traight Time Hour fi ryFe ",
160 J:t4 /o..f) oq

2 Vacuum Excavation--*Overtime Hour. ' q/7 ": 15 t 1'rys{ Eo

3 CA-6 Backfill Ton Y.gs. a) 200 lv tt crrt W

Title/Position:



Attachment H

ACCEPTAHCE

The ContracVproposal attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof is hereby

accepted by the order of the DuPage Water Commission ('Owned) this 

- 

day of , 2015

This Acceptance, together with the ContraoUProposal attached hereto, constitutes the entire and only agreement betw66n

the parties relating to the accomplishment of the Work and the compensation therefor and supersedes and merge$ any

other prior or contemporaneous discussions, agreements, or understandings, whether written or oral, and shall prevail

over any contradictory or inconsistent terms or conditions contained in any purchase order, acceptance,

acknowledgement, invoice, or other etandard form used by the partie$ in the pedormance of the ContracUProposal, Any

such contradictory or inconsistent terms or oonditions shall be deemed obJected to by Owner without further notice of

objection and shall be of no effect nor in any circumstances binding upon Owner unless accepted by Owner in a written

dotument plainly labeled "Amendment to ContracUProposal." Acceptance or re_jection by Owner of any such contradictory
or inconsistent terms or conditions $hall not constitute acceptance of any other contradictory sr inconsistent terms or

conditions.

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSIOH

John F. $patz, Jr.
General Manager

By:



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL$

OWNER:

DuPage Water Commission
600 East Butterfield Road
Elmhurst, lllinois 601 26-4642

Owner will receive sealed proposals for the Work generally described as follows:

VAGUUiI EXCAVAIISN €EEUEES

TO BE SUBMITTED TO DuPage Water Commission, 600 East Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, lllinois 60126-4642, Attention John F. $patz,
Jr., General Manager, BEFORE 1:00 P.M., July 27, 2015.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

Preoaration of Proposals

The .Contract Documents" shall be deemed to include this
Request for Proposals and the "ContracUProposal" attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "A" together with
Attachments A through E attached thereto and incorporated
therein. The'Work" shall be for "Vacuum Excavation" which
shall be defined to be a means of soil extraction where water
or an air jet is used to break up soil followed by extraction of
these materials through a vacuum device.

All proposals for the Work shall be made only on the blank
ContracUProposal form attached to this Request for Proposals,
and shall be complete with a price for each and every item
named in the Schedule of Prices attached to the
ContracVProposal form as Attachment D. All proposals shall
be dated on page 4 of the ContracVProposal form and shall be
signed by an authorized ofiicial, including page 5 of the
ContracUProposal form and the Schedule of Prices attached to
the Contracl/Proposal form as Attachment D. Proposals that
contain omissions, erasurgs, alterations, or additions not called
for, conditional or altemate bids unless called for, or that
contain irregularities of any kind may be rejected.

Clarifications

Owner reserve$ the right to make clarifications, conections, or
changes in this Request for Proposals at any time prior to the
time proposals are opened. All bidders or prospective bidders
will be informed of said clarifications, corrections, or changes.
lf any prospective bidder has questions about this Request for
Proposals, contact Ed Kazmierczak, Pipeline Supervisor, at
630-834-0100 between the hours of 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM.

Deliverv of Prooosals

Each proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope plainly
marked with the title of the contract and bidder's full legal name
and shall be addressed and delivered to the place and before
the time set forth above. Proposals may be delivered by mail
or in person. Proposals received after the time specified above
will be retumed unopened.

Ooeninq of Prooosals

Proposals will be publicly opened and read at the time and
place specified above. Bidders, their authorized agents, and
interested parties are invited to be present,

Withdrawal of Proposals

No proposal shall be withdrawn for a period of 60 days after
the opening of any proposal.

ReieetiorolEropqsalg

Proposals that are not submitted on the ContracUProposal
form or that are not prepared in accordance with these
Instructions to Bidders may be rejected. lf not rejected, Owner
may demand correction of any deficiency and accept the
deficiently prepared proposal upon compliance with these
lnstructions to Bidders.

Acceptance lffraposals

Proposals are being solicited pursuant to, and will be acted
upon, in accordance with Article Vlll, $ection 5 of the Owne/s
By-Laws. Proposals submifted are offers only and the decision
to accept or reject is a function of quality, reliability, capability,
r€putation, and expertise of the bidders.

Owner reseryes the right to accept the proposal that is, in its
judgment, the best and most favorable to the interests of
Owner and to the public; to reject the low price proposal; to
accept any item of any proposal; to reject any and all
proposals; and to waive inegularities and informalities in any
proposal submitted or in the request for proposal prccess;
provided, however, the waiver of any prior defect or informality
shall not be considered a waiver of any future or similar defect
or informality. Bidders should not rely upon, or anticipate, such
waivers in submifting their proposal.

Owner shall notifu the successful Bidde/s of the acceptance of
it$ proposal by the transmission of the Acceptance in the fonn
attached to the ContracUProposal as Attachment E. Upon the
transmission of the Acceptance by the otilner, the Contract
Documents shall become the contract for the Work.

DATED thi$ 29th day of June 2015.

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

By: /s/ John F. Spatz, Jr.
General Manager



August 13, 2015

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION

AGENDA Engineering & Construction
SHCTION Committee

ORIGINATING Pipeline
DEPARTMENT

ITEM Authorization For the
Purchase of a Hydrovac
Tow-Behind Trailer

APPROVAL

?rv
AccountNo: 01-60-685600

Ordinance O-2-15, adopted by the Board at the April 16, 2015 Commission meeting, approved a
Management Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 which included the purchase of a Hydrovac Tow
Behind Trailer in the budgeted amount of $85,000.00,

To best suit the Commission's needs, it was determined that the proposed Hydrovac Tow
Behind Trailer must have the ability to: be operated by one person; be within a certain weight
range that even when fully loaded with spoils; could be towed by vehicles currently in the
Commission's fleet; and would have the capability of not only performing routine maintenance
work such as manhole cleaning, but could also perform some of the same functions as larger,
more expensive trailer mounted vacuum excavators.

Hydrovac Tow Behind Trailers meeting these general needs, as well as being similar in cost,
specifications, and operating features, are offered by Ditch Witch and Ring-O-Matic.
Hxcavation. Demonstrations of both units were scheduled and witnessed in order to see how
well each unit would perform under identical soil backfill conditions like those typically found
over Commission water mains.

During the test demo, the Hydrovac unit offered by Ditch Witch was only capable of hydro-
excavating a 1Z-inch diameter hole to a depth of approximately 2 feet below grade in a 30
minute period of time. In addition, the unit's base price wes epproximately $s,700.00 dollars
higher, and it provided less in the way of standard equipment than the Ring-O-Matic unit. For
those rea$ons, no further purchase consideration was given to the Ditch Witch unit at the
conclusion of its demonstration.

The Hydrovac unit offered by Ring-O-Matic consistently demonstrated the ability to hydrovac a
12-inch diameter hole to depths in excess of 5 feet and in less time. The unit has a lower base
price and offers more standard equipment than the Ditch Witch. Because of its superior
performance and cost advantage, Staff is requesting to purchase the Ring-O-Matic unit.

Ring-O-Matic is a participating vendor with a local government cooperative purchasing body
called HGAC (Houston Galveston Area Council) Buy. LF George Inc., located in Waukesha Wi.,
is an authorized Ring-O-Matic dealer and his price quote is consistent with the cost of the
machine as listed in the HGAC Buy Contract Number SC01-15.

Staff is requesting approval authorization for Purchase Requisition No. 20219 to LF George Inc.
in the amount of $39,412.00 per the attached quote.

MOTION: To authorize Purchase Requisition No. 20219 in the amount of $39,41?,00 to LF
George, Inc.



DuPage Water Commission
600 E. Butterfield Ror

Elmhurst, lL 60{26
Road

Purchase Requisition

Requisltion:

Status:
For Store:
Originator:

Line Task

1

Account:
From Supplier:

Approver:

Date approved:

Requisition Gomments:

Requ|3lilon Date: 06/30/2015

Unlt Pric€ Total

$39,412.00 $39,412.00USD

Due date Quaniity
uoM

6/30/15 1

01-60-685600/20'16
LFGEORGE INC I LFGEORGE INC]

Line l Unit cost established per local
government cooperative purchasing
contracl with HGAC BUY. (Houston
Galveston Area Council Buy)

20219 t xyarovac excavator I

U I Unfinished ]
DIST-SYS I Dislribution System Maintenace and Repair ]
301-0013 [ EDWARD KAZI\fiERCZAK I

DuPags water / Supplier Part No.

Units

Total 39,412.00 USD

l8/10/20'15 13:18 DuPage water Commission



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

DuPage Water Commission
MEMORANDUM

John Spatz, General Manager

Cheryl Peterson, F i nancial Ad m i n istra to, 0'/f(

July 8, 2015

Accounts Payable Listings

Following is a summary of the Accounts Payable to be considered at the July 16, 2015
Commission meeting:

June 10, 2015 to July 7 , 2Q15 A/P Repoft

Accrued and estimated payments required
before August Commission meeting

$8,733,726.11

1,223,090.00

Total $9,956,816.11

cc: Chairman and Commissioners



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID BY 8-20-I$

Board Meeting Date: July 16, 2015

Estimate A!!qunt Description Check Number PaymentDale PaymentAmquqt

45,000.00

6,000.00

9,000.00

200.00

20,000.00

300,000.00

180,000 00

2,000.00

15,000.00

250.00

2,000.00

2,600.00

1,000.00

5,000.00

1,000.00

200.00

400.00

200 00

1,500.00

525.00

8,000 00

2,500.00

5,500 00

3,000.00

1,500.00

23,000.00

?00.00

250.00

6,000 00

6,000.00

200.00

2,200.00

400.00

2s0.00

300 00

500.00

2,000.00

Blue Cross Blue Shield - Health Insurance

Euclid Managers - Dental Insurance

lllinois Public Risk Fund - Workers Comp.

Envision Health Care - Administration FBBS

ComEd - Utility Charges

Constellation (Exelon Energy) - Utility Charges

City of Chicago - Lexington. Electric

City of Naperville -Meter Station Electric Bills

Nicor - Gas

Comcast - Int€rnBt Service

AT&T - TelephoneCharges

AT & T - Scada Backhaul Network

Fed-Ex - Postage/Delivery

Procurement Card Charges

Home D6pot - Maintenance SuppliBs

Anderson - Pest Control

Republic Services - Disposal Services

Elecsys - Cell Data Services

Konica Minolte - Copy and Lease Charges

Pitney Bowes - Postage

Grainger - Supplies for Operations

Verizon - Wireless Service

Beker Tilly

Gorski & Good

Rory Group

Sikich - Audit Services

Edward Coughlin - Security

Storino Ramello & Durkin

John J. Millner & Assoc

Air Comfort - HVAC Services

Batteries Plus - Battery

B&W Controls - Met6r Shop enhancements

CLC Lubricants - Oil

ComplianceSings.com - Inv€ntory zone signs

Digi-Key - Meter station supplies

Don Johns Engineering - Meter station $upplies

Eco Clean - June janitorial services

H:\Accountino\2015-2016\071s\commission R€Dorts\EST ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST - JULY 15



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID BY 8-?0-15

Board Meeting Date: July 16,2015

900.00 Elmhurst Plaza Standard - Vehicle repairs

450.00 Fast Signs - Signs for tank sites

250.00 Five Star - Meter Slation supplies

75.00 Floor Scrubber - Maintenance supplies

1,500.00 Green Window - Window cleaning

290.00 HR Plus - Background checks

500.00 HSQ Technology - Meter Station supplies

50.00 Kara - Paint

2,500.00 Mettler Toledo - Meter shop contract renewal

3,500.00 Mozy - Data backup services

900.00 Omega Battery - Battery

1,000.00 Paddock Publications - Legal notices

2,000.00 Palatine Oil - Gasoline

800.00 Ross Bostick - OSHA Cless Travel Reimbursement

1,600.00 Schneider Electric - Camera parls

700.00 Specially Mat - Cleaning service

150.00 Staples - Office supplies

250.00 Thermo/Cense - Meter Station supplies

22,000.00 Dixon Engineering - Standpipe

400,000.00 Era-Valdivia Contractors * $tandpipe Rehab

130,000.00 Malcor Roofing - Roof Replacement

t:zs--o-50T6-
::#

H:\Accountina\zo1+2016\07-15\Commission ReDorts\EST ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Ll$T - JULY 15



Payable Number

Payable Accountt

Vendon 1783

700L0261J.fi

vendon 1[1*2

0180734

vendori t9-8!
327858

_327_868

vendor: ?PJ-Z

tL)

v€ndori 1692

24836

Z+Bfl
24954

Vendon \r79
0!2oza918

Vendor; 1134

!N_vq0!03?_6

Vendor: !-EE
!_NVg"0*8"0j.e8

Vendor: 1821

13983?

Vendon 1797

tNV0000314

Vendon 1798

rNV0000_3*1*5

Vendon 2076

!_NV0q0*q3L1

Vendor; 1233

86438

Vendori LQ97

39591

39600

vendor: 1843

rN660128

Vendor: L947

PtNV986987

Vendor: 1166

1.1_65?t4j01

Lr65224-02

vendor: 1892

tNV0000331

DuPage Water Commission

Description

0 1- 2 1 1000 - ACCO UII_LF"AY.A rlE
AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION

AWWA MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL: MCGHEE

BAXTER AND WOODMAN

RESERVOIR AND METER STATION 198 REHAB

BEARY I.ANDSCAPE MANA6 EMENT

TANK SITE I-ANDSCAPING: JUNE 2015

LAWN MAINTENANCE: JUNE 2015

BEDROCK EARTHSCAPES, TLC

SERVICE VISIT - JUNE ?015

BRIDGEPOINT TECHNOTOGIES

HOSTING SERVICES

HOSTING SERVICES

HOSTING SERVICES: JULY 2015

CHICAGO TRIBUNE

CI-ASSIFIED LISTINGS

CITY OF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF WATER

LEX PUMP STATION LABOR: MAY 2015

WATER BILLING: JUNE 2015

COLTEY ETEVATOR COMPANY

ELEVATOR PRESSURE TEST

DANIETJ. TOFTU$

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER; JANJUNE 2015

DAVID C. RUSSO

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER; JAN-JUNE 2015

DAVID NOVOTNY

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER; JANJUNE 2015

EtMI{URST MEMORIAT OCC HEATTH SERVICE$

PRE-EMPLOYMENT SCREENING

ETMHURST PTAZA STANDARD INC.

BATTERIES FOR TRUCK 45

VEHICLE REPAIRS: M63637

FTEETMATICS

VEHICLE TRACKING SUBSCRIPTION

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

GTENBARD ETECTRIC SUPPtY, INC.

METERSTATION SUPPLIES

METER STATION SUPPLIES

GORSKI & GOOD, ttP
ATTORNEY FEE: JUNE 2015

CITY OF CHICAGO SUPERINTENDENT OF WATER COTTECTION

Post Dete

06130l20ts

06/30lzoLs

o6ls9laOLs

06/30120Ls

06/30/201s

06/t6/20Ls
06/t6lzoLs
07/07/20rs

06/30/20Ls

06/3Ola0Ls

06/30/20Ls

06/30/aOLs

06130/zOLs

06130/zOLs

06130/?OLs

07lo7lzoLs

06/30/zOLs

06/30120Ls

07/o7/zots

06/3o/20Ls

06/L7lz0rs
06/30/2oL5

06/30/201s

Payable Count: (11

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Countr (2)

Payable count: (rl

Payable Countr (3)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Counti (l)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable count; (ll

Payable Count: (ll

Payable Gount: (lf

Payahle Count; (ll

Payable Count: (21

Payable Count; (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count: (2)

Payable Count: (1)

Net
Amount

325.00

325,00

2,465.74

2,465.74

3,253.50

1,434.50

1,819,00

832.00

832.00

135.00

45.00

45.00

45.00

r2,428.00

12,428.00

23,898.44

23,898,44

8,541,987.80

8,641,987.80

2r0.00
210,00

300.00

300.00

300.00

300.00

300.00

300.00

70.00

70.00

680.09

366,8s

313.24

486.22

486.22

9.58

9.58

107.60

64.S6

43,04

t,100.00
2,100,00

Board Open Payable Report
As Of 07 /o7 lzots

Summarized by Payable Account

Payable
Amount

325.00

2,465,74

1,434,50

1,819.00

832,00

45.00

45.00

45.00

12,428.00

23,898,44

8,641,987.80

210,00

300,00

300,00

300,00

70.00

366.85

313,24

486,22.

9.s8

64,56

43.04

2,100.00

7/712015 l:29:35 PM Page 1 of 4



Board Open Payable Report

Payahle Number

vendor: 1068

9446057

Vendor; LL97

LQsr_?-Q8

E099350

E18s*8*3_3

Vendor; 1948

rNv00o0lz2_

tNV0000323

rNV0000327

Vendor: 2077

1NV0000309

Vendor: 1032

201s-04551

Vendori 1196

31_1.051

Vendon 17-95

tNVOOOO3l3

Vendor: 2079

NVqqaoi_2j

Vendor: Il99
tNV0000316

Vendor; 1750

7408

Vendon 1395

7784L267000L

778412846001

27,8fl48J_?CIo_1

7784L284800L

7184128510!1

7*2.8*_4-3*t$_25pp*1

Vendor: 2026

?634r

Vendor: 1113

EM600244845

Vendor: 1321

81301

Vendor: 1059
450000008715

Vendor; 1118

**"1-70

Vehdof: 1811

tNV0000312

Vendon 207-5

rNV00003lQ

vendon 1813

FOC07?82q

As oI oTlo7lz0ts

Description

HACH COMPANY

MONTHLY CHEMICALS

I{D SUPPTY WATERWORKS, LTD,

METER STATION SUPPLIES

METER STATION SUPPLIES

METER STATION SUPPLIES

IUOE tOCAt 399 ETF

GAS PRESSURE REGULATOR TRAININGi FOUSHI

IUOE HOMELAND SEC PREP TRAINING: FOUSHI

EPA 608 TECH CERTIFICATION: ARREDONDO

JOSEPH FENNELT

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER: JANJUNE 2015

JUTIE, INC.

UTILITY LOCATS: JULY-SEPT 2015

KARA COMPANY, INC.

PAINT

TAURA CRAWFORD

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER: JANJUNE 2015

MANUSOS GENERAT CONTRAC-TING, INC.

RESERVOIR HATCH/STIAR PAYOUT #1

MICI{AET R. SCHECK

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER: JANJUNE 2015

MY MECHANIC, INC.

REPAIRS TO VEHICLE: M127481

OFFICE DEPOT

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

ONYX

OFFICE SUPPLIES

PATTEN INDUSTRIES, INC.

REPAIRS TO PORTABLE GENERATOR

PERSPECTIVES, tTD.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE SVC; QUARTER 7/1-9130/15

RED WING SHOE STORE

SAFETY SHOESI MOX

REGIONAL TRUCK EqUIPMENT CO.

VEHICLE REPAIRS: M78556

RICHARD R. FURSTENAU

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER: JAN-JUNE 2015

ROBERTGANS

SERVICE AS COMMISSIONER: JANJUNE 2015

ROESCH FORD

OIL CHANGE & TIRE ROTATION: M78556

Post Dete

06/3O/2O7s

06/3O/2015

06/30/20ts
06/3Ol2OrS

06/30/20rs
06/30/z}rs
06130/20Ls

06/30/2OL5

07/07120Ls

07/07/20Ls

06/30/2Ot5

06/30/20ts

06130/zors

06/30/?OLs

06/30/201s

06/30/201s
06/3Olz0Ls

06/30/?Ots
06/3O/2O7s

06/3Q/20Ls

06/30/zots

06ho/20L5

07lo7l?ots

06130laOLs

06/30/?Ots

06/301z0rs

06/30/?Ots

06/3012ot5

Payable
Amount

299.89

1,518.00

27s.00

210.00

50.00

50.00

90.00

300.00

16,393.97

t,oLz,70

300.00

8,677.80

300.00

450.09

130.14

462.89

15.29

6,79

55.4b

4.49

27t.59

898.86

I t s.UU

250.00

50.00

300.00

300.00

45.54

Net
Amount

299.89

299.89

2,003.00

1,s18,00

275.OO

210,00

190.00

50.00

s0,00

90.00

300.00

300.00

15,393.97

16,393.97

1,012.20

1,012,20

300.00

300.00

8,577.8O

8,677.80

300.00

300.00

450.09

450.09

653.06

130.14

462.89

ls,29
6.79

33,46

4.49

271.59

27r.59

898.86

898.85

273.00

?73.OO

2s0.00

250.00

s0.00

50.00

300.00

300.00

300.00

300,00

45.54

45,54

Payable count: (l)

Payable Count: (3)

Payable Count: (3)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count: (1!

Payable Count: (11

Payable Count: (t)

Fayable Countr (1)

Payable €ountr (1)

Payable Counti (l)

Payable Count: (6)

Payable Countr (1)

Fayable Countr (t)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count: (l)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count: (1)

7/7/7015 3:29:35 PM Page 2 of 4



Board Open Payable Report

Payable Number

Vendor: LgP,.3*

r2ss267

Vendorr 1043

2s7s83

Vendon LIZI
tNV0000330

Vendori 1123

15-1970

Vendor: 1913

9747266L37

Vendori 2028

tNV11629

Description

ROWEtt CHEMICAL CORPORATION

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE

SOOPER LUBE

vEH ICLE MAINTENANCE; M175659

SPI ENERGY GROUP

CONSULTING FEE; D-001-009

TI{OMFSON ETEVATOR INSPECIION SERVICE, INC,

SEMI-ANNUAL ELEVATOR INSPECTION

VERIZON WIREIESS

cELL PHoNE SVc: s/13-6/12l1s

zoBRro

INCODE SERVER SERVICES

Post Date

06/30/zOLs

06/3Ol?Ots

06/30/zOLs

06/30lzlLs

06/30/20Ls

06/16120L5

Payable
Aftount

2,051.08

4?..94

9,230.00

ss.00

-620.88

110.00

42.94

42.94

9,230.00

9,230.00

55.00

55.00

.520.88

-620.88

1r0.00
110.00

Payable Count;

AsOt 07lo7l20t5

Net
Amount

(u 2,0s1.08

2,051.08

Payable Account 01-211000

Payable Count; (1)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count; (1)

Payable Countr (11

Payable Count: (57) Total: 4,733,726.tt

7 /7 /2015 3: Z9:35 PM Page 3 olF4



Board Open Payable Report As Ol O7lO7lzoLl
Summary

Payable Account 5ummary
Account
O1-211OOO - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Fund

01 - WATER FUND

count Amount
57 8,733,726.LL

Report Totah

Payable Fund Summary

Report Total: 57 4,733,726.t|

5l

8,7?3,725.LL

Amount
8,733,726.Lr

7/7/7015 3:29:35 PIY
Page 4 of 4



DuPage Water Gommission
MEMORANDUM

TO: John Spatz, General Manager

FROM: Cheryl Peterson, Financial Administrator h(

DATE: August 1'1 , 2015

SUBJECT: AccountsPayable Listings

Following is a summary of the Accounts Payable to be considered at the August 20,

2015 Commission meeting

July 8, 2015 to August 11 , 2015 A'/P Report

Accrued and estimated payments required
before September Commission meeting

$9,991,583.21

Total $11,554,658.21

cc: Chairman and Commissioners

1.563.075.00



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID BY 9-I7"'I5

Board Meeting Date: August 20,2015

Estimate Amount Descdption Check Number Pavment Date PaYmont Amount

45,000.00 Blue Cross Blue Shield - Health Insurance

6,000.00 Euclid Managers - Dental Insurance

9,0OO.OO lllinois Public Risk Fund - Workers Comp

200.00 Envision Health Care - Administrdtion Fees

20,000.00 ComEd - Utility Charges

300,000.00 Constellation (Exelon Energy) - Utility Charges

180,000.00 City of Chicago - Lexington. Electric

2.000.00 City of Naperville -l\iet€r Slation Electric Bills

15,000.00 Nicor - Gas

250.00 Comcasi - Intemet Service

2,000.00 AT&T - Telephone Charges

2,600.00 AT & T - Scada Backhaul Network

1,000.00 Fed - Ex - Postage/D6livery

5,000.00 Procurement Card Charges

1,000.00 Home Depot - Maintenance Supplies

200-00 Anderson - Post Control

400.00 Republic Services _ Disposal Services

200.00 Elecsys - Cell Data Services

1,500.00 Konica l.4inolte - copyand Lease Charges

525.00 Pitney Bowes - Postage

8,000.00 Grainger - Supplies for Operations

2,500.00 verizon _ Wireless Service

5,500.00 Baker TillY

3,000.00 Gorski& Good

23,000.00 Sikich - Audit Services

200.00 Edward Coughlin - Security

250.00 Stodno Ramello & Durkin

6,000.00 John J. Millner & Assoc

8,000.00 Sikich - Audit Services

2,500.00 Air Comfort - Pressure switches installation

650.00 Chicago Tribune - Legal Notice

8,300.00 Critical Pou€r - Annual agreemenl

1,100.00 DLT Solutions - Subscription renewal

50.00 EquipSolutions' Tank supplies

250.00 Five Star - l/eter Station Supplies

400.00 Glenbard - Meter Station Suppli6s

'1,400-00 Hach - Service call

200.00 HsQ Technology - Meter Station Supplies

H:\accounring\2015.2016\08-1s\Commlsslon Repons\EST AccoUNTS PAYABLE LIST - AUGUST 15



DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION
ITEMS TO BE PAID SY 9-I7-15

Board M€eting Dater August 20, 2015

300.00 ltsawy - Meter Station Supplies

5,000.00 Kramer Datapower - Battery Maintenance

600.00 Local 399 - Training colrses

100-00 Mcl\raster Carr - Maintenance Supplies

2,000.00 Palten Power - Generator repaiE

250.00 Pinnacle Sales - Replacemenl valves

250.00 Red Wing - Safety shoes

'1 ,800.00 Ro\ €ll Chemical - Chemicals

150.00 Staples - Office SuPPlies

500-00 Sherwin Williams - Paint

1,550.00 Westchester Lock & Key - Lock supplies

900.00 Whiting Services - Crane and hoisl inspections

16,500.00 Divan€ - QRE6.020

850,000.00 Era-Valdivia Conhactors - Tank Painting

20.000.00 Neri - Pavement Repair

-------fB,o-t5no-

H:\Accounlinq\2015-2016\08-is\Cmmision Repods\ESTACCOUNTS PAYABLE L|ST - AUGUST 15



DuPage Water Commission

Payable Number

Payable Aacount:

Vendor: 1!!!
9341744

Vendor: 1q!5
256A6a4394

2568614548

25686L4552

2s68614556

Vendor: 1802
8T867504

Vendor: 19€q

1314
33.12!

vendor: 2qlz
41

vendor: 1692

25062

vendon 1!23
xB334A4

Vendon 1091
8402350841

Vendon 1134
rNV00003s0

rNV0000386

vendor: !!35
rNV0000391

tNV0000392

Vendor: !![0
tNV0000353

vendor: ?OEQ

).5-9419

vendor: 2@3

4911

Vendor: 1674

14613

Vendor: !q97
396€6

Vendor: 1843
tN698751

vendor: 1892
rNV0000395

Vendor: 2gU

Post Date

oelLrlzoLs

o7l3u2o1s
07 l3uzors
o7 /3712O1s
o7l37l2ors

07 /3r/20rs

o7 /3r/20r5
07 /3Ll2Or5

01l3rl2ors

osJlLI20ts

ol l3Ll2Ot5

o7 /31/2O1s

o7174/2015

07131/2015

07llu2o1s
07111/2015

o7lrl /2o1s

07131/2OL5

o7l3u2015

o7 /31/2015

o7129/2OL5

07131/2Or5

07131/20L5

4,455.00

1,504.50

786.50

732.OO

4s.00

207.22

367.54

5,21J.70

2s,881.28

4,554,L30.64

s,062,357 .O4

255.00

1,572.00

4,914.85

159.94

486.22

Description

01 211OOO' ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

ARAMARK REFRESHM€NTS

SUPPLIES

AUTOZONE, rNC.

VEHICLE MAINT€NANCE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

VEHICLE PARTS

SAXER TITIY VIRCHOW XRAUSE, LLP

PROFESSIONAT SERVICESt 6 /2a-7 / 211 75

SEARY TANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT

LAWN MAINTENANCEI I ULY 2015

TANK SITE LANDSCAPING: JULY 2015

BEDROCI( EARTHSCAPE' LIC

SERVTCE VrSrT, 7/28115

BRIDGEPOINT TECHNOI-OG IES

HOSTING SERVICES

COW GOVERNMENT, INC.

METER STATION SUPPLIES

CINTAS FIRSTAID & SAFEW

FIRSTAIDSUPPLIES

CITYOF CHICAGO DEPARTMENT OF WATER

TEX PS REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

tEX PUMP STN LAEOR: JUNE 2015

CIW OF CHICAGO SUPERINTENDENT OF WATER COTLTCTION

WATER ElLLlNG: JUtY 2015

WATER BILLING: JUtY 2015

CIry OF ELMHURST

WIR€LESS RADIO: MAINT&MONITOR

DIXON ENGINEENI G,INC.

TANX REHAB

ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC.

JANITORIAI SERVICET I ULY 2015

ECO PROMOTIONAI. PRODUCTS, INC

PROMOTIONAL PRODUCTS

EIMHURST PI.AZA SIANDARD INC.

VEHICLE REPAIRS: M173659

FT[ETMATICS

VEHICLE TRACKING SUBSCRIPTION

GORSKI & GOOD, LLP

ATTORNEY FEE: JUI-Y 2015

GR€EN WINDOW CLEAI{I]'/G SERVICES

Board Open Payable Report
AsAf o8/tt/2075

Summarized by Payable Account

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Coune (4)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Countr (2)

Payable Co|Jnt (1)

Payable Coun* (1)

Payable countr (l)

Payable Countr (l)

Payable countr (21

Payable Countr (2)

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payeble Count: (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count: (1)

P.yable Count: (1)

Payable Countr (1)

Payeble Count: (1)

Net
Amount

ttt.a2
1L!.42

388.74

83.98

40.45

88.43

175.88

4,455.00

4,455.00

2,291.00

1,504.50

786.50

732.00

732.00

45.00

45.00

2o7.22

207.22

367.54

31,(x'8.38

5,2r7.!O
25,881.28

9,515,'187.58

4,554,L30.64

5,062,357 .04

255.00

255.00

15,531.55

16,531.55

1,572.00

7,572.@

4,914,85

4,914.85

159.94

159.94

446.22

446.22

1,950.33

453.50

8/1!24\5 2t2OtO1 Pl4 Fage 1 of 4



Board Open Payable Report

PayableNumber Description

9!9 MONTHLY CLEANING: JUIY 2015

V€ndor: 1068 HACH COMPANY

9476126 MAINTENANCE KITS FOR ANALYZERS

9501155 MONTHLY CHEMICALS

9506241 MONTHLY CHEMICALS

vendor: 1!Z HD SUPPLY WATERWORXS, LTD

E2O41I9 UNIPRO COMMUNICATOR

.2A916 METER STATION SUPPIIES

Vendor: !125 HR PI-US

039144 BACKGROUND CHECI(S

V€ndor: 153.0 IRTH SOLUTIONS,lNC.

INVOO5666 UTILISPHERE ATTACHMENT

Vendor: lgl8 IUOE I-OCAL 399 ETF

INVOOOO3SS TEV OPERATION AND TROUELESHOOTING 5E MINAR

INVOOOO3S9 CRITICATSYSTEMS AND TEXT BOOKS

lNvo00o393 ETECTRICTY FOR ENGINEERS: FOUSHI

INVOOOO3g4 COMMERCIAL HEATING AND COOLING: CARDENAS

Vendor: !9119 JOHN l. MILLNER AND ASSOCIATES, lNC,

5Z coNsuLTrNG SERVTCES

Vendor: 2081 MAI-COR ROOFING OF ILLINOIS INC

588 ROOF REPI.ACEMENT

Post Date

01l29l2ors

07 /2a/2OL5
07 /3Ll2O1s
oglttlzors

01l2al2ors
08/lU2OrS

01/3r/20r3

o1/3r/20rs

o? I3u20L5
07 /3r/20rs
01/3r/20rs
01/3U201s

01l3u20L5

ot I3Ll2015

ol l3rl2ots
01/3U2O1s

o8/lU2O1S

08/1r/2015
08/lU20ts
08JlU2015

01l3r/20r5

o7l3rl2ors

01/21/2Or5
07 /2L/20rs
07 /2U2Or5
07 /2L|2OL5
o7 /2r/20r3
07 /2!2OrS
o7 /29/20rs

oa/ul2oL5

07 /2!/20rs

o7 /3712O1s
o7 /3rl2o1s

PaVable

453.50

2,3L2.22

299.89

388.94

285.96

820,00

82.55

83.33

50.00

210.00

215.00

205.00

6,000.00

285,000.00

1,876.18

76.79

99.32

15.29

130.14

475.50

2,500.00

10.20

10.20

10.20

344.25

17.00

1s3.00

503.20

120.00

42,95

163.11

Payable Count (2)

Payabl€ Coun* (l)

Peyable Count (l)

Payable Countr (4)

As Of 08/1112015

Net
Amount

453.50

PaYoble countr (3) 3,001.05

2,312.22

299.89

388.94

Payable Countr (l)

1,105.95

285.96

820.00

82,ss

83.33

83.33

680,00

s0.00

210.00

215.00

205.00

6,(n0.00
6,000.00

244.75

!5.29
130.14

475,50

475.50

2,500.00

2,s00.00

I,048.05
10.20

10.20

10.20

344.25

7J.n
153.00

503.20

120.00

120.00

42.95

42.95

801.93

163.11

144.4L

Vendor: 2q85

50x!52
5oz-15!

vendor: lqlq
1t822
1L84!t

MANSFIELD OIT COMPANY

CASOLINE

GASOLINT

SPECIAI.TY MATSERVICE

MAT SERVICE: Z2l15
MAT SERVICE: 216115

Payable countr (1) 285,000,00

28s,000.00

Payabfe Countr (2) ?,274-tl
1,398.13

1,876.18

Payable Countr (l) 16-79

16.79

Payable Count: (3)

Vendon !g!1 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY

35954063 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

Vendon 1395 OfFICE DEPOT

784582606001 oFF|CESUPPL|ES

7a45a2746m1 oFFTCESUPPLIES

184582747001 OFFTCESUPPUES

Vendor: 1!!3 PATT€NINDUSTRIES,lNC.

PM600246582 EttCTRtCAt REPAIRS

Vendon 2!59 REACH HR ContultinS, LIC

&1l'4 EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Vendon 1059 RED wlNG SHOE STORE

45OOOOOO8788 SAFETYCLOTHING:WEGNER

4s0000008789 SAFETYCLOTHING:NlLEs

450000008790 SAFETYCLOTHING:SANCHEZ

4s0000008793 SAFETYCLOTHING:LEANOS

4s0000008817 SAFETYCI-OTHING:BONNEMA

4s0000008818 SAFETYCI-OTHING:SCHORI

4s0000008833 SAFETYCIOTHING:IEANOS

Vendor: ?83? REPUBIIC SERVICES *551

0551-011785704 REFUSE DTSPOSAL - AUGUST 2015

Vendor: @ SOOPER IUBE

259296 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: M169815

Payable Countr (1)

Payable Count (1)

Payable Count (7)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count: {4)

alrl/2015 2t2OtO1 PM



Board Open Payable Report

Payable Number

280159

1$ZE

Vendor: 188q
ozs 129626

Vendor: 10118

229861,000

Post Date

07/37/2O7s
07131/2015

o7129/2Ot5

07 /2a/2OL5

As Of 08/1112015

Net
Amount

744.41

350.00

4,L45.57

4,L36.67

451,60

461.60

9,$1,s83.21

Descdption

MAT SERVICE: 7/30/1s
RAGS FOR PIPELINE

WLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

INCODE MAINTENANCE

ztEBE| L WATER SERVtCt PRODUCTS, tNC.

FIR€ HYDRANT PARTS

Payable
Amount

144.41

350.00

Pavable Acaount 01-211000

Payable Count: (1)

Payable Count (l)

Payable Count: (60) Total:

El11/2D75 2t2Otlr PM Page 3 of 4



Board Open Payable Report As Of OA/rLlzOrs

5ummary
Payable Account Summary

Account
O1 211OOO. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Fund

01, WATER FUND

Report Total: 9,99r"583.21

Payable Fund Summary

60 9,991.583.21
Reportrotal: 

- 
oo ,,rr#s321

Count

60

Amount
9,991,583.21

al77/2415 2t2O:or Pt4
Page 4 of 4



DuPage Water Comm ission
MEMORANDUM

Chairman Zay and Commissioners

John F. Spatz
General Manager

August 13,2015

SUBJECT: June 2015 Invoice

I reviewed the Gorski & Good, LLP June 2015 invoice for services rendered during

the period - June 1,2015 - June 30, 2015 and recommend it for approval. This

invoice should be placed on the August 20, 2015, Commission meeting accounts

payable.
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SUBJECT:

DuPage Water Gomm ission
MEMORANDUM

Chairman Zay and Commissioners

John F. Spatz
General Manager

August 13, 2015

July 2015 Invoice

I reviewed the Gorski & Good, LLP July 2015 invoice for seruices rendered during

the period - July 1,2015 -July 31,2015 and recommend itfor approval. This

invoice should be placed on the August 20,2015, Commission meeting accounts

payable.
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